
LAW OFFICES 

Messer, Capare110 8 Self -1. 

A Professional Association <-- '  

i ." - 
w- Post Off ice Box 1836 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302- 1816 
Internet: www.1 awf la.corn 

November 2,2004 

BY HAND DELIVERY 
Blanca Bay6 , Director 
The Commission Clerk and Administrative Semi 
Room 1 10, Easley B~ilding 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 323 99-085 0 

e 

a -- a5 I k-l 
4 
W 

I '  _--- 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed for filing are the original and four (4) copies of an Application for Authority to 
Issue and Sell Securities on behalf of Florida Public Utilities Company. This application is 
submitted pursuant to section 366.04, Florida Statutes and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative 
Code. A copy of the application is being provided to the Office of Public Counsel. 

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter by stamping the extra copy of this letter "filed" and 
returning the same to me. 

Thank you for your assistance with this filing. 

Sincerely yours, 

NHH/amb 
Enclosures 
cc: Harold McLean, Esq. 

Mr. George Bachman 

0 - w  orman H. Horton, Jr. 
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Florida Public Service Commission 
Tallahassee, Florida 

Application of 

Florida Public Utilities Company 

For Authority to Issue and Sell Securities 

Pursuant to Section 366.04, Florida Statutes, 

And Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code 

Address communications in connection with this Application to: 

George M. Bachman, CFO and Treasurer 
Florida Public Utilities Company 

PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 

(561) 838-1731 

Cheryl M. Martin, Controller 
Florida Public Utilities Company 

PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 

(561) 838-1725 

Norman H. Horton, Jr, 
Messer, Caparello & Self 

215 South Monroe Street, Suite 701 
PO Box 1876 

Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1876 
(850) 222-0720 

The Date of this Application is October 29,2004 
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APPLICATION OF 
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY (FPUC) 

FOR AUTHORITY TO ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 366.04, FLORIDA STATUTES, 

AND CHAPTER 25-8, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 
~~ ~ 

A. Applicability 

This Application is filed in accordance with Section 366.04, 

Florida Statutes, and Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code. 

B. Contents of Application 

1. Name and Principal Business Office Address 

Business Office: 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
401 South Dixie Highway 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401-5886 

Mailing Address: 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 

2. State and Date Incorporated 

State of Florida 

The company was incorporated by letters patent issued by the State 

of Florida on March 6,1924 under the name of Palm Beach Gas 

Company. By subsequent amendment the name was changed to Florida 

Public Utilities Company on October 14, 1927. On April 25, 1929 the 

Company was incorporated under the 1925 Florida Corporation Law and 

is continuing its corporate existence pursuant to the 1925 Corporation Law 

and its Certificate of Reincorporation, as amended. 
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3. Persons Authorized to Receive Notices and Communications 

4. 

5 .  

George M. Bachman, CFO and Treasurer 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 
(561) 838-1731 

Cheryl M. Martin, Controller 
Florida Public Utilities Company 
PO Box 3395 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33402-3395 
(561) 838-1725 

Norman H. Horton, Jr. 
Messer, Caparello & Self 
21 5 South Monroe Street, Suite 701 
PO Box 1876 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1 876 
(850) 222-0720 

Capital Stock and Funded Debt 

(a)-@ Information responsive to description and amounts authorized, 

outstanding, reacquired, pledged, owned by affiliated corporations and 

held in any fund are contained in Exhibit C “Statement of Capital Stock 

and Debt -June 30,2004”. 

Proposed Transactions 

(a)(b)(c) Description of proposed transactions, kind and nature of 

securities and the maximum principal amounts and present estimate of 

interest rates and dividend rates. 

Florida Public Utilities Company (FPUC) seeks permission to 

issue and sell and/or exchange any combination of the long-term debt, 

short-term. notes and equity securities and/or to assume liabilities or 
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obligations as guarantor, endorser or surety in an incremental amount not 

to exceed $40,000,000, excluding retained earnings during the calendar 

- 

year 2005. 

The long-term debt securities may include first mortgage bonds, 

private activity bonds, medium-term notes, debentures convertible or 

exchangeable debentures, notes, convertible or exchangeable notes, or 

other straight debt or hybrid debt securities, whether secured or unsecured, 

with maturities ranging from one to one hundred years. The expected 

interest rate on long-term debt is 7.53 %. 

Authority to issue up to $21,000,000 of short-term notes will give 

the Company financial flexibility with respect to future permanent 

financing. At the June 30,2004 the short-term notes interest rate was 

1.83 Yo. 

The equity securities would be common stock issued at Fair 

Market Value less any issuance costs. The expected dividend rate would 

be $ .62 per share annually. The expected issuance price would be $ 16.70 

per share (net) with a maximum number of shares to be issued of 

2,000,000 for a net outstanding number of shares not to exceed 8,000,000. 

Purposes of Issues 

(a)(b)(c) The net proceeds to be received from the issuance and sale and/or 

exchange of the debt and equity securities will be added to FPUC’s 

general funds and will be used to provide additional facilities through 

construction or acquisitions expenditures, and to repay short-term notes. 
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Excess proceeds, if any, will be temporarily invested in short-term 

instruments pending their application to the foregoing purposes. 

Under future market conditions, the interest rate on new issue 

long-term debt may be such that it becomes economically attractive to 

reacquire a portion or all of certain of its debt securities or equity 

securities. 

The short-term securities are to provide funds temporarily to 

finance portions of FPUC’ s general construction program, operating 

expenses and capital commitments and for other corporate purposes. 

Significant parts of FPUC cash requirements may temporarily be financed 

through the sale of short-term securities from time to time. Also, during 

the 2005 period, FPUC may need short-term financing capabilities for 

seasonal he1 requirements, contingency financing such as fuel under 

recoveries or stonn restorations costs, acquisition costs or general 

operating expenditures. 

7. Facts Supporting Legality. Necessity or Appropriateness 

The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, and the 

Laws of the State of Florida under which the Company is organized permit 

the Company to issue its securities for proper corporate purposes, 

including the refunding of bank loans and for construction expenditures. 

The issuance of the securities for which approval is now being sought will 

not impair the ability of the Company to perform its public utilities 

services in an efficient manner and will enable the Company to meet the 
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growing needs of the communities that it services and is reasonably 

necessary and appropriate for such purposes. 

8. Name and Address of Counsel Passing upon the Legalitv of the Proposed 
Issues 

Norman H. Horton, Jr. 
Messer, Caparello & Self 
215 South Monroe Street, Suite 701 
PO Box 1876 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1 876 
(8 5 0) 222-0720 

9. Other State or Federal Regulatory Body 

If required a Registration Statement with respect to each sale of 

securities hereunder subject to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended will 

be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission at the following 

address : 

Securities and Exchange Commission 
Judiciary Plaza, 450 Fifth Street 
NW. Washington, D.C. 20549 

In addition, issuance of the $ 14,000,000 Palm Beach County 

industrial bond is an exempt transaction under the provisions of the 

Securities Act of 1933. 

10. Control or Ownership 

There is no measure of control or ownership exercised by or over 

applicant as to any public utility. No inter-corporate relationship exists 

with the exception of the wholly owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation. 

Applicant is not a member of any holding company system. 
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C. Exhibits 

Ex hibit Number : 

Exhibit A - Annual Report on Form 10-K for the calendar year ended 
December 3 1,2003 and Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 
2004. * 

Exhibit B - Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast and Construction 
Budget for Gross Property Additions for calendar year 2005. 

Exhibit C - Statement of Capital Stock and Debt as of June 30,2004. 

*As permitted by Rule 25-8.003 (l)(a)(6), Florida Administrative Code, 
FPUC is satisfying the requirements for Schedules A (1) through A ( 5 )  by 
submitting its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the calendar year ended 
December 3 1,2003 and Form 10-Q for the six months ended June 30, 
2004 in conjunction with this Application. 

SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 366.04, Florida Statutes and Chapter 25-8, Florida 
Administrative Code, Florida Public Utilities Company has caused its duly authorized 
officer to execute this Application on this 29th day of October 2004. 

Florida Public Utilities Company 
I ,  

40 YSouth Dixie Highway 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549 

FORM lo-Q 
(Mark One) 

[XI QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004 
OR 

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from tQ 

Commission File Number: 1-1055 

Florida Public Utilities Company 
(Exact nanie of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Florida . 

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 

401 South Dixie Highway, West Palm Beach, FL 
(Address of principal executive offices) 

59-0539080 
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 

33401 
(Zip Code) 

(561) 832-0872 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

Indicate by check inark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the regstrant was required 
to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. 
Yes [ X I  No I 1 

Indicate by check inark whether the regstrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). 
Yes [ 1 No [ X I  

On June 30,2004, there were 3,943,644 shares of $1.50 par value common shares outstanding. 
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Item 
PART I Financial Information 

Financial Statements 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (UNAUDITED) 
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

June 30, June 30, 
2004 2003 2004 2003 

Electric 

lperating Expenses . . . . . . . . . . . .  

and amortization 

Ither Income and (Dedu 

Merchandise and service expenses (1,566) 

522 482 1,935 2,295 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Discontinued operations 

9,821 
Total income (loss) from discontinued 

operations , .  . 

L9 get hicome 
, . . . , . 



Preferred Stock Dividends I 7 14 7 14 

. .  , 

$ 414 $ 1,921 $ 12,102 Earnings for Coinmon Stock $ 515 

Earnings (Loss) Per Coinmon Share (basic and 

Discontinued Oaerations 



June 30, December 31, 

QSSETS 
Jtility Plant 

Net utiIity plant 

current 
Cash 
Accomb receivab 

Total current assets 

2004 2003 

$ 166,684 $ 160,644 

. . c _ I  

2,722 2,624 
5,518 

20,352 
. . s .  

7 
18,574 

held for envirom 

. .. 

Total other assets 

5,672 

3366 

Zurreiit Liabilities 
Lhe-of-credit 
Accounts payable 8,300 8,864 

d 421 ~ 

Interest accrued 796 935 

Taxes accrued 
Other accruals and payables 3,824 

1,740 
Over recovery of co on and unbundling 71 
Clrstoaner deposits 6,134 

Total current liabilities 24,626 

3ther  Liabilities . ,  
Deferred income taxes and regulatory tax liability 17,628 17,882 

1,686 1,317 
43,801 

Environmental liabilities and other 24,557 24,102 

The financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Notes herein and the Notes to Condense 
Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in the most recent Form 10-K. 
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2. 

3. 

Six Months Ended 
June 30, 

2004 2003 
‘et Cash Flow provided by 
CQ~*U% Operating 

, 

ash Flows from Investing Activities 
(6, 

estments, net of interest (15) (265) 
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operatio 66 19,184 

. .. 264 Other, . _ .  

Dividends paid (1,171) 
r 

Net cash provided by (use 

:ash at begiivling of period 859 3,200 

Tie financial statements’ should 
:oiisolidated Financial Statements appearing in the most recent Form IO-K. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2004 

In the opinion of Management, the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of 
America (GAAP) for interim financial information and with the instructions for Form 10-Q and Article 10  of 
Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for 
complete financial statements. All adjustments necessary for fair presentation have been included. Due to 
the seasonal nature of the Company’ business, the operating results for the period are not necessarily 
indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year. For further information, refer to the audited 
consolidated financial statements and fooinotes included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the year ended December 31,2003. 

Substantially all of the Company’s utility plant and the shares of Flo-Gas Corporation collateralize the 
Company’s First Mortgage Bonds (long-term debt). Investments held for environmental costs, accounts 
receivable, and inventory are collateral for the line of credit. 

FPU’s Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust restricts the amount that is 
available for cash dividends. At June 30,2004, approximately $5.1 million of retained earnings were free of 



4. 

such restriction and therefore available for the payment of dividends. The line of credit agreement contains 
covenants that, if violated, could restrict or prevent the issuance of dividends; however, the Company is not 
in violation of These covenants. 

Summary of Revenues and Operating income before income taxes (dollars in thousands): 

< evenues 
Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 

Total revenues 

3perating income before income taxes 
Natura1 gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 

rotal operating income 
before incoine taxes 

Three Months Ended June 30, 
2004 2003 

$ 12,109 $ 12,792 
10,126 9,383 
2.494 2,234 

$ 24.729 $ 24.409 

$ 612 $ 1,005 
880 526 
223 120 

Six Months Ended June 30, 
2004 2003 

$ 29,172 $ 31,177 
20,440 19,187 
5,842 5,194 

$ 55,454 $ 55,558 

$ 2,679 $ 3,970 
1,550 1,250 

605 566 

$ 1,715 $ 1,651 $ 4,834 $ 5,786 

5. 
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Goodwill and Otlier Intangible Assets 

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", the Company does not amortize 
goodwill or intangibles with indefinite lives. The Company periodically tests the reporting segments, 
natural gas and propane gas, for impairment, and in the event a segment is impaired, the associated 
goodwill and intangible assets would be written down to fair value. 

Intangible assets associated with the Company's acquisitions have been identified as a separate line item on 
the balance sheet and principally consist of customer distribution rights valued at $1.9 million and customer 
relationships valued at $900,000. Both have indefinite lives and are not subject to amortization. 

Goodwill associated with tlw Company's acquisitions has been identified as a separate line item on the 
balance sheet and consists of $1.5 million in the natural gas segment and $1.9 million in the propane gas 
segment. The impairment test performed in 2004 showed no impairment €or either reporting segment. 

6. Environmental Contingencies 
The Company is subject to federal and state legislation with respect to environmental, employee health 
and safety matters. Additionally, environmental regulations issued by the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP), the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and other 
federal and state agencies also impact the Company. Except as discussed below, the Company does not 
expect to incur material future expenditures for compliance with existing environmental laws and 
regulations. 

A. West Palm Beach Site 

FPU is currently evaluating remedial options to respond to environmental impacts to soil and 
groundwater at and in the immediate vicinity of a parcel of property owned by it in West Palm 
Beach, Florida upon wluch FPU previously operated a gasification plant. FPU entered into a 
Consent Order with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection ("FDEP") effective April 8, 
1991, that requires FPU to delineate the extent of soil and groundwater impacts associated with the 
prior operation of tlie gasification plant and to remediate such soil and groundwater impacts, if 
necessary. Numerous reports have been submitted by FI'U to FDEP, describing the results of soil 



and groundwater sampling conducted at the site. A Supplemental Contamination Assessment 
Report Addendum ("SCARA") was submitted to FDEP in December 2001, summarizing the results 
of past investigations and providing the results of additional field work conducted in 2001, in 
response to comments received previously from FDEP. On September 29,2003, FPU submitted to 
FDEP a Comprehensive Soil and Groundwater Assessment Report, that described the results of 
substantial additional field work undertaken in 2003 to respond to FDEP's comments to the SCARA. 

On January 30,2004, FPU's consultant, Jacques Whitford Company, submitted an internal feasibility study 
report to FPU, which identified likely remedial alternatives to address the impacts now characterized at the 
West Palm Beach site. The internal feasibility study report evaluated a wide range of remedial alternatives. 
Based on tihe likely acceptability of proven remedial technologies implemented at similar sites in other 
states, consulting/remediation costs are now projected to range from $10.0 million to $15.0 million. This 
range of costs covers such remedies as in situ solidification, slurry wall and cap containment, air 
sparge/ soil vapor extraction, or in situ chemical oxidation, or some combination of these remedies. 

Prior to FDEP's approval of a final remedy for the site, the Company is unable to determine the complete 
extent or cost of remedial action which may be required. Based on the internal feasibility study report, 
remediation costs (including attorneys' fees and costs) for this site are currently projected to range from 
$10.3 million to $15.3 million. 

B. Sanford Site 

FPU owns a parcel of property located in Sanford, Florida, upon which a gasification plant was operated 
prior to FPU's acquisition of the property. Following discovery of soil and groundwater impacts on the 
property, FPU has participated with four former owners and operators of the gasification plant in the 
funding of numerous investigations of the extent of the impacts and the identification of an appropriate 
remedy. On or about March 25,1998, FPU executed an Administrative Order on Consent ("AOC'') with the 
four former owners and operators (collectively, the "Group") and the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (IIEPA'') that obligated the Group to implement a Remedial Investigation/ Feasibility 
Study ("RI/FS") task and to pay the EPA's past and future oversight costs for the RI/FS. The Group also 
entered into a Participation Agreement and an Escrow Agreement on or about April 13,1998 ("RI/FS 
Participation Agreement"). These agreements governed the manner and means by which all parties were to 
satisfy their respective obligations under the AOC for the RI/FS task. FPU agreed to pay approximately 
13.7% of the cost for the RI/FS. Field work for the RI/FS was initiated in 1998. A final RI report was 
submitted to the EPA in July 1999. The Group also submitted a Baseline Risk Assessment to the EPA in 
January 2000, including an Ecological Risk Assessment ("ERA"). FPU's share of the cost of these tasks was 
previously paid in full. The RI/FS Participation Agreement was amended on September 18,2003, to 
authorize an additional $400,000 tu be incurred by the Group to complete the ecological risk assessment 
and cover the EPA's oversight costs for the RI/FS. FPU paid $55,000 in November 2003; its share of the 
additional RI/FS funding. 

On July 5,2000, the EPA issued a Record of Decision ("ROD") approving the final remedial action for 
contaminated soils at t-he site ("OUl Remedy"). The initial estimated cost for the OU1 Remedy described in 
the ROD ranges from $5.6 million to $5.8 million. On June 12,2001, the EPA issued a ROD approving the 
final remedial action for contaminated groundwater at the site ('IOU2 Remedy"). The present worth cost 
estimate for the OU2 Remedy is $320,000. 

FPU is a party to tlie Second Participation Agreement entered into by members of tlie Group on August I, 
2000, as amended tlwough June 19,2002. The Second Participation Agreement provides for funding the 
remedial design/remedial action task for OUI and OU2. FPU's share of costs for implementation of die 
remedial design/ remedial action task for OU1 and OU2, including the pre-remedial design fieldwork 
described below, is 10.5%, providing the total cost of the remedial design/ remedial action task, including 
tlie pre-remedial design fieldwork, does not exceed $6.0 million. 



Pre-remedial design fieldwork was performed in 2002 and 2003 to assist in the design of the final remedy 
for OUI and OU2. Based on the pre-remedial design fieldwork, it is now anticipated that the final cost of 
the remedy for OU1 and OU2 will significantly exceed the $6.0 million combined estimate provided in the 
RODS for OU1 and OU2. In 2002, FPU paid $210,000 to the Escrow Agent pursuant to a first call for funds 
under the Second Participation Agreement. FPU's remaining obligation under the Second Participation 
Agreement for the remedial design/remedial action task for OU1 and OU2 is $420,000. This assumes FPU's 
total allocated share remains no greater than 10.5089% of $6.0 million, as currently set forth in the Second 
Participation Agreement, as amended through June 19,2002. FPU has notified Group members that FPU 
will oppose any effort by the Group to increase FPU's share of total remedial costs above 10.5089% of the 
current $6.0 million cap, since the increased remedial cost is due to the discovery of additional impacted 
soils on property not owned by FPU. 

In addition, FPU will be obligated to pay for a share of the EPA's oversight costs for the remedial 
design/rernedial action task for OU1 and OU2. It is anticipated that FPU's share of these costs will be 
10.5089% of the EPA's total bill. It is not possible at this time to calculate, to a reasonable degree of 
certainty, the EPA's oversight cost. However, based on other similar sites, it would be reasonable to assume 
such oversight cost to be approximately 20% of the projected remedial design/remedial action costs for 
OU1 and OU2. Assuming FPU's maximum exposure for the remedial design/remedial action cost for OU1 
and OU2 does not exceed 10.5089% of $6.0 million, a reasonable estimate of FPU's share of oversight cost 
would be approximately $125,000. 

Prior to the EPA's approval of a final remedy for the site, and the completion of negotiations among 
members of the Group on FPU's maximum allocated share, the Company is unable to determine the 
complete extent of FPU's remaining exposure at: this site. Based on the existing Second Participation 
Agreement, FPU's remaining exposure for the remedial design/remedial action task for OU1 and OU2, the 
EPA's oversight costs, and FPU's attorneys' fees and costs, is projected to be approximately $725,000. 

C. Recovery of Environmental Costs 

On June 30,2004, the estimated remaining costs for consulting and remediation, legal expenses, and 
otlier related expenses for all sites is approximately $14.0 million. The Company currently has $14.0 
million reserved as an environmental liability. The Company has recovered $4.9 million from insurance 
and rate recovery. The balance of $9.1 million is recorded as a regulatory asset pending future rate 
recovery. Based on existing information, management believes that all future associated costs will be 
recoverable though rate relief granted by the FPSC. 

7. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the Company to make certain 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of any 
contingent assets and liabilities at ,the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions. 

8. Common Shareholders' Equity 
Items impacting Common shareholders' equity other than income and dividends are the Company's 
dividend reinvestment program, employee stock purchase program and treasury stock. The impact of these 
additional items increases common shareholders' equity approximately $300,000 for the six months ended 
June 30,2004. 

9. Discontinued Operations 
On March 27,2003, the Company sold certain assets comprising its former water segment to the City of 
Fernandina Beach ("City"). The fair value of the consideration was approximately $25.0 million. The City 
paid $19.2 million in cash at closing and agreed to pay future consideration of approximately $7.4 million in 
installments until February 15,2010. FPU recognized and recorded the present value of the long-term 
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receivable of $5.7 million, using a discount rate of 4.34%. The long-term receivable has been subsequently 
increased to recognize interest income. The first installment of $57,348 was received in February 2004. 

The cash received at closing was used to repay short-term debt. The gain on the disposal of discontinued 
operations, including the income from discontinued operations for the first quarter of 2003, was $15.8 
million, or $9.9 million after tax, and has subsequently been adjusted to $15.9 million, or $9.9 million after 
tax, due to adjustments to sales related expenses that were previously estimated. The assets of the water 
segment amounted to approximately $10.2 million, or less than 10% of FPU's assets including water. For 
additional information read the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in the Company's 
most recent Form 10-K. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
The Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on hstorical information and trended 
current economic conditions. 

Subsequent Events 
The Company was granted natural gas interim rate relief of approximately $1,200,000 
annually, effective in the third quarter of 2004. The Company is requesting approximately 
$8,200,000 in annual rate relief. This amount is subject to review by the FPSC, which may not 
grant the full amount requested. If an increase is granted, it is anticipated the final rate relief 
will take effect in the fourth quarter of 2004. 

Item 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Forward-Looking Statements 

This report and the documents incorporated by referenced herein contain "forward-looking" statements within the 
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended. "Forward-looking" statements are any statements that are not based on historical information. 
Statements other than hstorical facts included in this report, including, without limitation, statements regarding 
FPU's future financial position, business strategy, budgets, projected costs and plans and objectives of management 
for future operations, are " forward-losking" statements. Forward-looking statements generally can be identified by 
the use of forward-looking terminology such as "may, ' I  "will," "expect," "anticipate," "intend," "plan," "believe," 
"seek," "estimate" or "continue" or the negative of such words or variations of such words and similar expressions. 
These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, 
wluch are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed 
or forecasted in such forward-looking statements and FPU can give no assurance that such forward-looking 
statements will prove to be correct. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those 
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, or "cautionary statements,'' include, but are not limited to, 
weather conditions, changes in laws or regulations, changes in the market environment, restrictions on FPU's ability 
to raise capital on favorable terms, any direct or indirect effects of terrorist threats and activities, FPU's successfully 
petitioning for and receiving rate increases, FPU's ability to identify attractive acquisition opportunities at favorable 
prices and to successfully and timely complete and integrate them. 

Financial Condition 

Portions of FPU's business are seasonal and dependent upon weather temperatures in Florida. These factors affect 
the sales of eleciricity and gas and impact the cash provided by operations. Construction costs also impact cash 
requirements throughout the year. Therefore, any cash needs for operations and construction are met partially 
through short-term borrowings from our line of credit ("LOC"). FPU also borrows under the LOC to finance any 
small propane acquisitions. No acquisitions have taken place in 2003 or so far in 2004. 



FPU periodically pays off die short-term borrowings under the LOC using the net proceeds from the sale of long- 
term debt or equity securities. The timing and type of financing is dependent on the amount borrowed from the 
LOC, prevailing market conditions for debt and equity, tlie impact to the Company's financial covenants, and the 
effect on income. 

In April 2003, FPW retired an expiring $20.0 million LOC. The LOC had a $16.1 million outstanding balance on 
March 27,2003, that was repaid using proceeds from the sale of the water division. On April 1,2003, FPU obtained 
a $22.0 million, tlurty-nine month LOC that matures on June 30,2006. FPU reserves $1.0 million of the LOC to cover 
expenses for any major storm repairs in its electric segment, along with reserving an additional $250,000 for a 'letter 
of credit' covering propane facilities. As of June 30,2004, the amount borrowed from the LOC was $3.3 million. The 
LOC, long-term debt and preferred stock as of June 30,2004 comprised 59% of total capitalization. 

Net cash flow provided by continuing operating activities through June increased in 2004 by approximately $5.0 
million from 2003. Cash received on accounts receivable in 2004 accounted for over $1.5 million of the increase. The 
remainder of the $5.0 million increase was primarily due to a $2.9 million estimated tax payment in 2003 for the gain 
on the sale of the water division. Proceeds from the water division sale of $19.2 million were used to pay off short- 
term debt in 2003. 

Subsequent to the $2.9 million estimated tax payment in 2003 for the gain on the sale of the water division, it was 
determined that the income tax was eligible to be deferred (see 'Other' in the aiu-tual report 10-K for 2003, under 
'Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations', 'Interest Charges and 
Other'). The Company received a refund of the $2.9 million payment in July 2004. 

Year to date construction expenditures increased $3.7 million through June 2004 when compared to June 2003. 
Construction in 2004 increased approximately $1.6 million from rebuilding two substations in the electric segment. 
In addition, approximately $465,000 was spent on additional propane block systems. A $1.5 million contribution to 
capital by the City of Lake Worth reduced construction expenses in 2003. The Company does not have any material 
commitments for construction expenditures. 

The budgeted construction expenditures through June 2004 are $8.4 million versus actual expenditures of $7.0 
million. The lower expenditures were due to management's decision to delay non-critical capital expenditures to 
improve cash flow while obtaining additional financing. The delayed construction expenditures are expected to be 
incurred before the end of 2004. 

Due to current market conditions and an improved banking environment, FPU will pursue increasing its LOC to 
provide short-term financing. Discussions with FPU's primary bank have indicated a willingness to increase the 
LOC and FPU will pursue increasing the LOC up to $20 million. If successful, the Company expects that internally 
generated cash, coupled with short-term borrowings, wil1 be sufficient- to satisfy its operating, normal capital 
expenditure requirements, and dividend payments for the near future. Depending upon operation requirements 
and construction expenditures, financing is anticipated to be needed to pay off the LOC in approximately one to 
three years. An equity offering is likely at that time, but will depend upon market conditions and other factors. 

The Company has accumulated deferred charges in 2004 relating to preparing an equity offering. Due to the 
aforementioned items in the preceding paragraph, the potential equity offering in 2004 was cancelled in July 2004. 
Therefore, the accumulated charges of approximately $50,000 were expensed in July 2004. 

Overview 

FPU has three primary business segments: natural gas, electric and propane gas. The natural gas and electric 
segments are regulated by the Florida Public Service Commission ("FPSC"). 

The regulated segments are required to receive approval to set the rates charged to customers. The rates approved 
by the FPSC allow FPU a specified rate of return on its regulated investment and recovery of expenditures. As part 
of the regulation, tlie costs of fuel and certain overheads are passed through to customers. 



FPU’s strategy is to concentrate on developing stronger relationships with its customers, including builders and 
developers of residential and commercial properties. FPU is positioning itself as a total energy company, not just a 
supplier of electricity or gas. Included in the strategy is a plan to increase the rate of future growth by concentrating 
on increasing customers and territory coverage using improved marketing programs, along with acquiring small 
energy related companies, particularly propane gas companies. The Company actively pursues opportunities to 
purchase small gas companies to assist in growth with the goal of acquiring at least one propane company a year as 
feasible opportunities arise. 

Contributing to variations in income are the effects of seasonal weather conditions, the timing of rate increases, and 
the migration of winter residents and tourists to Florida during the winter season. 

The following outlines some of the major items affecting the Company: 

On May 26,2004 the Company successfully completed its filing with the FPSC requesting an increase in its natural 
gas rates and charges of approximately $8.2 million, annually. The Company sought interim rate relief of $1.5 
million annually and was granted $1.2 million, effective August 5,2004. The interim relief is subject to possible 
refund pending the amount of the final rate relief granted by the FPSC. The final rate relief includes a request for 
recovery of $9.1 million for environmental liabilities (included on the balance sheet as Other regulatory assets- 
environmental), along with increased operating expenses. In addition, FPU requested approval from the FPSC for 
inclusion in the rate base (regulated investment) the goodwill and intangible assets associated with the acquisition 
of Atlantic Utilities. The recovery of these items and the amount, if any, of final rate relief will be subject to the 
approval of the FPSC and is expected to be determined in October with an effective date before the end of 2004. 

On August 14,2003, FPU filed for electric rate increases and petitioned to consolidate the two electric entities into 
one. FPU went before the FPSC on February 18,2004, at which time the FPSC granted the petition to consolidate 
the electric divisions into one regulated entity on a going forward basis and granted a $1.8 million increase in 
annual revenue. The effective date for the increase was March 17,2004. The Company’s revenues for the 
remainder of tlie year will reflect the portion of the increase in electric revenues from the rate relief granted. 

Significant changes affecting operating expenses include pension and insurance increases. Current actuarial 
estimates show pension expense increasing $487,000 in 2004 compared to 2003. Pension expenses are projected to 
continue increasing into 2004 and 2005. Insurance costs including Medical, Liability and Workers’ Compensation 
have also resulted in increased expenses; in 2003 these increases were $707,000. These insurance costs are expected 
to remain level in 2004 and will most likely increase in 2005. FPU allocates its pension and insurance across its three 
operating segments. 

The regulated segments are requesting or have received rate relief for some of these expected pension and insurance 
increases. Further increases beyond those expected through 2004 allocated to the regulated segments may require 
additional future rate relief. The propane segment may recover these expenses depending on current market 
conditions in the propane industry and the ability to recover the expenses while remaining competitive. . 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Discussion of Operating Results: 

Gross Profit 

Gross profit is defined as gross operating revenues less fuel costs, conservation and unbundling costs, and revenue 
based taxes that are passed through to customers. FPU believes that gross profit provides a more meaningful basis 
for evaluating utility revenue because revenue for the items passed through to customers have no effect on results 
of operations and fluctuations in such costs distort the relationship of gross operating revenues between periods. 



Three Months Ended 
Summary of Gross Profit.: June 30, June 30, 
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2004 2003 

Six Months Ended 

Results of Operations 

Three Months Ended June 30,2004, Compared 
with Rree  Months Ended June 30,2003. 

Gross Profit 
Natural Gas Service 
Natural gas service gross profit decreased $274,000 or 4%. Units sold in 2004 increased 6% along with a 3% increase 
in customers. However, gross profit declined since the 2nd quarter of 2003 included an additional $600,000 in 
revenue. The additional revenue resulted from reversing an estimate of over earnings made in the first quarter of 
2003, wluch was associated with a nonrecurring $1.5 million early termination fee. 

Electric Service 
Electric service gross profit increased $475,000 or 17%. Revenues increased primarily due to the rate increases 
granted in March 2004, along with customer growth and an increase in units sold. 

Propane Gas Service 
Propane gas gross profit increased $18,000 or 1 %. This was attributable to customer growth. 

Operating Expenses (excluding income taxes) 

The Company’s main operating expenses consist of operating and maintenance expense, depreciation and 
amortization, and taxes other than income. 

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses increased $153,000 or approximately 2%. The largest contributing factor was the $80,000 
increase in pension expense due to stock market performance. Insurance costs also increased $37,000 as a result of 
increased insurance premiums for medical, workers’ compensation, and general liability. In addition to the pension 
and insurance increases, depreciation and amortization expense increased $76,000 due to normal plant growth. 

Other Income and Deductions 
Interest charges and otlzer expenses increased by $13,000. There were no significant fluctuations from the second 
quarter of 2003 to the second quarter of 2004. 

Six Months Ended June 30,2004, Compared 
with Six Months Ended June 30,2003. 

Gross Profit 
Natural Gas Service 
Nafxral gas service gross profit decreased $859,000 or 7%. The primary reason for the decrease was the non- 
recurring $1.5 million early termination fee received in 2003 in accordance with the termination of a pipeline 
agreement with Lake Worth Generation, LLC and the subsequent signing of a new agreement witli the City of Lake 
Worth signed in late March 2003. 



Electric Service 
Electric service gross profit increased $589,000 or 10%. Revenues increased primarily due to the rate increases 
granted in March 2004, along with customer growth and a 3% increase in units sold. 

Propane Gas Service 
Propane gas gross profit increased $152,000 or 5% primarily due to an increase in units sold and customer growth. 
The increase in u n i t s  sold was primarily attributable to the addition of a large wholesale customer. Customer 
growth was up 1% due to normal growth. 

Operating Expenses (excluding income taxes) 

The Company’s main operating expenses consist of operating and maintenance expense, depreciation and 
amortization, and taxes other than income. 

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses increased $834,000 or approximately 6%. Insurance costs increased $185,000 as a result of 
increased insurance premiums for medical, workers’ compensation, and general liability, Pension expense 
increased $106,000 due to stock market performance. Tree trimming expense increased over $79,000 due to a 
Company focus on improving reliabifity. Locating underground facilities for third parties increased approximately 
$48,000 due to the increasing number of road construction projects. Depreciation and amortization expense also 
had an increase of $252,000 due to normal plant growth. 

Other Income and Deductions 
Interest charges and other expenses decreased by $268,000. This was primarily caused by a FPSC-mandated 
removal of $149,000 of environmental fund interest from interest income to the liability reserve in the first quarter of 
2003. Non-operating income also increased by $62,000 in 2004 due to the interest income associated with other 
long-term investments, In addition, interest expense on short-term debt decreased by $59,000 due to the decrease in 
the obligation on the line of credit. 

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

All financial instruments held by FPU were entered into for purposes other than for trading. FPU has market risk 
exposure only from the potential loss in fair value resulting from changes in interest rates. FPU has no material 
exposure relating to commodity prices because FPU, under its regulatory jurisdictions, is fully compensated for the 
actual costs of commodities (natural gas and electricity) used in its operations. Any commodity price increases for 
propane gas are normally passed through monthly to propane gas customers as the fuel charge portion of their rate. 
This can be performed due to the competition having similar increases that are customarily passed through to their 
customers. 

FPU’s long term receivable from the sale of the water operations was discounted at 4.34%. A hypothetical 0.5% (50 
basis points) increase in the interest rate used would change the current fair value from $6.0 million to $5.9 million. 

None of FPU’s gas or electric contracts are accounted for using the fair value method of accounting. Wlzile some of 
FPU’s contracts meet the definition of a derivative, FPU has designated these contracts as ‘‘normal purchases and 
sales” under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivatives”. 

I 

FPU has no exposure to equity risk, as it does not hold any equity instruments. FPU’s exposure to interest rate risk 
is limited to investments held for environmental costs and short-term borrowings on the line of credit. The 
investments are fixed income debt securities whose carrying amounts are not materially different than fair value. 
Such investments mature through 2004 and are expected to be held to maturity. Therefore, FPU does not believe it 
has material market risk exposure related to these instruments. The indentures governing FPU’s two first mortgage 
bond series outstanding contain “make-whole” provisions, which are yre-payment penalties that charge for lost 
interest, which render refinancing impracticable. 



Item 4. Controls and Procedures 

Nominee - For Against/ Withheld Non-votes 
Richard C. Hitchins 3,030,387 364,155 0 
Rudy E. Schupp 3,030,290 364,252 0 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

Abstentions 
0 
0 

FPU’s management carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of FPU’s Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of FPU’s disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e) under the Exchange Act). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of June 30,2004, FPU’s disclosure controls and procedures 
were (1) designed to ensure that material information relating to FPU is made known to FPU’s Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer by others, particularly during the period in which this report was being 
prepared, and (2) effective, in that they provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by 
FPU in the reports that FPU files or submits under the Exchange Act are recorded, processed, summarized and 
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. 

- For Against/ Withheld Non-vo tes 
3,350,760 30,194 4 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Abstentions 
13,586 

No change in FPU’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(0 and 15d-l5(f) under the 
Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2004 that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
likely to materially affect, FPU’s internal control over financial reporting. 

PARTII. 

Item 1. 

Item 2. 

Item 3. 

Item 4, 

OTHER INFORMATION 

Legal Proceedings 

The nature of FPU‘s business exposes FPU to various types of claims or litigation related to the conduct 
of its operations. FPU does not expect the outcome of any pending legal proceedings to have a material 
adverse effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds 

Not Applicable 

Defaults Upon Senior Securities 

Not Applicable 

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

The Company held its annual meeting of stockholders on May 25, 2004. At that meeting, the 
stockholders were asked to consider and act on the election of two directors, an increase in the number 
of authorized shares of the Company’s capital stock from 6,000,000 shares of common stock, par value of 
$1.50 per share to 10,000,000, shares of common stock, par value $1.50 and the ratification of BDO 
Seidman, LLP, as tlie Company’s independent auditors. 

The following persons were elected as directors for terms expiring in 2007 and received tlie number of 
votes set forth opposite their respective names: 

The following votes were cast €or the ratification of the Company’s independent auditors: 



The following votes were cast for the approval of the increase in the Company’s capita1 stock: 

- For 
2,924,614 

Against/ Withheld Non-votes Abstentions 
43 7,O 74 10 3 0.846 

Item 5. Other Information 

Not Applicable 

Item 6. Exhibits and reports on Form 8-K 

(4 Exhibits 

31(1) Certification of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

31(2) Certification of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) per Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

32(1) Certification of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

32(2) Certification of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

Reports on Form 8-K: 

1) A Form 8-K was filed May 12,2004, announcing a press release relating to 1st quarter earnings. 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused t h ~ s  report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
(Registrant) 

Date: August I 11,2004 By: /s/ George M. Bachman 
George M. Baclunan 
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Accounting Officer) 



Exhibit 31 (I) 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 

(Section 302) 

I, Jolui T. Eiiglish, certify tliat: 

1, I have reviewed tliis quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Florida Public Utilities Company (the "registrant"); 

2. Based on my knowledge, tliis report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a inateria1 fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of tlie circumstances under wluch such statements were inade, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, tlie financial statements, and otlier financial information included iii this report, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report; 

4. The regstrant's other cerhfying officer@) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-I5(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to emure that material dormation relating to the registrant, including its 
coiisolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others w i t h  those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by 
tlus report based on such evaluation; and 

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's interiial control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regstrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal coiitrol over financial 
reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of interrial control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the regstrant's board of directors (or persons 
performing tlie equivalent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's abi1it-y to record, process, sum&arize and 
report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not paterial, that involves management or otlier employees who have a sigmficaiit role in 
tlie registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: August 11,2004 

By /s/  John T. English 
John T. English 
Cluef Executive Officer 



Exhibit 31(2) 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 

(Section 302) 

I, George M. Bachmaiz, certify that: 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Florida Public Utilities Company (the "registrant"); 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to inake the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on iny knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report; 

4. The regstrant's other cerwing officer@) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-I5(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined 
in Exchange Act: Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the regstrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

0.) Evaluated t he  effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of tlie period covered by 
this report based on such evaluation; and 

(c) Disclosed in flus report any change in tlie registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aiuiual report) 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, tlie registrant's internal control over financial 
reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to tlie registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal coiitrol over financial 
reporting wluch are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and 
report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not paterial, that involves management or other employees who have a signrficaiit role in 
the registrant's internal coiitrol over financial reporting. 

Date: August 11,2004 

Bv / s /  Georne M. Bacliman 
George M. Baclman 
Chef Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32(1) 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Florida Public Utilities Company 
(the "Company") for the period ended June 30, 2004 as fded with the Securities and 
Exchange Comnission on the date hereof (the "Form 10-Q"), I, John T. English, Chef  
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, to the best of my knowledge, pusuant to 18 
U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

The Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material 
respects, the fmancial conhtion and results of operations of the Company. 

/s/  Tohn T. Endish 
John T. English 
Chef Executive Officer 
August 11,2004 



Exhibit 32(2) 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Florida Public Utllliies Company 
(the "Company") for the period ended June 30, 2004 as fded with the Securities and 
Exchange Co~nmission on the date hereof (the "Form IO-Q"), I, George M. Bachman, Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, to the best of my knowledge, pursuant to 18 
U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

(1) The Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material 
respects, the fmancial conhtion and vesults of operations of the Company. 

/s/ Georpe M. Buchman 
George M. Bachman 
Chef Financial Officer 
August 11,2004 
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As ofJune 30,2003, the aggregate market value of the Regismnt’s Common Stock held by non-afhliates (based 
upon the dosing pice of the Common Stock on that date on the American Stock Exchange) was approximately 
$63,7 67,48 5. 

On March 5,2004,3,928,889 shares of the Registrant’s $1.50 p;tr value common stock were outstanding, 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE. 

Portions of Florida Public Utilities Company’s Proxy Statement for the May 25,2004 Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders are incorporated by reference in Part I11 hereof. 

Item 1. Business 

General 
Florida Public Utilities Company (“FTU”) was incorporated on March 6,1924 and reincorporated on April 29,1925 
under the 1925 Florida Corporation Law. FPU provides natural gas, electricity and propane gas to retail and 
commercial customers in Florida. €TU’S regulated segment sells natural gas and electricity to 74,582 customers in 
Central, Northeast, Northwest and Southern Florida. FPU’s unregulated segment operates through its wholly owned 
subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation, which sells propane gas to 12,413 customers throughout the State of Florida. FPU 
formerly provided water to customers in Fernandha Beach, Florida; however, the water assets were sold in 2003 to 
the City of Fernandha Beach, Florida. 

In 2001, FPU started a proactive process to look for opportunities to purchase small energy related companies, 
particularly propane gas companies, to assist in its growth. In 2001, two acquisitions added approximately 7,300 
customers and in 2002, one acquisition added approximately 1,200 customers. The cost of each of these acquisitions 
was less than 10% of FpU’s assets and they provide less than 10% of WU’s revenues and operating income, excluding 
income taxes. There were no acquisitions in 2003. 

Information about Segments 

FTU is organized in three operating and reporting segments: natural gas; electric; and propane gas. FPU believes that , 

this operating stmcture is a natural division of its business segments and allows it to maximize synergies within 
existing operating units. The following is a brief description of each of FPU‘s operating segments: 

Natural Gas- F’PU purchases naixral gas from the Florida Gas Transmission (FGT) pipeline system and provides 
natural gas services to customers in Central and South Florida. 

Electric- FTU purchases electricity from Southern Company and JEA (formerly Jacksonville Electric Authority) 
and provides electric services to customers in Northwest and Northeast morida. 

Propane Gas- FPU purchases propane gas from multiple wholesale suppliers and provides propane gas services to 
ctistoiners in South, Central, West Central and Northeast Florida. 

.* , ’ 

The following table sets forth certain selected financial information for each of WU’s three operating segments: 

(For additional information see Segment Information in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.) 
(dollars in thousands) 

2003 9% 2002 YO 2001 YO 
Revenues 
Natural gas $ 53,610 52 40,140 45 3 44,729 50 
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Electric 
Propane gas 
Consolidated 

Operating income excluding 
income tax 
Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Consolidated 

Identifiable assets (I) 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Water division - held for sale 
Common 
Consolidated 

39,519 
9,594 

$ 102,723 

$ 5,190 
2,249 

254 
$' 7,693 

80,924 
43,476 
14,348 

24.242 
$ 162,990 

33 
9 

3 of 55 
40,930 47 39,050 44 

7,391 8 5,399 6 
$ 88,461 $ 89,178 

68 $ 4,291 
29 2,9 80 

3 478 
7,769 

50 
26 

9 
- 

15 

$ 60,439 
42,557 
10,288 
10,096 
27,240 

$ 150,620 

55 
39 

$ 3,295 
2,893 

50 
43 

G 431 7 
$ 6,619 

40 3 55,300 38 
28 40,609 28 
7 , 10,728 
7 
18 

9,579 
7 
7 

29,195 20 
$145,411 

(1) Prior periods have been restated to conform to SFAS No. 143 (for additional information, see "Impact of 
Recent Accounting Standards'' in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Description of Business 
FT'U provides electric, natural gas and propane gas distribution services to Florida consumers. The natural gas and 
electric operations are regulated by the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC); the propane gas operations are not 
regulated. WTJ operates through five divisions which served the following number of customers as of December 31, 
2003: (1) the. South Florida division, which provided natural gas to 30,654 customers and propane gas to 6,172 
customers in Palm Beach, Martin and Broward Counties; (2) the Central Florida division, which provided natural gas 
to 16,886 customers and propane gas to 2,617 customers in Lake, Seminole, Orange and Volusia Counties; (3) the 
Northwest Florida division, which provided electrkity to 12,598 customers in Jackson, Calhoun and Liberty Counties; 
(4) the Northeast Florida division, which provided electricity to 14,444 customers and propane gas to 1,394 
customers in Duval and Nassau Counties; and (5) the Nature Coast division, which provided propane gas to 2,230 
customers in Levy, Citrus, Hernando,.Manon and Pasco Counties. 

FPU formerly also provided water to customers in Nassau County. On March 27,2003, F?PU sold the assets of its 
water utility system to the City of Fernandha Beach. For additional information on this disposition, see 
"Discontinued Operations" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

- 4 -  

The economy in which the South Florida division operates relies somewhat on the migration of seasonal residents 
arid 'tourists during the winter season. However, small, year-round commercial and residential customers provide 
some degree of stability, lessening the irnpact of seasonality in the area. 

Seasonal residents and tourists also play a role in the results of the Central F l o ~ d a  division. However, the 1-4 
corridor, particularly in Seminole County's Lake Mary/Heathrow area, is producing a growing number of large 
business parks, individual corporate buildings and call centers, which may help stabilize results in the Central Florida 
division. Volusia County's economy is dominated by small and privately owned businesses, with the major employers 
being Progres's Energy and Florida Power & Gght which own and operate three power plants in the area. 

The Northwest division's growth relies on the economies in Jackson, Calhoun and Liberty Counties. All three of 
those counties are dependent upon a variety of apcultural industries d y  involved with dmber, peanuts, cotton 
and beef production. However, the largest employers within the three counties are the Federal, State and County 
governments? correction and rehabilitation centers. A new 907,000 square foot Family Dollar distribution center will 
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be constructed in 2004. The construction is scheduled to be complete in late fall with merchandise distribution ' 
begintllng in January 2005. There are also a number of smaller industries in the division's territory. 

-... . 
i. , 

In the Northeast division, the economy is centered around two large pape'r m i l l s ,  Rayonier, Inc. and Jefferson Smurfit 
Cop. In 2003, the two large paper m i l l s  accounted for 8.9% of the electtic segment's total operating revenues and 
3.4% of F'PU's total operating revenues, as well as 3.9% of the electric segment's total gross profit and 1.2% of FPU's 
total gross profit. 

€'TU does not produce energy and is therefore not a generating utillty. As a result, FPU's operations are not currently 
subject to the extensive environmental regulations applicable to energy producers. However, FT'U is involved in 
several environmental proceedings related to properties owned by FPU. See "Contingencies" in the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Natural Gas 

FPU receives all of its supply of natural gas at 13 City Gate Stations connected to Florida Gas Transmission 
Company's (FGT) pipeline system. Enron Corporation's forrner interest in FGT has been disposed of. Natural gas is 
primarily composed of methane, which is a colorless, odorless fuel that bums cleaner than many other traditional 
fossil fuels. Odorant, which enables one to readily detect a gas leak, is added by the Interstate Transmission Company 
and €TU. Natural gas is one of the most popular forms of energy today. It is used for heating, cooling, cooking, 
production of electricity and in many other ways by various industries. Increasingly, natural gas is being used in 
combination with other fuels to improve their environmental performance and decrease pollution. 

F'PU has adequate gate stations in each distribution system to ensure high levels of continuous service to its 
customers. The vast majority of the natural gas FPU distributes is purchased in the Gulf Coast region both on-shore 
and offshore. FTU has not experienced any supply availability issues or shortages of natural gas in recent history, nor 
does it expect any shortages in the foreseeable future. In fact, the U.S. Department of Energy estimates that there is 
more than a 60-year supply of natural gas reserves (for more information, see web 
s~te:http://www.faircount.com/we~04/energy/pdfs/power.pdf -page 5). 

FGT is the sole natural gas pipeline serving FPU in peninsular Florida and is under the jurisdiction of the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). WU uses FGT solely as a carrier of natural gas. All gas supplies for WU's 
traditional sales markets are independently procured by WU using gas marketers and producers. F'PU also transports 
natural gas for customers who purchase their own gas supplies and arrange for pipeline transportation. 

FPU has continued to be in full compliance with the North American Energy Standard Board's (NAESB) standards. 
The NAESB was fowled to develop uniform standards for the procurement, scheduling, transmission, invoicing, etc. 
of energy (natural gas and electricity) throughout the United States. 

FPU has gained experience directly contracting for gas supplies with marketers and producers while contracting for 
transportation services &om FGT. This experience has positioned FTU to be most effective in operating within an 
unbundled industry environment. FTU passes all he1 costs and associated savings on to its traditional sales 
customers. Additionally, F'PU has actively reduced demand charges it pays for the pipeline capacity by ''subletting" 
unused capacity, for short terms, to other sfippers on FGT's system Fi"U believes it is among Florida's lowest cost 
suppliers of natural gas. 

During 2003, FPU made "off-system sales" of natural gas to customers in areas of Fiorida not in FPU's service territory. 
The tariff for these sales permits for profit sharing between FPU and its customers. FTU has ceased its activity in off- 
system sales due to the risk associated with servicing these customers. Specifically, the natural gas market is in a period of 
increased price volatility, thus causing general price level increases above what has been historically experienced. As a 
result, the return on these off-system sales transactions did not justify the risk associated with carrying significantly higher 
customer account balances and the potential for bad debt. WU continues to maintain the off-system sales service rate 
schedule in its tariff and may explore opportunities for hture sales if they arise. 

Factors that affect WU's natural gas revenues include the rates charged to customers, mu's supply cost for natural 
gas purchased for resale, economic conditians in mu's service areas and weather. The weather can result in higher 
gas sales per day during the winter period, when gas is used for heating, as opposed to the summer season. Although 
the rules of +e l?l?SC pennit FTU to pass through to customers the price incurred for its gas supply, increases in 
F'PU's rates may cause customers to conserve or to use alternative energy sources. FPU's current portfolio of 

' 
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customers-is reasonably diverse, with the largest customers using natural gas for the generation of electricity. FPU is 
not dependent on any single natural gas customer for over ten percent of its total revenue. 

FPU provides unbundled gas service to its commercial natural gas customers, providing such customers with the 
option to purchase their natural gas supplies directly from F'PU or from third parties while conwacting for 
transportation services from FPU. FPU's operating results axe not adversely affected if the customer purchases its 
gas from FPU or from third parties because actual fuel costs are passed directly to customers and WU does not profit 
on fuel sales. FPU officially first offered unbundled services to commercial customers on August 1,2001. The FPSC 
approved various mechanisms that will allow FPU to be reimbursed for the incremental cost of providing unbundled 
services. 

Electric 

1.) 

i., ' 

F'PU provides electricity in the Northwest and Northeast divisions to customers in Jackson, Calhoun, Liberty and 
Nassau Counties in Florida. Wholesale electridty is purchased from two suppliers, Southern Company and JEA, 
formerly the Jacksonville Electric Authority. In 1996, long term fixed price purchased power contracts were executed 
with both suppliers that will continue through 2007. Southern Company provides electric power to the Northwest 
division and JEA provides electric power to the Northeast division. Less than 1% of FJ?U's power supply is 
purchased on an as available basis from a self-generating paper mill located in Femandina Beach. These long-term 
contracts allow WU to offer customers what it believes are among the lowest consumer electric rates in the State of 
Florida. 

Both the Northwest and Northeast divisions are located in Northern Florida and experience a variety of weather 
patterns. Hot summers and cold winters produce electric sales that are not highly seasonal in nature. 

No customer of the electric segment represents more than ten percent of €TU'S revenues. 

The electric utility industry has not been deregulated in the State of Florida. All customers within a given service or 
franchise area purchase from the single electricity provider in that area. 

Propane Gas 

FTU purchases its supply of propane gas from several different wholesale companies, including Dynegy- Gas Liquids 
Division, Inergy Propane LLC, Propane Resources, Sea3 of Tampa and Harper Industries. Propane gas is delivered 
to Florida by ocean-going barges to seaport terminals in Tampa and Ft, Lauderdale, by railcars and through the Dixie 
Pipeline terminus at Alma and Albany, Ga. FPU believes that the propane gas supply infrastructure is adequate to 
meet the needs of the industry in Florida for the foreseeable future. 

Propane gas is a non-pollutant and is therefore not as affected by environmental regulations as other petroleum 
products are. Propane gas is a hazardous material and as such is subject to strict code enforcement and safety 
requirements as outlined in the National Fire Protection Association (NFTA) Code 58, morida Model Building Code, 
NFPA 54 and various other state and local codes. 

As with natural gas, the sales volume of propane gas is affected by the season and the weather. Florida typically has a 
tourist season that coincides with the winter months; propane gas sold during that period is affected by tourism and 
the weather. The propane gas segment's sales volumes and revenues ate closely balanced between residential and 
commercial customers. Two of the strategies FPU is employing to become less weather dependant are concentrating 
on the burgeoning forklift propane gas cylinder exchange market and the marketing for propane gas using appliances 
that are not used for heating air. WU believes that water heaters and forklift cylinder exchange accounts are good 
ways to strive toward becoming less weather reliant. No customer of the propane gas segment represents more than 
ten percent of FPU's sales volume or revenues. 

Competition in the propane gas business helps FT'U provide its customers with low rates. The propane gas division 
competes directly with other propane gas and natural gas suppliers and electric companies. Major consolidation in the 
propane gas industry has and will continue to provide W U  with opportunities to expand its market share. W U  
competes on the basis of competitive pricing and customer service. 
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Regulation 

The natural gas and electric segments are highly regulated by the FPSC. Increases in the operating expenses of the 
regulated segments may require €TU to request increases in the rates charged to customers. The P S C  has granted F'PU 
the flexibility of autornaticaUy increasing expenses passed on to customers for certain fuel costs. Other operational 
expenses, such as pension and medical expenses, require FTU to petition the F'PSC for rate increases. The FTSC is likely 
to grant rate increases to off-set increased expenditures necessary for business operations. F'PU successfully petitioned for 
electric rate increases which will become effective March 17,2004, and anticipates petitioning for n a d  gas rate increases 

2004. 

The F'PSC has the authority to regulate €TU'S rates, conditions of service, issuance of securities and certain other . 

matters affecting FPU's natural gas and electric operations. As a result, WSC regulation has a significant effect on 
F'PU'S results of operations. "he FPSC approves rates that are intended to permit a specified rate of return on 
investment. FPU's rate tariffs allow the cost of natural gas and electricity to be passed through to customers. 

' 

Franchises 

FPU holds franchises in each of the incorporated municipalities where it provides natural gas and electricity. These 
franchises generally have terms ranging horn 15 to 30 years and terminate on varying dates. FPU is currently in 
negotiations with some of the municipalities in which its franct-Lises have lapsed. F'PU continues to provide services to 
these municipalities and does not anticipate any interruption in its service. 

Employees 

As of December 31,2003 FPU had 337 total employees, of which 6 were part time. Of these employees, 101 were 
covered under union contracts with two labor unions, the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers and the 
International Chemical Workers Union. FPU believes &at its labor relations with its employees are good. 

Research Expenditures and Environmental Regulations 
i 

Because FPU does not produce energy and is therefore not a generating utility, FPU's operations are not currently 
subject to the extensive environmental regulations applicable to energy producers. However, FPU is affected by 
environmental regulations relating to the cleaning-up of soil contamination on land owned by WU. See "Contingen- 
cies" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

FPU does not engage in research activities. 

Competition 
_ I .  

Generally, FPU does not face substantial competition with respect to its natural gas and electric services due to the fact 
that in municipalities and other areas where FPU provides natural gas and electric services, no other utility directly renders 
such services. There is, however, competition in these areas among l3PU and providers of alternate sources of energy. 
WU's propane gas services are unregulated and therefore subject to competition from other suppliers of propane gas, as 
well as suppliers of natural gas, electricity and alternative energy sources. Competition in the propane gas services segment 
is based primarily on price and customer service. 

.. ' 

Available Information 

FPU files or furnishes periodic reports including its Form 10-Qs, Form 10-IC, and Form 8-16, and any amendments 
thereto, with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). The public may read and copy any materials fled 
with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public 
may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The 
SEC maintains an Internet site ('httP:/ /www.sec.rrov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and 
other information filed electronically with &e SEC. Additional information about FTU may be obtained from F%'U's 
web site (http://www. fpuc.com). 
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Item 2. Properties 

m3U owns office and warehouse facilities in Northwest, Northeast, Central, West Central and South Florida w$ch 
are used for operations and storage by the natural gas, electric, and propane segments. Additionally, FTU owns 
various substations, easements and other assets located throughout its service areas which are utilized in its 
operations. In the electric segment at December 31,2003, F'PU owned 22 miles of electric transmission lines located 
in Northeast Florida and 1,053 miles of electrk distribution lines located in-Northeast and Northwest Florida. In the 
natural gas segment, FPU owns natural gas mains that distribute gas through 1,453 miles of gas main located in 
Central and South Florida, The propane gas segment is operated by WU's subsidiary and has bulk storage facilities 
and tank installations on the customers' premises. 

FPLJ owns a three-story, 28,620 square foot building in West Palm Beach where its headquarters are located. 

All of the properties of FPU and the shares of Flo-Gas Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary, are subject to a lien 
collateralizing the funded indebtedness of FPU under its Mortgage Indenture. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

Environmental. FPU currently uses or used in the past, in connection with its operations, several contamination sites with 
respect to which there is now pending or threatened environmental litigation and is in the process of investigating and 
assessing that litigation; see "Contingencies" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. l?PU intends to 
vigorously defend its rights in this litigation. FTU has insurance to cover a portion of any losses or expenses incurred as a 
result of this litigation and plans to apply to the FPSC for rate relief on any uninsured losses or expenses. FPU believes 
that the aggregate of all future contamination assessment and remedial costs, legal fees and other related expenses will not 
exceed the combined sum of any insurance proceeds received and any rate relief granted. 

Violet Skipoer. PC Buvers, Inc. and Thomas Wade Skbper v. Florida Public Utilities Company, Case No. CL 00- 
10131-AF, Circuit Court of the Fifteenth judicial Circuit, Palm Beach County, Florida. On October 18,2000, 
Plaintiffs sued FPU for damages allegedly resulting from a fire on Plaintiffs' property. Plaintiffs allege that EIPU 
failed to properly install and/or maintain electric power lines, utility poles and related equipment located on 
Plaintiffs' land and that FPU's negligence caused a €ire that spread to and destroyed a warehouse. WU denied 
Plaintiffs' claims and defended same on the theory that the tire started within the warehouse/office facility and 
not from its electrical equipment. Plaintiffs alleged damages in excess of $1,000,000. The warehouse served as 
the office for PC Buyers, Inc. PC Buyers, Inc. was in the business of purchasing surplus vehicles and heavy 
equipment for resale. The warehouse contained property waiting to be resold. Much of this property was 
destroyed in the &-e, Trial in this matter occurred during the week of December 2,2003-December 5,2003. The 
jury returned a verdict in favor of FPU, finding no liability on the part of F'PU for the fire. The Court entered a 
final judgment on the j l v y ' s  verdict on January 21,2004. Plaintiffs had h r t y  (30) days or until February 20,2004 
to file an appeal of the final judgment. Similarly, FPU had until February 20,2004 to file a motion to tax costs. 

" €TU proposed to Plaintiffs that it would waive its right to recover costs and potential attorney fees if Plaintiffs 
did not pursue an appeal of the h a 1  judgment. FPU received a letter from Plaintiffs' counsel advising that 
Plaktiffs agreed to waive any right to appeal in exchange for FPU waiving its right to seek attorney's fees and 
costs agakst the Plaintiffs. On March 29,2004, Counsel for FPU was informed by the Court's Clerk that the 
Court has signed and entered the Dismissal Order. A copy is in the mail at the present b e .  Hence, this matter 
is closed, with no further appeals. 

Glen Simon v. Florida Public Utilities Cornpanv. Gapss. Inc. and Tames Celi, Case No. CA03-02209 AJ, Circuit 
Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, Palm Beach County, Florida. This case arises out of an explosion in the garage 
of co-Defendant James CeK ("Celi") that allegedly resulted from the negligent installation of a water heater by co- 
Defendant Gapss, Inc. ("Gapss"). Prior to the explosion, FTU had contracted with Gapss to install a water heater 
and stand in co-Defendant Celi's garage. Plaintiff filed his Complaint on February 27,2003 against WU, Gapss and 
Celi. Plaintiff has voluntarily dismissed J3PU from this case without prejudice. FPU previously asserted a cross-claim 
against Celi for contribution and a cross-claim against Gapss for contribution, indemnification, and breach of 
contract. Celi also asserted a cross-claim against WU for contribution. Both FTU and Celi have dismissed their 
respective cross-claims agaktst each other without prejudice. FPU will be dismiss ing its cross-claim against Gapss 
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without prejudice. Upon the filing of F'PU's dismissal of its cross-claim against Gapss, €TU d no longer be a party 
to this action. 

James F. Celi v. Gapss. Inc. a/k/a Gas Appliance Piping Sales & Service. Inc., Case No. 502003CA0091 lOXXbNAJ, 
Circuit Court of the FifteenthJudcial Circuit, Palrn Beach County, Florida. This case arises out of an explosion in 
Claimant James Celi's ("Celj") garage that allegedly resulted from the negligent installation of a water heater by Gapss, 
Inc. ("Gapss"). Prior to the explosion, WU had contracted With Gapss to install a water heater and stand in Celi's 
garage. Although Mr. Celi prevlously indicated he was considering filing a claim against FPU, Mr. Celi has filed a 
lawsuit agarnst Gapss only on August 25,2003, In the event a lawsuit is filed against WU, FPU intends to vigorously 
defend a p s t  the claim. 

Apart from the litigation described above, F'PU is also involved with other various claims and litigation incidental to 
its business. In the opinion of management, none of these other claims and litigation will have a material adverse 
effect on FPU's results of operations or its financial condition. 

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

7 . .  , 

N.one. 

PNLT I1 

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 

QUARTERLY STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS PAID 

F'PU's common shares are traded on the Amencan Stock Exchange under the symbol WU. The quarterly cash 
dividends declared and the reported last sale pice range per share of F'PU common stock for the most recent two 
yews were as follows: 

2003 2002 
Stock Prices Dividends Stock Prices Dividends 

Quarter ended Low - High Declared Low - I-Iigh Declared 

March 31 g 13.90 - 96 i5.45 3 0.1425 $ 13.01 - $15.56 $0.1388 
June 30 14.45 - 17.05 0.1475 13.67 - 16.05 0.1425 
September 30 14.85 - 18.00 0.1475 11.80 - 14.55 0.1425 
December 31 15.00 - 16.34 0.1475 12.10 - 15.30 0.1425 

On February 24,2004, there were approximately 2,724 holders of record of FPU's Common Stock. 

It is FpU's intent to continue to pay quarterly dividends for the foreseeable future. Dividend policy is reviewed on an 
ongoing basis by WU's Board of Directors and is dependent upon WU's future earnings, cash flow, hancial 
condition, capital requirements and other factors. 

WU's Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust restricts the amount that is available for cash 
dividends. At December 31,2003, approhately $4.3 million of retained earnings were free of such restriction and 
therefore available for the payment of dividends. 

€TU has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (see Notes to Financial Statements) but does not presently have any stock 
option or restricted stock plans. 

Item 6. Selected Financial Data 
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 
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Revenues 
Gross profit 
Income from continuing operations 
Income from disconhued operations 
Net income 
Earnings per c o m o n  share (basic & diluted): 

Continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
Total 

Dividends declared per comrnon share 

Total assets (3) 

Utility plant - net (3) 

Current debt 
Long-term debt 
Common shareholders‘ e q i v  

$ 102,723 
37,733 
2,522 
9,901 

12,423 

0.64 
2.53 
3.17 
0.59 

162,990 
108,342 

2,278 
52,500 
41,463 

$ 88,461 
34,929 
2,76 1 (‘1 

GO2 
3,363 (l) 

0.70 (1) 
0.16 
0.8 G (l) 
0.57 

150,620 
103,7 52 
19,183 
52,500 
30,883 

$ 89,178(21 
29,940 
2,45 G 

596 
3,052 

0.64 
0.16 
0.80 
0.55 

145,411(4 
9 3,5 I 0 (4 
20,430 
52,500 
29,329 

81,954 
28,463 
2,665 

623 
3,288 

0.70 
0.17 
0.87 
0.53 

1 14,009 
80,227 
17,900 
23,500 
27,510 

Notes to the Selected Financial Data: 

(1) 2002 and 1999 include gains afier income taxes from the sale of non-utillq real property of $70, or 
$0.02 per share (ZOOZ), and $83, 01: $0.02 per share (1999). 

(2) The acquisitions in late 2001 added approximately $10,700 to Total assets and $3,975 to Utility 
plant - net. Revenue recorded in 2001 from the acquisitions was approximately $326. 

(3) The Total assets and Utility plant - net for prior periods has been restated to conform to SFAS No. 
143, “Accoundng for Asset Retirement Obligations.” (for additional information see “Impact of 
Recent Accounting Standards” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements}. 

On December 3,2002, FFU entered into an agreement to sell the assets of its water utility system to 
the City of Fernandha Beach. The transaction closed on March 27,2003 (for additional information 
see “Discontinued Operations” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Revenues, Gross 
profit and Utility plant-net do not include disconhued operations 

$ 71,697 
27,048 

3,043 (1) 

3,529 
-486 

0.76 (1) 

0.12 
0.8 8 
0.50 

101,147 

13,000 
23,500 
25,866 

75,774 

Item 7 .Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
contained herein. In the following discussion, all comparisons are with the corresponding items in the prior year. 

Forward-Looking Statements 

This report and the documents incorporated by referenced herein contain “forward-looking” Statements within the 
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended. “Forward-looking” Statements are any statements that are not based on historical information. 
Statements other than statements of historical facts included in this report, including, without limitation, statements 
regarding WU’s future financial position, business strategy, budgets, projected costs and plans and objectives of 
management for future operations, are “forward-looking” statements. Forward-looking statements generally can be 
identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “my,”  “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” ‘‘intend,” “plan,” 
ccbelieve,’7 “seek,‘, ‘cestimate” or “continue” or the negative of such words or variations of such words and similar 
expressions. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions, which are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is 
expressed or forecasted in such forward-looking statements and F”U can give no assurance that such forward-looking 
statements prove to be correct. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those 

’ 
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expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, or "cautionary statements," include, but are not lunited to, 
weather conditions, changes in laws or regulations, changes in the market environment, restrictions on WU's ability to 
raise capital on favorable terms, any direct or indirect effects of terrorist threats and activities, FpU's successfdy 
petitioning for and receiving rate increases, F'PU's ability to identify attractive acquisition opportunities at favorable prices 
and to successfully and timely complete and integrate them. 

Overview 

FPU is organized into two regulated business segments, natural gas and electric, and one non-regulated business 
segment, propane gas. 

FPU's two regulated business segments are regulated by the Florida Public Service Commission ("FTSC"). As part of 
this regulation, the WSC set the rates €TU is permitted to charge to its customers. The rates approved by the F'PSC 
allow WU a specified rate of return on its regulated investment and to pass through to its customers changes in the 
costs of its gas and electriciq and, in some cases, certain of F'PU's overhead costs. The FPSC previously viewed FT'U 
as operating three distinct regulated entities: (i) Northwest 'Florida electric, (ii) Northeast Florida electric and (G) 
natural gas, which includes Palm Beach County and the Sanford and DeLand area in Central Florida. Accordingly, 
the FPSC formerly required that FPU file three separate rate cases with the WSC in order to recover through rate 
relief the effects of inflation and construction expenditures for all such entities. 

On August 14,2003, FTU filed for electric rate increases and petitioned to consolidate the two electric entities into 
one. The request included recovery for recent increases to certain operating expenses, including pension and 
insurance expenses, of approximately $4.0 million. FPU went before the F'PSC on February 18,2004, at which time 
the FPSC granted the petition to consolidate the rate cases on a going forward basis and granted a $1.8 million 
increase in revenue. The effective date for the ixlcrease was March 17,2004. 

€?l?U is planning to file a request for natural gas rate relief with the FPSC in the summer of 2004. FPU will include in 
the filing recovery of $9.0 million €or environmental liabilities (included on the balance sheet in other assets, other 
regulatory assets - environmental), along with recovery of certain expense increases. In addition, FPU has requested 
approval horn the FPSC for inclusion in the rate base of the g o o d d  and intangible assets associated with its 
acquisition of Atlantic Utilities. The FTSC has not ruled on the appropriate treatment of the goodwill and intansble 
assets and has requested that FT'U re-address t h i s  issue in the filulg for natural gas rate relief in 2004. 

Prior to these rate increases, FPU last received rate increases for the Northwest Florida electric division in February 
1994, for the Northeast Floiida electric division in November 1989 and for the natural gas segment in May 1995. 

On March 27,2003, FPU sold certain assets compriskg its former water u a t y  system to the City of Femandina Beach 
("City"). The City paid FPU $19.2 d o n  In cash at closing and agreed to pay future consideration of approximately $7.4 
million to be paid in annual installments until February 15,2010. The net proceeds from the sale received at closing were 
used to pay down short-term bank debt. F'PU recognized and recorded the present value of the long-term receivable of 
$5.7 million, using a discount rate of 4.34%. The long-term receivable has been subsequently increased to recognize 
interest income of approximately $190,000. The fair value of the consideration is approximately $25.0 million. "lie gain 
on'the disposal of discontinued operations, including the income from discontinued operations for the first quarter of 
20'03,Was $15.8 million, or $9.9.million after tax, and has subsequently been adjusted to $15.9 &on, or $9.9 million after 
tax, due to adjustments to sales related expenses that were previously estimated. The assets of the water segment amount 
to approximately $10.2 d o n ,  or less than 10% of WU's assets including water. For the year ended December 31,2002, 
the water segment's operating income before income taxes was approximately 12% of total operating income before 
income taxes. 

--:  

FPU's strategy is to concentrate on developing stronger relationships with its customers, including builders and 
developers. FPU is positioning itself as a total energy company, not just a supplier of electricity or gas. Included in the 
strategy is a plan to increase the rate of future growth by concentrating on increasing customers and territory coverage 
using improved marketing programs, along With acquiring small energy related companies, particularly propane gas 
companies. In 2001, two acquisitions added approximately 7,300 customers. During 2002, FPU made another acquisition 
comprising less than 10% of its assets, which added approximately 1,200 customers. The cost of each of these 
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acquisitions was less than 10% of FPU's assets and they provide less than 10% of WU's revenues and operating income 
excluding income taxes. 

Pension expenses are projected to continue increasing into 2004 and 2005. Current actuarial estimates show pension 
expense increasing by approximately $487,000 in 2004 over 2003. €TU allocates its pension and other overhead 
expenses across its three operathg segments. The 2004 expenses reladng to natural gas and electricity should be 
recovered in the rate proceedmgs with the F'PSC, although hrther increases in 2005 and thereafter would require 
future rate increase requests to be filed with the FPSC. Recovery of the expense allocated to the propane gas segment 
will depend on current market conditions in the propane industry. Provided the increases experienced are' industry- 
wide, FPU anticipates the ability to increase rates to recover the expenses while remaining competitive. 

Recent industry events along with the threat of terrorism and continued increases in medkal costs have resulted in 
increased insurance expenses. In 2003, medscal insurance costs increased approximately $256,000. Liability insurance, 
including workers' cornpensadon, increased approximately $451,000. These costs are expected to remain at this level 
in 2004 and will most likely increase in 2005. P U  made revisions to its medical plan and is seeking rate relief in both 
the natural gas and electric segments to recover a majority of the effect of the plan on operating income. Future 
insurance increases may require additional rate increase requests to be filed with the F'PSC. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Discussion of Operating Results: 

Please note that water has been excluded from operating results and is classified as disconhued operations. See 
"Discontinued Operations" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information. 

Gross Profit 

Gross profit is defined as gross operating revenues less fuel costs, conservation and unbundling costs, and taxes based 
on revenues that are passed through to customers. FPU believes that gross profit provides a more meaningful basis 
for evaluating utility operations than gross operating revenues because fuel, conservation and unbundling costs along 
with taxes passed through to customers have no effect on results of operations and fluctuations in such costs distort 
the relationship of gross operating revenues between periods. Gross profit is the net revenue retained by €TU for 
operating purposes. 

Il, 

1.. , 

Gross Profits 
(dollars in thousands) 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 

Year Ended December 31, 
- 2003 2002 2001 

$21,147 $19,058 $15,854 
11,532 11,279 10,980 
5,054 4,592 3,106 

~ Contributing to variations in gross profit are the effects of seasonal weather conditions, the &nhg of rate increases, 
acquisitions and the migration of winter residents and tourists to Horida during the winter season. 

Natural Gas 

Natural gas gross profit increased $2.1 d o n ,  or 119'0, in 2003. Gross profit increased primady due to a non- 
recurring early termination fee of $1.5 m&on received from Lake Worth Generation U C  for the cancellation of a 
contract in late March 2003. F'PU negotiated a new contract with the City of Lake Worth which resulted in a 
reduction of annual revenue by $231,000 compared to the previous contract. Approximately $300,000 of the increase 
in gross profit was attributable to an increase in residential and commercial customer sales. Overall, average 
customers increased in 2003 by 3% due to normal growth, although this was offset by a decrease in usage per 
customer, most likely due to d d e r  weather and a higher costs of gas. Revenue associated with FPU's area expansion 
program added $87,000, relating to carryhg charges for construction charges that are due from customers. Late fee 
revenue increased by $120,000. 
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Natural gas gross profit increased $3.2 million, or 20%, in 2002, primarily due to WU's acquisition of a natural gas 
company and a pipeline contract with a Lake Worth generation facility that added over $1.1 million of gross profit. 
Transportation sales increased $800,000 in 2002, primarily due to a new 'unbundling' program that allows 
commercial customers to purchase their own natural gas. As a result, F'PU added 184 new transportation customers, 
an increase of over 200%. However, these increases were primarily attributable to commercial customers transferring 
to transportation service, and were offset by fewer commercial customers and lower sales. Revenue also increased by 
over $500,000 due to late payment fees and charges for reconnecting services. Overall, average customers increased 
12% and units sold increased 3%, both due to the acquisitions and normal growth. The increases in units sold from 
normal growth and acquisitions were offset by decreases in units sold per customer. 

Electric 

Electric gross profit increased $253,000, or 27'0, in 2003, primarily due to an increase in late fees of $226,000. Gross 
profits improved despite a decrease in revenues of $1.4 million, or 3%, in 2003. The decrease in revenues was due to a 
decrease in the costs of fuel, which are typically passed on to customers. Customer growth was up 2% due to normal 
growth. This growth was offset by a 4% decline in usage per customer most likely due to milder weather. 

Electric gross profit increased $299,000 in 2002. " h i s  was attributed to average customer growth of 2% along with a 
5% increase in units sold (excludhg General Service Large Demand (GSLD) customers). GSLD customers are 
commercial or industrial customers who pay on both usage and demand due to the higher service requirements. 
Higher units sold per customer along with the growth in customers contributed to a 5% increase in sales in 2002. 
.This increase was offset by a $30,000 reduction in gross profit due a recording of potential over earnings in 2002. 
The 2002 earnings were subject to review by the FPSC, and in 2003, the FTSC granted FTU permission to use the 
over earnings to increase its storm damage reserves. 

-...; i.. .. 

Propane gas gross profit increased $462,000, or lo%, in 2003 primarily due to the acquisition of a propane gas 
company in late 2002 and the construction and sale of two storage tanks at a Lake Worth high school, which 
attributed to $106,000 of the increase. An increase in late fees and the assessment of regulatory compliance fees 
beginning in the first quarter of 2003 for propane gas customers also contributed to the increase. These increases 
were offset by refinement of an estimate for propane gas inventory held at customer premises in the third quarter. In 
addition, the gross profit per unit sold decreased as FPU elected to reduce the prof3 margin for some customers in an 
effort to remain competitive. The number of customers increased by 8% primarily due to the acquisition, and usage 
per customer increased. 

Propane gas gross profit increased in 2002 by $1.5 million, or 48%, primarily due to two acquisitions. Average 
customers increased by 36% and units sold increased 57%. Revenues increased due to colder weather in December 
2002. 

Operating Expenses (excluding income taxes) 

Operating expenses, which include 'Operations' and 'Taxes other than income taxes', exclude fuel costs, conservation 
and'unbundling costs, and taxes based on revenues that are passed hough  to customers. These expenses have no 
effect on results of operations as they are passed on through revenue and fluctuations in such costs distort the 
relationship of operating expenses between periods. These costs are grouped on a separate line of the income 
statement as 'Cost of fuel and taxes based on revenues'. 

Operating Expenses (excluding income taxes) 
(dollars ,h thousands) 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 

Year Ended December 31, 
2003 2002 2001 

$1 5,957 $ 14,767 $ 12,559 
9,283 8,299 8,087 
4,800 4,094 2,675 
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Natural gas operathg expenses, excluding income taxes, increased $1.2 d o n ,  or 8%, in 2003. Administrative expenses 
increased $668,000 and are discussed separately in the administrative expenses section. Other operating expense increased 
$337,000, partially due to an increase in underground natural gas line location expense of $175,000 that was caused by an 
increase in the quantity of natural gas line locations performed due to construction related projects. Other contributing 
factors to the increase include higher depreciation expense of $278,000 and an increase of $206,000 in maintenance 
expenses in the hrst quarter related to an abandoned construction project for a main insertion failure at Royal Park Bridge 
in South Florida. These increases were offset by the collection of an expected bad debt of $172,000 related to the contract 
with Lake Worth Generation in the first quarter of 2003. 

Natural gas operating expenses, excluding income taxes, increased $2.2 d o n ,  or 189'0, in 2002. Admitlistrative expenses 
increased $713,000 and are discussed separately in the administrative expenses section. The increase in 2002 was also 
caused by an increase in customer administration expenses due to higher bad debt expense and payroll. F"U increased 
collection efforts to reduce bad debt expense by focusing on collections and the adequacy of deposits. Distribution 
expenses also increased because of more line locations and an increase in the cost per location by the contractor. Other 
factors contributing to the increase for 2002 are increased depreciation expense of $333,0OO and increased taxes other than 
income taxes ( m d y  consisting of payroll and property taxes) of $151,000, both primarily attributable to an asset 
acquisition in 2001. 

Electric operating expenses, excludrng income taxes, increased $984,000, or 12%, in 2003. Administrative costs, 
discussed below in more detail, increased $376,000. Customer Accounts expense hcreased $141,000, due mostly to 
uncollectible accounts of $39,000 and temporary staffing of $37,000. Depreciation and maintenance expenses 
increased $229,000 and $79,000, respectively, due to increases in plant assets. 

Electric operating expenses, excluding income taxes, increased $212,000, or 3%, in 2002. Administrative costs, 
discussed below in more detail, increased $393,000. Maintenance expenses decreased $272,000, primarily due to 
additional expense for substation work, txansmission line access work and overhead line balancing in the prior year. 

L 

Propane Gas 

Propane gas operating expenses, excluding income taxes, increased $706,000, or 17%, in 2003. Administrative 
expenses, discussed below, increased $321,000, and other operating expenses increased $275,000 primarily due to the 
acquisition of a company in late 2002. Depreciation expense also increased $71,000 due to increases in plant assets. 

Propane gas operating expenses, excluchg income taxes, increased $1.4 million, or 53%, in 2002. Administrative 
expenses, discussed below, increased $21 3,000, payroll for operating and maintenance expenses increased $805,000 
and depreciation expense increased $1 14,000. The increases in payroll for operating and maintenance expenses and 
depreciation expense were caused primarily by acqukitions of propane gas companies in 2001 and 2002. '. 

Administrative E.xpense.r 

Administrative expenses increased $1.4 d o n ,  or 25%, In 2003. Ths increase was primarily caused by an increase kt 
insurance expense of $451,000 caused by higher medic4 costs and increased premiums for worker's compensation 
and general liability. The increase in premiums resulted from increased payroll and higher insurance rates. Pension 
expense increased $586,000 primarily as a result of the overall impact from the stock market decreases in 2001 and 
2002. Addltionally, other outside services increased approximately $191,000 mostly due to Sarbanes-Oxley 
compliance, which required increased accounting related services, including internal auditing services to evaluate and 
improve WU's procedures and internal controls. I?PU also began utilizing additional outside tax related services in 
2003. 

Administrative expenses for 2002 increased $1.3 million, or 31%. Increased claims for general liability and medical 
self-insurance resulted in increased expenses of $248,000 and $273,000, respectively. Workers' compensation expense 
also increased $207,000 as a result of increased payroll and slightly %her rates. Pension expense increased $83,000 
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piimady as a result of the overall decline in the stock market. Insurance premiums also increased $105,000, pdmarily 
in the latter part of 2002, contributing to the overall administrative expense increase. In addition, outside services 
increased as a result of a new internal audit program to help FPU meet the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. 
This new program increased expenses for the year by $46,000. Other increases in outside services relating to 
accounting fees accounted for an additional increase of $39,000. Miscellaneous administrative expenses increased as a 
dkect result of expensing $1 18,000 of costs associated with a stock offering that was not consummated. 

Interest Charges and Other 

Interest Charges 

Interest charges consist of interest on bonds, short-term borrowings and customer deposits. In 2003, total interest charges 
decreased $25,000. Interest on short-term borrowings decreased $249,000, as a result of the decrease in notes payable, 
offset by a decrease in interest on the allowance for hnds used during construction of $180,000 as a result of completing a 
generation pipeline in 2002. 

Interest on long-term debt in 2002 increased $1.3 million due to two additional bonds issued in September and 
November of 2001 totaling $29.0 &on. The bonds were primarily used to frnance acquisitions, fund a major Lake 
Worth Generation pipeline project and to reduce mu's short-term debt. The offsetting decrease in short-term debt 
interest charges was $502,000. 

Other consists of income and expense horn FPU's merchandise and services, gains or losses on disposal of property 
and other miscellaneous income or deductions. FTU's merchandise and services activities include the sale of 
merchandise, installation and other contract work. Merchandise and service profitability decreased approximately 
$114,000 in 2003 due to changes in markedng personnel that resulted in decreased focus on merchandise sales and 
product knowledge. Other income decreased approximately $196,000, $112,000 of which was due to an adjustment 
required by the FPSC reclassiFg interest income to the liability reserve. In 2002, FPU sold non-udfity property for a 
gam of $112,000, further reducing the amount of expense in 2002 compared to 2003. 

Merchandise and service revenue and expenses both increased in 2002, primarily due to the gas division's 
conservation program that offers rebates to customers for gas merchandise purchases. Profitability has decreased due 
to increased costs of installing piping and servicing of appfiances. The South Florida merchandise revenue remained 
relatively flat due to the effects of road construction outside of the sales facility. 

As discussed previously, FPU sold substantially all of the assets of its water division to the City of Fernandina Beach 
on March 27,2003. The sale was made pursuant to a "threat of condemnation" during the fourth quarter of 2002. 
W U  has elected (for tax purposes) to defer the gain on the sale of the assets pursuant to Code Section 1033 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (IRC). Section 1033 allows nonrecogmtion of gain if property is disposed as a result 
of threat of  condemnation and property that is similar or related in service or use is purchased to replace the property 
disposed. To qualify, the replacement property must be purchased within the replacement period which beghs on 
the earlier of date of disposition (March 27,2003) or date of threat of condemnation (December 31,2002) and ending 
tuk' years after the close of the year of sale (December 31,2005). For real property, the replacement period is 
extended to three years (December 31,2006). FPU intends to purchase property that is similar or related in service or 
use within the replacement period. In the first, second and third quarter, the related deferred tax liability was 
included in current taxes. As of year end, it 1:s included in deferred taxes payable. 

-,, -', 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Portions of FPU's business are seasonal, and accordingly, short-term debt is used to meet working capital 
requirements primarily during periods of lower sales. FTU also borrows under h e s  of credit to finance portions of 
its capital expenditures and acquisitions, pending refinancing at a later date through the issuance of equity or long- 
term debt, depending upon prevailing market conditions. 
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On March 27,2003, FPU received $19.2 &on in cash, along with future consideration valued at $5.7 d o n  
discounted to present value for the sale of its water division (for additional information see "Discontinued 
Operations" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). 

In April 2003, FTU retired an expiring $20.0 d o n  h e  of credit. The line of credit had a $16.1 d o n  outstanding 
balance on March 27,2003, that was repaid uskg proceeds &om the sale of the water division. 

On Apd  1,2003, FbU obtained a new $12.0 d o n ,  thtrty-nine month line of credit (IZOC") that matures on June 
30,2006. As of December 31,2003, the outstanding balance on the LOC is $2.3 million. WU reserves $1.0 million 
of the LOC to cover expenses for any major storm repaks kt its Northwest Florida division. An additional $250,000 
of the LOC is reserved for a letter of credit' insuring propane facilities. The lower credit h e  and change of banks 
resulted from a more restrictive banking environment in 2003, as compared to 2000 when the expiring credit h e  was 
established. Due to the current business environment, FiPU will not be as leveraged in 2003 as it was in the prior three 
years. Notes payable, long-term debt and preferred stock on December 31,2003 comprised 57% of total 
capitalization, with common stock equity of 43%, whereas such securities comprised 70% of total capitalization with 
30% of common stock equity as of December 31,2002. The stronger equity ratio was a result of the sale of the water 
assets for a $9.9 million gain, net of income taxes. 

Construction expenditures are budgeted at approximately $15.0 million in 2004, which will include system upgrades 
to electric facilities. In 2003, $9.7 d o n  was spent on construction that related mostly to system expansions and 
replacements. The amount was lower than the $14.1 d o n  spent in 2002 primarily due to a $1.5 d o n  contribution 
received in 2003 due to the early termination of a contract with Lake Worth Generation, I;LC which, for accounting 
purposes, was treated as a reduction in construction expenditures, and approximately $2.0 million of additional 
construction in 2002 relating to the Lake Worth generation project. In 2001, $13.4 d o n  of capital expenditures 
included $3.1 d o n  to begin construction of the gas line to the generation faciky. F'PU currently has no material 
commitments for construction expenditures. 

Addtional financing of approximately $12.0 d o n  will be needed to finance projected construction in 2004. 
Without additional fmancing, the system upgrades would be deferred. Based on FTU's current financing structure and 
business environment, it is Iikely the additional fhancing will be provided by the issuance of equity in 2004. This 
disclosure does not constitute an offer of any securities of FPU for sale. F'PU anticipates capital expenditure 
requirements for 2005 of $11.8 million. The equity issuance expected in 2004, along With the capital resulting from 
normal operations, will be sufficient to fund these expenditures. 

Net cash flow provided by continuing operating activities decreased slightly from 2002. Fluctuations in the 
discontinued operations income, deferred income taxes, and accounts payable were mostly related to the sale of the 
water division. In 2002, FPU had funds classified as restricted proceeds from the private activity bond acquired in 
late 2001. As construction progressed, the balance of these restricted proceeds decreased, and was fully unrestxicted 
in 2003. 

OnJuly 1,2002, WU affected a four-for-three stock split to the record holders of June 14,2002 in the form of a 
stock dividend. All information related to the Common Stock has been restated to reflect the stock split. 

Long-term debt has sinking fund payments that begin in 2008. Lines of credit are generally €or three years and are 
renewed at that h e .  

Discontinued Operations 

Water Sewice 
On March 27,2003, FTU sold certain assets comprising its former water utihty system to the City of Femandina 
Beach ("City"). The City paid FPU $19.2 million in cash at closing and agreed to pay future consideration of 
approximately $7.4 million io be paid in hs tahen t s  sumadzed  below until February 15,2010. The net proceeds 
from the sale received at closing were used to repay the outstanding balances of notes payable to a bank. FPU 
recognized and recorded the present value of the long-term receivable of $5.7 d o n ,  using a discount rate of 4.34%. 
The long-term receivable has been subsequently increased to recognize interest income of $190,000. The fair value of 
the consideration is approxknately $25.0 million. The gain on the dsposat of discontinued operations, including the 
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income from cbscontinued operations for the hrst quarter of 2003, was $15.8 d o n ,  or $9.9 d o n  after tax, and has 
subsequently been adjusted to $15.9 million, or $9.9 d o n  after tax, due to adjustments to sales related expenses 
that were previously estimated. The assets of the water segment amount to approximately $10.2 d o n ,  or less than 
10% of F'PU's assets including water. 

The accompanying consolidated hancial statements have been restated for all periods presented for the discontinued 
operations of the water division. F'PU did not cease recording depreciation expense due to regulatory requirements 
and continued to record depreciation through the sale date of March 27,2003. The total net plant amounted to 
approximately $9.7 d o n ,  and the net assets less liabilities amounted to approximately $8.9 rndhon at the date of 
sale. The assets and liabilities of the water division have been included in current assets and current liabilities as of 
December 31,2002, as assets and liabilities held for sale. 

Estimated Annual Future Value of Consideration due from the City for years following December 31, 
2003 are as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Resukts of discontinued operations were as follows: 

I Results of Water Division I Year lmded 
December 31, 
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The major balance sheet classes included in assets and liabilities of discontinued operations in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets, as of December 31,2002, are as follows: 

Major Balance Sheet Classes - Water Division December 3 1 , 
(dollars in thousands): 2002 

Assets 

396 

Current liabilities 

T n t a l  $ 1.272 

Acquisitions 
In October 2001, W U  acquired 2-Gas Company, Inc., a propane gas service distribution company, in a stock for 
stock transaction valued at approximately $600,000. The acquisition added about 1,000 customers to the propane gas 
operation in the Northeast Florida &vision. 

In December 2001, WU acquired certain net assets of Atlantic Utilities, the Florida operation of Southern Union 
Company in a cash transaction valued at approximately $10.0 million. Atlandc Utilities served about 4,400 natural gas 
customers in New Smyma Beach and about 1,900 propane gas customers in Central and South Ronda. 

The excess of the consideration paid over the e s k a t e d  fair value, or the depreciated original cost for regulated 
entities, of net assets including intangibles acquired in both the Atlantic Utihties and 2-Gas acquisitions, was 
approximately $3.1 million. This was recorded as g o o d d  and in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 142, is not being amortized. The natural gas portion of this amount is approximately $1.5 
million. 

Fair Market Value of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in 2001 
(dollars in thousands) 

Utility plant 
Natural gas 
Propane gas 

_ I r  Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Net utility plant 

Cuwen t Assets 
. '  " ' . Cash 

Accounts receivable 
Inventories 

Total current assets 

A?ZANTIC 

$ 4,802 
1,246 
(2,195) 
3,853 

99 
212 
311 

2-GAS 

$ 
333 

333 

14 
23 
17 
54 

Goodwill-Natural gas 
Goodwill-Propane gas 
Intangibles-Natural gas 
Intangibles-Propane gas 
Deferred charges 

Total other assets 

1,514 
1,412 
1,900 

930 
348 

6.104 

199 

5 

204 

Current Liabilities 
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Interest accrued 
Other accruals and payables 
Customer deposits 

Total current liabilities 
Total acquisition cost 

Florida Public Utilities 2003 10-K 
(12) 

(279) (12) 

(551) (12) 
$ 9,717 579 

(260) 

The following unaudited pro forma information combines the consolidated results of operations of FpU with those 
of 2-Gas and Atlantic Utilities as if these acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of 2001. The pro forma results 
are not necessarily an indication of the results that would have been achieved had the transactions been consummated 
as of the date indicated, or of the results that may be achieved in the hture. The 2001 information includes actual 
amounts for November and December information for the results of Z-Gas and December 15-31 information for the 
results of Atlantic Utilities. The income statement for 2002 includes all the effects from these two acquisitions and 
no pro forma adjustments are necessary. 

Pro Forma Results 
(dollars in thousands except for per share data) 

Years ended 
December 31 , 

2001 
Revenues 
Cost of fuel and taxes based on revenues 
Gross Profit 
Operating Income from continuing operations 
Income from continuing operations 
Earnings for Common Stock from continuing operations, 
Average Shares Outstanding 
Earnings per Common Share from continuing operations 

$ 95,096 , 

62,560 
32,53 6 

6,507 
3,204 
3,175 

3,837,251 
$ -82 

In November 2002, F'PU acquired Nature Coast Udlities, a propane gas service distribution company, in a cash for 
stock transaction valued at approximately $740,000. The acquisition added about 1,200 customers to FpU's Nature 
Coast division located in West Central Florida. 

The excess of the consideration paid over the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed associated with this 
acquisition resulted in goodwill of approximately $223,000 and in accordance with SFAS No. 142, it is not being 
amortized. In 2003, subsequent acquisition adjustments have increased the goodwill to $240,000. There are no other 
intangible assets identified with this acquisition. 

For additional information concerning these acquisitions, see "Acquisitions" in Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

Gqodwill and Intangible Assets 

Effective January 1,2002, FPU adopted SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." Under this 
statement, the amortization of goodwill is no longer permitted and intangible assets with an indefinite life d not be 
amortized. The standard requires goodwill to be periodically tested for impairment and written down to fair value if 
considered impaired. The repordng segments subject to impairment testing are propane gas and natural gas. 

Intangible assets associated with Eiz'U's acquisitions have been identified and are shown as separate line items on the 
balance sheet. Balances as of December 31,2001 have been reclassified to conform to this presentation. The 
intangibles subject to amortization over a five-year period are non-compete agreements totaling $35,000. The related 
amortization of $14,162 is included in the net intangible on the balance sheet. The remaining intangibles identified 
are customer distribution rights of $1.9 million and customer relationships of $900,000, both of which have indefinite 
lives and are not subject to amortization. 
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All g o o d d  relates to the natural and propane gas acquisitions and accordingly, there is no amortization of goodwill 
reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. G o o d d  is $1.5 &on in the natural gas segment 
and $1.9 million in the propane gas segment. The 5 t i a l  test for goodwill impairment was performed for the repprting 
segrnents as of January 1,2002 and the test results showed no impairment for either operating segment. A 
subsequent impairment test was performed as of January 1,2003 and showed no impairment for either reporting 
segment. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

FPU does not use off-balance sheet financing, have minority interests in businesses, engage in energy trading 
activities, or make loans or guarantee loans to executives or directors. All debt of FPU is reflected on the balance 
sheet. 

Bond Related Issues 

FpU's 1942 Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust, which is a mortgage on all real and personal property, permits 
the issuance of additional bonds based upon a calculation of unencumbered net real and personal property. At 
December 31,2003, such calculation would permit the issuance of approximately $27.0 million of additional bonds. 

FTU issued its First Mortgage Bond 6.85% Series due 2031 on September 27,2001, in the aggregate principal amount 
of $15.0 d o n  as security for the 6.85% Secured Insured Quarterly Notes, due October 1,2031 (IQ Notes). 
Interest on the pledged bond accrues at the rate of 6.85% per annum payable quarterly in arrears on January 1, A p d  
1 , July 1 and October 1 of each year, and payable initially on January 1,2002. The pledged bond constitutes the 
Fourteenth Series of FPU's First Mortgage Bonds. 

FPU issued $14.0 d o n  of Palm Beach County municipal bonds (Industrial Development Revenue Bonds) on 
November 14,2001 to finance development in the area. The bond proceeds were restricted and held in trust until 
€TU incurred construction expenditures in the county. Funds were drawn after each month's construction 
expenditures. On December 31,2002, the restricted funds were fully utilized for construction financing and no 
balance remained. 

FPU had approval from the FTSC to issue and sell and/or exchange an additional $67.0 million in any combination 
of long-term debt, short-term notes and equity securities and/or to assume liabilities or obligations as guarantor, 
endorser or surety, during 2003. FPU received this approval on November 25,2002. EPU has current approval from 
the FPSC to issue and sell and/or exchange an additional amount of $30.0 million in any combination of long-term 
debt, short-term notes and equity securities and/or to assume liabilities or obligations as guarantor, endorser or 
surety, during calendar year 2004. FPU received this approval on November 12,2003. 

Contractual Obligations 
>..  

. I  
i. 1 

'Long-Term Debt 
Operating Lease Obligations 
Gas Purchase Obligations 
Electric Purchase Obligations 

Payments due by period (dollars in thousands): 
Less than More than 

Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years 
$ 52,500 $ - $ $ 52,500 

96 48 43 5 - 
55,527 18,789 14,779 9,840 12,119 

33 7 13 13 - 
Other Purchase Obliga2ons 356 190 162 4 
Total $108,512 $ 19,034 14,997 $ 9,862 3 64,619 

P - 
Impact of Recent Accounting Standards 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 143 
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations." The statement 
requires that the fair value of an asset retirement obligation be recognized at the t i m e  those obligations are incurred. 
Upon initial recognition of a legal liabihty, costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset and allocated to 
expense over the useful life of the asset. SFAS No. 143 also requires that components of previously recorded 
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depredation related to the cost of removal of assets upon retirement, whether legal asset retirement obligations or not, 
be removed from a company's accumulated depreciation reserve. SFAS No. 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15,2002. FPU adopted the provisions of the Statement as of January 1,2003, as prescribed by the FPSC. 
Under FTSC guidelines, the estimated cost of removal expenses for normal retirements related to regulated fixed assets 
were reserved through the depreciation expense and accumulated reserves. This was disclosed in a footnote until 
December 31,2003, when FPU also reclassified the estimated cost of removal from accumulated depreciation to a 
regulatory liability for the obligation. The estimated value of the reserve that has been accumulated for future cost of 
removal as of December 31,2003 and 2002 was approximately $6.1 million and $5.8 million, respectively. All prior 
period amounts have been restated to conform to the current year presentation. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 149 
In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities." This statement clarifies the circumstances under which a contract with an initial net investment 
becomes a derivative, and clarifies when a derivative contains a financing component. As WU has designated all 
materid contracts meeting the deftnition of possible dedvative instruments as "normal purchases and sales" under 
SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivatives", this statement had no impact on the current financial statements issued 
by F'PU but could impact future financial statements. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 150 
In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of 
both Liabilities and Equity." It is effective for financial hstruments entered into or modified after May 31,2003, and 
otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning afterJune 15,2003. This statement 
establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of 
both liabilities and equity. It reqhes that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a Liabdity 
(or an asset in some circumstances). Many of those instruments were previously classified as equity. SFAS No. 150 
had no impact on current financial instruments issued by FPU, but could impact future hnancial instruments issued 
by FPU. 

OTHER 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 
Rate Regulated Basis of Accounting - FPU prepares its financial statements in accordance with the provisions of 
SFAS No. 71 - "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation'' (SFAS No. 71) and it is FT'U's most 
critical accounting policy. In general, SFAS No. 71 recognizes that accounting for rate-regulated enterprises should 
reflect the relationship of costs and revenues introduced by rate regulation. As a result, a regulated utility may defer 
recognition of a cost (a regulatory asset) or recogtlize an obligation (a regulatory liability) if it is probable that, through 
the rate making process, there will be a corresponding increase or decrease in revenues. SFAS No. 71 does not apply 
to the unregulated propane gas operations. 

Use of Estimates - Inherent in the accounting process is the use of estimates when preparing financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ 
from these estimates. €TU uses estimates in the preparation of its fmancial statements including the accrual for 
pensions, environmental liab~ties, and uninsured liability claims. An actuary calculates the estimated pension liability 
in'accordance with FASB 87. Environmental liabilities are subject to certain unknown future events. FPU is self- 
insured for the first $250,000 of each general and auto liability claim and therefore accrues for estimated losses 
occurring from both asserted and unasserted claims. The estirnate for unasserted claims arising from unreported 
incidents is based on an analysis of historical claims data and judgment. FPU became fully insured for medical in 
December 2003 and will no longer require accrual of estimated claims. Management believes that the accruals for 
potential liabilities are adequate. 

- .  . .  . 

Revenue Recognition - F'PU bills uGty customers on a monthly cycle basis; however, the billing cycle periods for 
most customers do not coincide with the accounting periods used for financial reporting. F'PU accrues estimated 
revenue for gas and electric customers not yet billed du&g the accounting period. Determination of unbilled revenue 
relies on the use of estimates, fuel purchases, and historical data. 
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Effects of Inflation - FpU's tariffs associated with its u a t y  operating divisions protide for fuel clauses though 
which rates charged to customers are adjusted for changes in the cost of fuel on a reasonably current basis. Increases 
in other utility costs and expenses not otherwise offset by increases in revenues or reductions in other expenses-could 
have an adverse effect on earnings due to the time lag associated with obtaining regulatory approval to recover such 
increased costs and expenses, the uncertainty of whether regulatory commissions will allow full recovery of such 
increased costs and expenses, and any effect on unregulated propane gas operations. 

Environmental Matters - FTU currently uses or used in the past, in connection With its operations, several 
contamination sites with respect to which there is now pending or threatened environmental litigation and is in the 
process of investigating and assessing that litigation; see "Contingencies" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements. FT'U intends to Vigorously defend its rights in t h i s  litigation. Fl'U has insurance to cover a portion of 
any losses or expenses incurred as a result of thts litigation and plans to apply to the FPSC for rate relief on any 
uninsured losses or expenses. FPU believes that the aggregate of all future contamination assessment and remedial 
costs, legal fees and other related expenses will not exceed the combined sum of any insurance proceeds received and 
any rate relief granted. 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

All financial instruments held by FTU were entered into for purposes other than for trading. P U  has market risk 
exposure only from the potential loss in fair value resulting from changes in interest rates. F'PU has no material 
exposure relating to commodity prices because WU, under its regulatory jurisdictions, is fiilly compensated for the 
actual costs of commodities (natural gas and electridty) used in its operations. Any commodity price increases for 
propane gas are normally passed through monthly to propane gas customers as the fuel charge portion of their rate. 
This can be performed due to the competition having similar increases that are customarily passed through to their 
customers. 

None of F'PU's gas or electric contracts are accounted for using the fair value method of accounting While some of 
WU's contracts meet the definition of a derivative, FPU has designated these contracts as "normal purchases and 
sales" under SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivatives". 

FpU's long term receivable (non-interest beadng) from the sale of the water operations was discounted at 4.34%. A 
hypothetical 0.5% (50 basis points) increase in t h e  interest rate used would change the current fair value from $5.9 
million to $5.8 d o n .  

FPU has no exposure to equity risk, as it does not hold any equity instruments. FPU's exposure to interest rate risk is 
limited to investments held for environmental costs and short-term borrowings on the line of credit. These 
investments are frxed income debt securities whose carrying amounts are not materially different than fair value. Such 
investments mature through 2004 and are expected to be held to maturity. Therefore, F'PU does not believe it has 
material market risk exposure related to these instruments. The indentures governing WU's two &st mortgage bond 
series outstanding contain "make-whole" provisions, which are pre-payment penalties that charge for lost interest, 
which render refkancing impracticable. In 2003, a hypothetical 0.5% (50 basis points) decrease in the long-term 
interest rate on $52.5 million debt would change the fair value from $62.8 million to $66.6 million. 

Changes in short-term interest rates could have an effect on income depending on the balance borrowed on the 
variable rate line of credit. On December 31,2003 and 2002, FPU had $2.3 d o n  and $19.2 million in short-term 
debt, respectively. A hypothetical 1% increase in interest rates would have resulted in a decrease in annual eamhgs 
by $14,000 and $120,000 respectively, based on year-end borrowhgs. 

7 .  

'I.. 

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 

Years Ended December 31 
- 2003 - 2002 - 2001 

Revenues 
Natural gas !$ 53,610 $ 40,140 $ 44,729 
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39,050 

89.178 
5,399 

40,930 
7,391 

88,461 
53,532 

34,929 

17,271 
2,551 
5,026 
2,312 

27,l 60 
7,769 

39,519 

102,723 
64,999 

9,594 
Electric 
Propane gas 

Cost of fuel and taxes based on revenues 
Total revenues 

59,238 

29,940 37,733 Gross profit (exclusive of items shown below) 
Operating Expenses 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Depreciation and amorthation 
Taxes other than income taxes 

Total operating expenses 
Operating income excluding income taxes 

Interest Charges and Other 
Merchandise and service revenue 
Merchanhse and service expenses 
Other income 
0 ther deductions 
Gain from sale of non-uaty property 
Long-term debt 
Short-term borrowings 
Customer deposits and other interest 

Total interest charges and other 

13,894 
2,745 
4,525 
2,157 

23,321 

6,619 

'19,015 
2,881 
5,492 
2,652 

30,040 
7,693 

(3,001) 
2,77 8 

(590) 
18 

(112) 
3,937 

324 
252 

(2757 1) 

(427) 

(15) , 

2,316 

30 

2,606 
826 
159 

(2,799) 

(394) 
2,690 

19 

3,949 
75 

464 
4,004 2,924 3,606 

4,163 
(1,402) 
2.761 

3,695 
(1,239) ' 

2,456 

Income from continuing operations excluding income taxes 
Income taxes 
Income from continuing operations 

Discontinued Operations 
Income from discontinued operations-water 
Income taxes 
Gain on disposal of water division, net of taxes of $5,955 

Total income from discontinued operations 

3,689 

2,522 
(13  67) 

897 
(301) 

908 
(306) 

149 

9,768 
9,901 

(16) 

596 GO2 

3,363 3,052 12,423 Net Income 

29 29 Preferred Stock Dividends 29 

$ 3.334 $ 3,023 

$ .64 

$ .16 

$ 12,394 Earnings for Common Stock 
Earnings Per Common Share (basic and diluted): 

Continuing Operations 

a ' Discontinued Operations 

Total 

.70 $ A4 

$ 2.53 

3.17 

$ .16 

3- *so 3 .86 

$ .55 $ .57 Dividends Declared Per Common Share .59 

3,905,814 

- 
3,80 1,740 3,87 1,019 Average Shares Outstanding 

See Notes t.0, Consolidated Financial Statements 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
Lhmber31. (dollars in thousands) 

ASSETS 
Utility Plant 
Natural gas 

2003 2002 

$ 76,746 
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Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 

Total 
Less accumulated depreciation (I) 

Net utllity plant 
Current Assets 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Notes receivable 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Unbilled receivable 
Inventories (at average or unit cost) 
Prepayments and deferrals 
Under recovery of conservation and unbundling 
Assets held for sale-water division 

Total current assets 
Other Assets 
Investments held for environmental costs 
Other regulatory assets - environmental 
Other long term investments 
Deferred charges 
G o o d d  
Intangible assets (net) 

Total other assets 
Total 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
Capitalization 
Common shareholders' equity 
Preferred stock 
Long-term debt 

Total capitabation 
Current Liabilities 
Notes payable 
Accounts payable 
Insurance accrued 
Interest accrued 
Taxes accrued 
Other accruals and payables 
Over recovery of fuel costs 
Over recovery of conservation and unbundling 
Customer deposits 
Liabilrties held for sale-water division 

Total current liabilities 
Other Liabilities 
Deferred income taxes 
Unamortized investment tax credrts 
Environmental Gability 
Regulatory liability - cost of removal 
Regulatory tax liabihties 
Customer advances for construction 
Storm damage 

80,370 
62,403 
12,371 
5,500 

160,644 
52,302 

108,342 

859 
9,614 

244 

1,673 
2,624 
531 8 

(1 80) 

20,352 

3,149 
9,127 
5,672 

10,161 
3,366 . 
2.821 

34.296 
$ 162,990 

3 41,463 
600 

52,500 
94,563 

2,278 
8,864 
2,238 

935 
359 

3,824 
1,740 

71 
6,134 

26,443 

16,065 
574 

14,000 
6,093 
1,243 
1,749 
2,260 

59,937 
1 1,232 
4,992 

152,907 
49.1 55 

103,752 

3,200 
9,065 

(304) 
1,470 
3,108 

749 
36 

10.178 
27,502 

2,815 

10,375 
3,348 
2,828 

19,366 
!$ 150,620 

$ 30,883 
600 

52,500 
83,983 

19,183 

2,364 
926 
505 

3,218 
. 1,807 

7,472 

5,615 
1,272 

42,362 

7,366 
751 

5,204 

1,413 
1,581 
2,163 

5,797 
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41,984 24,275 Total other liabilities 

Commitments and Contingencies (see Notes) 
Total $ 150,620 $ 162,990 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITAILIZATION 
(dollars in thousands) December 3 1 , 

- 2003 - 2002 

Common Shareholders' Equity 
Common stock, $1.50 par value, authorized 

6,000,000 shares; issued 4,343,218 shares 
in 2003; 4,329,380 shares in 2002 

Paid-in capital 
$ 6,494 

8,472 
20,529 

$ 6,515 
8,706 

30,638 Retained earnings 
Treasury stock - at cost (426,825 shares in 2003, 

447,791 shares in 2002) 
Total common shareholders' equity 

(4,396) 
41,463 

(4,6 12) 
30,883 

Preferred Stock 

4 %O/O Series A, $100 par value, redemption price 
$106, authorized and outstanding 6,000 shares 600 600 

4 %*/o Series B Cumulative Preferred, $100 par value, 
redemption price $101, authorized 5,000 and none issued 

$1.12 Convertible Preference, $20 par ,value, redemption 
price $22, authorized 32,500 and none issued 

Total preferred stock 
Long-Term Debt 

600 600 

First mortgage bonds series 

9.57 */o due 2018 
10.03 Yo due 2018 

9.08 YO due 2022 
4.90 Yo due 2031 
6.85 YO due 2031 
Total long-term debt 

- .  

. Total Capitalization 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

10,000 10,000 
5,500 
8,000 

14,000 
15.000 

5,500 ' 

8,000 
14,000 
15,000 
52.500 52,500 

96 94.563 $ 83,983 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
(dollars in thousands) 

Common Stock 
Treasury . 

Treasury Shares 
Shares cost 

529,156 $ (5,449) 

Aggregate Paid-in Retained 
Par Value CaDital ' Earnines 

Shares 
Issued 

4,299,563 Balances as of December 31,2000 
- ____ 

$ 6,449 $ 8,049 3 18,461 

Net income 
Dividends 
Stock issuance for acquisition (42,613) 439 
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Stock plans 16,404 

Balances as of December 31,2001 4,315,967 

,' Netkcorne 
Dividends 
Stock plans 13,413 

Balances as of December 31,2002 4,329,380 

I 

Net income 
Dividends 
Stock plans 13,838 
Balances as of December 31,2003 4,343,218 
See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

25 235 
6,474 8,284 

20 188 
6,494 8,472 

21 234 
$ 8,706 - $ 6,515 - 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(dollars in thousands) 

Cash Flows from Operating Actidks 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to 
net cash from operating activities 

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes 
Bad debt expense 
Investment tax credits 
Other 
Gain on sale of non-utility property 

Effects of changes in 
Receivables 
Unbilled receivable 
Inventories and prepayments 
Accounts payable and accruals 
Over (under) recovery of fuel costs 
Area expansion program deferred costs 
Environmental liabitity 
Other 

Net cash provided by operating activities 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Constkction expenhtures 
(Payment) reduction for purchase of Atlantic UtiIities Company 
Payment for purchase of 2-Gas Company, net of cash acquired 
Purchase of Nature Coast Company, net of cash acquired 
Customer advances received (wefhded) for construction 
Sale (Purchase) of restricted long term investments 
Deposit held in escrow for dividend payment 
Sale (Purchase) of long-term investment 
Proceeds provided by sale of utility plant 

Net cash provided by (used in> investing activities 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Net change in short-term borrowings 

19,386 

3,363 

(2,220) 

20,529 

12,423 

(273 14) 

$30.638 
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(18,955) 195 

467,588 (4981 5) 

(19,797) 203 

447,791 (476 14 

(20,966) 21 6 
426,825 $ (4,396) 

Years Ended December 31, 

2003 2002 2001 

$ 12,423 

(9,901) 
5,492 
8,408 

174 

41 8 
(97) 

(1,2811 
(203) 

(4963 3) 
(3,458) 

(431) 
(451) 

40 

483 
6,983 

(9,693) 

(1 5) 
168 

(334) 
19.372 
9,498 

(1 6,905) 

$ 3,363 

(602) 

(378) 

(103) 

(112) 

(2,326) 
( W  

25 

5,026 

400 

69 

3060 
315 

(978) 
(127) 
(196) 

7,310 

( 3  4,13 6) 
74 

(3) 
(735) 
,333 

8,008 
541 

60 
877 

(4,981) 

(1,247) 

$ 3,052 

(596) 

(307) 

(107) 

4,525 

41 0 

28 

2,466 
19 
83 

2,3 5 8 
(4,152) 

(804) 
(82) 

(21 9) 
6,674 

~ (31,911) 

2,530 
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Long term borrowings - net of costs 
Proceeds from common stock plans 
Dividends paid 

Net cash provided by (used in) hancing activities 
Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued operations 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 
Cash at Beginning of Year 
Cash at End of Year 
Supplemental Cash Flow Information 

Cash was paid during the years as follows: 
Interest 
Income taxes 

Purchase of 2-Gas Company through issuance of 
42,613 shares of common stock 
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Non-cash investing and financing activities 
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27,022 

472 41 1 390 

(1 8,724) (3,095) 27,840 

(98) 768 529 

(2,341) 2 3,132 

3,200 3,198 66 

3 859 $ 3,200 $ 3,198 

(2) (58) 

(2,289) (2,201) (2,102) 

3 4,350 $ 4,506 $ 3,379 
4,188 1,965 1,396 

$ 503 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies 

Business and Regulation FPU is an operathg public u a t y  engaged principally in the purchase, transmission, 
distribution and sale of electricity and in the purchase, transmission, distribution, sale and transportation of natural gas. 
F'PU is subject to the jurisdiction of the F'PSC with respect to its natural gas and electric operations. The suppliers of 
electric power to the Northwest Florida division and of natural gas to the natural gas divisions are subject to the 
jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). The Northeast Florida division is supplied most of 
its electric power by a municipality which is exempt from F?ERC and WSC regulation. FPU also distributes propane gas 
through a non-regulated subsidiary. P U ' s  accounting policies and practices conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applied to regulated public utilities and are in accordance with the 
accounting requirements and rate making practices of the FTSC. 

WU prepares its financial statements in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 71 - "Accounting for the Effects 
of Certain Types of Regulation". In general, SFAS No. 71 recognizes that accounting for rate-regulated enterprises 
should reflect the relationship of costs and revenues introduced by rate regulation. As a result, a regulated utility may 
defer recoption of a cost (a replatory asset) or recognize an obligation (a regulatory liability) if it is probable that, 
through the rate making process, there will be a corresponding increase or decrease in revenues. Accordingly, FTU has 
recognized certain regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, FTU believes that the 
FPSC will continue to allow it to recover such items though its rates. In the event that a portion of mu's operations 
are no longer subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 71, it would be required to write off related regulatory assets and 
liabilities that are not specifically recoverable through regulated rates. In addition, FPU would be required to determine 

airment related to other assets exists, including plant, and write down the assets, if impaired, to their fair 
summary of such items is as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Assets 
Deferred development costs (1) 
Other regulatory assets - environmental (3) 
Under recovery of conservation and unbundling 

. Unamortized piping and conversion costs (1) 
Unamortized loss on reacquired debt (1) 
Total Regulatory Assets 

Liabilities 
, Regulatory tax liabilities 

- 2003 

$3,927 
9,127 

1,441 
264 

$14.759 

$1,243 

- 2002 

$3,496 

36 
1,501 

282 
35,315 

$1,413 
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Environmental liability 4,873 5,204 

Storm damage 2,260 2,163 
Over recovery of fuel costs, conservation and unbundling 1.81 1 1.807 

Regulatory liability - cost of removal (2) 6,093 5,797 

Total Regulatory Liabilities $36.280- 

(1) Deferred development costs, unamortized piping and conversion costs, and unamortized loss on reacquired debt are 
included in deferred charges in the consolidated balance sheets. 

(2) 

(3) 

Prior periods have been restated to conform to SFAS No. 143 (for additional information see "Impact of Recent 
Accounting Standards'' in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). 
FTU has accrued $9 d o n  as a regulatory asset pending future rate recovery to be authorized by the FTSC. The 
regulatory liability excludes the $9 &on as it represents a legal but not regulatory liability. 

F'PU has agreed with the FPSC staff to limit its earned return on equity for its regulated natural gas and electric 
operations. The disposition of any over earnings is left to h e  discretion of the WSC, with alternatives including a refund 
to customers, recording the over earnings to the storm damage reserves, or the reduction of any depreciation reserve 
deficiency. The over earnings for 1997,1998 and 1999 at one of FPU's electric divisions were ordered by the EPSC to be 
added to that division's storm damage reserve. Since that last order on the 1999 disposition of ovex earnings, the FPSC 
has allowed FPU the automatic flexibility of recording the over earnings to the storm damage reserves each year 
thereafter through use of the over earnings and allowing additional storm damage accruals up to a cap in those reserves of 
$1.5 million and $1.4 d o n  in the Northeast and Northwest electrk divisions, respectively. F'PU recorded an additional 
$237,000 relating to 2000 over earnings and $9,500 relating to 2002 over earnings in its Northeast electric storm reserve. 
WU recorded an additional $16,300 relating to 2002 over earnings to its Northwest electric storm reserve. In 2001 and 
2003 FPU did not have any over earnings and accordingly has not recorded any additional amounts to its storm damage 
reserves. As of the end of 2003, the Northeast and Northwest electric storm reserves were at approximately $1.2 million 
and $964,000, respectively FPU also expects that the F'PSC will grant it permission to record the 2002 natural gas over 
earnings of $105,000 to its environmental reserves. Finalization of this over eamhgs review is expected in early 2004. In 
accordance with WSC guidance, F'PU has recorded to its environmental reserve any over earnings. 

W U  filed tariff sheets for its unbundled program to give its commercial natural gas customers the option of purchasing 
their gas supplies from third parties. FTU officially offered unbundled services to commercial customers on August 1, 
200 1. Even though Fl'U has had among the lowest overall gas costs in the Florida market, third party suppliers may be 
able to offer its customers additional programs, which a regulated gas company cannot offer. Furthermore, by I 

purchasing their gas supplies fiom third parties, ?TU'S commercial customers may avoid certain taxes and fees, which 
FPU is required to collect and impose on the sale of natural gas. FPU's operating results will not be affected as it 
realizes the same gross profit regardless of whether the customer purchases the gas from F'PU or uses FTU's system to 
transport the gas since it does not proht on the he1 sales. The FTSC approved various mechanisms, which Wiu allow 
FTU to be reimbursed for the incremental cost of providing unbundled services. For years after 2004, FPU will request 
recovery through base rates instead of being reimbursed. 

Revenue FPU bills utility customers on a monthly cycle basis; however, the billing cycle periods for most customers do 
not coincide with the accounting periods used for financial reporting WU accrues estimated revenue for gas and electric 
customers not yet billed dwhg the accounting period. Determination of unbilled revenue relies on the use of estimates, 
he1 purchases, and historical data. 

- 4 .  

*' 

FPU's rates include base revenues, fuel adjustment charges and the pass-through of certain governmental imposed taxes 
based on revenues. The base revenues are determined by the WSC and remain constant und a request for an increase 
in such rates is filed and approved by the FPSC. From the FPSC perspective, FPU previously operated three distinct 
"entities", i.e., Northwest Florida elect&, Northeast Florida electric and its natural gas division, consisting of P a h  
Beach County, and the Sanford and DeLand area in Central Florida. Thus ,  for W U  to recover through rate relief the 
effects of inflation and construction expenditures for all such "entities", a request for an increase in base revenues 
would have required the filing of three separate rate cases. In 2003 FPU successfully filed for electric rate increases and 
petitioned to consolidate the two elect& "entities" into one. WU anticipates filing €or natural gas rate increases in 
2004. Fuel adjustment charges are estimated for customer billing purposes and any undex/over-recovery difference 
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between the incurred cost of fuel and estimated amounts billed to customers is deferred for future recovery or refund 
and either charged or credited to customers. Interest accrues on such under/over-recoveries and is included in the 
subsequent adjustment. 

Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of WU and its wholly owned subsidiary, 
Flo-Gas Corporation. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. 

Certain reclassifications may have been made to the prior years' fhancial statements and other financial information 
contained herein to confom to the 2003 presentation. 

Utility Plant and Depreciation Utility plant is stated at origkal cost. Propane utility plant that has been acqukd in 
acquisitions is stated at fair market value at the h e  of each acquisition. The costs of additions to utility plant include 
contracted services, direct labor, transportation and materials. The costs of units of property retired are removed from 
utility plant, and such costs plus removal costs, less salvage, are charged to accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and 
repairs of property and replacement and renewal of items d e t e d e d  not to be u n i t s  of property are charged to 
operating expenses. Substantially all of the udlity plant and the shares of no-Gas Corporation collateralize Fi'PU's First 
Mortgage Bonds. 

1. .I 

<. . 

Depreciation is computed using the composite straight-line method at rates prescribed by the FPSC for financial 
accounting purposes. Propane depreciation is computed using a composite straight-line method at an average rate 
based on estimate life of approximately 20 years. Such rates are based on estimated service lives of the various classes of 
property. Depreciation provisions on average depreciable property approximate 3.4% in 2003,3.3% in 2002, and 3.4% 
in 2001. 

Income Taxes Deferred income taxes are provided on all significant temporary differences between the financial 
statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities at currently enacted tax rates. Investment tax credits have been deferred 
and are amortized based upon the average useful life of the related property in accordance with the rate treatment. 

Use of Estimates Inherent in the accounting process is the use of estimates when preparing financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ 
from these estimates. FPIJ used estimates in the preparation of its financial statements including the accrual for 
pensions, environmental liabilities, and uninsured liabihty claims. An actuary calculates the estimated pension liability in 
accordance with FASB 87. Environmental liabilities are subject to certain unknown future events. FPU is self-insured 
for the furst $250,000 of each general and auto liability claim and therefore accrues for estimated losses occurring from 
both asserted and uaasserted claims. The estimate for unasserted claims arising from unreported incidents is based on 
an analysis of historical claims data and judgment. FPU became fully insured for medical in December 2003 and will no 
longer require accrual of estimated claims. Management believes that the accruals for potential liabilities are adequate. 

2. Impact of Recent Accounting Standards * 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 143 
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retkement Obligations." The statement 
requires that the fair value of an asset retirement obligation be recognized at the time those obligations are incurred. 
Upon 'initial recognition of a legal liability, costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset and allocated to 
expense over the useful life of the asset. SFAS No. 143 also requires that components of previously recorded 
depreciation related to the cost of removal of assets upon retirement, whether legal asset retirement obligations or not, 
be removed from a company's accumulated depreciation reserve. SFAS No. 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15,2002. W U  adopted the provisions of the Statement as ofJanuary 1,2003, as prescribed by the FPSC. 
Under WSC guidelines, the estimated cost of removal expenses for normal retirements related to regulated k e d  assets 
are reserved through the depreciation expense and accumulated reserves. At December 31,2003, FPU reclassified the 
estirnated cost of removal from accumulated depreciation to a regulatory liability for the obligation. The estimated value 
of the reserve that has been accumulated for future cost of removal as of December 31,2003 and 2002 was 
approximately $6.1 million and $5.8 d o n ,  respectively. All prior period amounts have been restated to conform to the 
current year presentation. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 149 
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In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and H e d p g  
Activities." This statement clarifies the circumstances under which a contract with an initial net investment becomes a 
derivative, and clarifies when a derivative contains a hancing component. As FTU has designated all material contracts 
meeting the definition of possible derivative instruments as "normal purchases and sales" under SFAS No. 133, 
"Accounting for Derivatives", &IS statement had no impact on the current financial statements issued by € T U  but 
could impact future financial statements. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 150 
In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of 
both Liabilities and Equity." It is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31,2003, and 
otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15,2003. This statement 
establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both 
liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an 
asset in some circumstances). Many of those instnunents were previously classified as equity. SFAS No. 150 had no 
impact on current financial instruments issued by FTU, but may impact any future financial instruments issued. 

3. Notes Payable 

On April 1,2003 FFU opened a $12.0 million, thirty-nine month line of credit, the current outstanding balance of 
which is $2.3 &on. The $20.0 million line of credit held undl April 2003 expired. The old line of credit had $19.2 
d o n  borrowed at the end of 2002 and provided for interest at LIBOR plus fifty basis points. W U  reserves $1.0 
million of the LOC to cover expenses for any major storm repairs in its Northwest Florida division. An additional 
$250,000 of the LOC is reserved for a 'letter of credit' insuring propane facilities. The interest rates for the line of credit 
at December 31, 2003,2002, and 2001 were approximately 2.0%, 1.9% and 2.4%, respectively. 

4. Acquisitions 

In October 2001, FT'U acquired 2-Gas Company, Inc., a propane gas service d is~but ion  company, in a stock for stock 
transaction valued at approximately $600,000. The acquisition added about 1,000 customers to the propane gas 
operation in the Northeast Florida division. 

In December 2001, FPU acquired certain net assets of Atlantic Utilities, the Florida operation of Southern Union 
Company in a cash transaction valued at approximately $10.0 d o n .  Atlantic Utilities served about 4,400 natural gas 
customers in New Smyma Beach and about 1,900 propane gas customers in Central and South Florida. 

The excess of the consideration paid over the estimated fair value, or the depreciated original cost for regulated entities, 
of net assets including intangibles acquired in both the Atlantic Utilities and 2-Gas acquisitions was approximately $3.1 
d o n .  This was recorded as goodwill and in accordance with SFAS No. 142, is not being amortized. The natural gas 
portion of h s  amount is approximately $1.5 million. 

Fair Market Value of Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in 2001 
(dollars in thousands) 

ATLANTIC 2-GAS 
. ' Utilityplant 

Natural gas $ 4,802 $ -  
Propane gas 1,246 333 

Net utility plant 3,853 333 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization * (2,195) 

Current Assets 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 

Total current assets 

G;oodd-Natural gas 

99 
212 
31 1 

1,514 

14 
23 
17 
54 
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Goodwill-Propane gas 1,412 199 

Intangibles-Natural gas 1,900 
Intangibles-Propane gas 930 5 
Deferred charges 348 

6,104 204 Total other assets 

Current Liabilities 
Interest accrued (12) 
Other accruals and payables (279) (12) 
Customer deposits (260) 

Total current liabilities (551) (12) 
Total acquisition cost $ 9,717 $ 579 

The following unaudited pro forma information combines the consolidated results of operations of W U  with those 
of 2-Gas and Atlantic Utilities as if these acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of 2001. The pro forma results 
are not necessarily an indication of the results that would have been achieved had the transactions been consummated 
as of the date indicated, or of the results that may be achieved in the future. The 2001 infomation includes actual 
amounts for November and December information for the results of 2-Gas and December 15-31 information for the 
results of Atlantic Utilities. The income statement for 2002 includes all the effects &om these two acquisitions and 
no pro forma adjustments are necessary. 

Pro Forma Results 
(dollars in thousands except for per share data) 

Year ended December 31, 

Revenues 
Cost of he1 and taxes based on revenues 
Gross Profit 
Operating Income from continuing operations 
Income from continuing operations 
Earnings for Common Stock kom continuing operations 

2001 
$ 95,096 

62,5 GO 
32,536 

6,507 
3,204 
3,175 

3,837,251 
3 .82 

Average Shares Outstanding 
Earnings per Common Share from contitluing operations 

In November 2002, F'PU acquired Nature Coast Utilities, a propane gas service distribution company, in a cash for 
stock transaction valued at approximately $740,000. The acquisition added about 1,200 customers to F'PU's new 
Nature Coast division located in West Central Florida. 

_I The excess of the consideration paid over the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assuked associated with this 
acquisition, resulted in g o o d d  of approximately $223,000 and in accordance with SFAS No. 142, it is not being 

, amortized. In 2003, subsequent acquisition adjustments have increased the g o o d d  to $240,000. There are no other 
intangible assets identified with this acquisition. 

5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

I. ' 

Effective January 1,2002, FPU adopted SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." Under this 
statement, the amortization of goodwill is no longer permitted and intangil.de assets with an indefinite life will not 
be amortized, The standard requires goodwill to be periodically tested for impairment and written down to fair 
value if considered impaired. The reporting units have been determined to be propane gas and natural gas for the 
purposes of impairment testing. 

Intangible assets associated with FPU's acquisitions have been identified and are shown as separate line items on 
the balance sheet. The intangbles subject to amortization over a five-year period are non-compete agreements 
totaling $35,000. The related amortization of $14,162 is included in the net intangible asset on the balance sheet. The 
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remaining intangibles identified are customer distribution rights of $1.9 million and customer relationships of 
$900,000, both of which have indefinite lives and are not subject to amortization. 

All goodwill relates to the natural and propane gas acquisitions and accordingly, there is no amortization of goodwill 
reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Goodwill is $1.5 d o n  in the natural gas segment 
and $1.9 million in the propane gas segment. The initial test for goodwill impairment was performed €or the 
reporting segments as of January I, 2002 and the test results showed no impairment for either operating segment. A 
subsequent impairment test was performed as of January 1,2003 and showed no impairment for either reporting 
segment. 

6. Discontinued Operations 

Water Sewice 
On December 3,2002, FPU entered into an agreement to sell certain assets comprising its water utility system to the 
City of Fernandina Beach. The closing of this transaction took place on March 27,2003. The City paid FPU $19.2 
million in cash at closing, as well as future consideration of approximately $7.4 million to be received (as summarized 
below) until February 15,2010, when FPU will receive the final payment horn the City. The net proceeds from the sale 
resulted in the payoff of the notes payable balance. FPU recognized and recorded the present value of the long-term 
receivable in the amount of $5.7 million, using a discount rate of 4.34%. The long-term receivable has been 
subsequently increased to recognize interest income in the amount of $190,000. The fair value of the consideration is 
approximateIy $25.0 million. The gain on the disposal of Discontinued Operations including the income from 
discontinued operations for the first quarter of 2003, was $15.8 million or $9.9 million after tax, and has subsequently 
been adjusted to $15.9 million or $9.9 million after tax due to adjustments to sales related expenses that were 
previousIy estimated. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been restated for all periods presented for the discontinued 
operations of the water division. FPU did not cease recording depreciation expense due to the regulatory requirements 
and continued to record depreciation through €he sale date of March 27,2003. The total net plant amounted to 
approximately $9.7 million, and the net assets less liabilities amounted to approximately $8.9 million at the date of 
sale. The assets and liabilities of the water division have been included in current assets and current liabilities as of 
December 31,2002, as assets and liabilities held for sale. 

Estimated Annual Future Value of Consideration due from the City for years following December 31, 2003 is 
as follows (in thousands): 

Results of discontinued operations were as follows: 

Results of Water Division I Year Ended 
December 31, 
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The major balance sheet classes included in assets and liabilities of discontinued operations in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets, as of December 31,2002, are as follows: 

Major Balance Sheet Classifications - Water Division December 31, 
(in thousands): 2002 

Current liabilities 

, 
7. Gain on Sale of Property 

W U  sold property held in Delray Beach, in its South Florida division, for a gain of approximately $529,000 in the flrst 
quarter of 2002. This property was primarily regulated property and accordingly the majority of the gam was deferred 
awaiting FPSC approval on the disposition of that gain. FT'U has been granted approval by the WSC to allow amortization 
of the gain with an offset to depreciation expense over five years beginning April 2002. The non-regulated portion of the 
gain has been recognized 2002 and amounted to $53,000, net of income taxes. 

I.'pU sold property held in DeLand, in its Central Florida division, for a gain of approximately $186,000 during 2002. "his 
property was primarily regulated property and accordingly the rnajoritp of the gain was deferred awaiting FTSC approval on 
the disposition of that gain. FT'U has been granted approval by the FPSC to allow amortization of the gain with an offset 

.1 :. I to depreciation expense over five years bepning  August 2002. The non-regulated portion of the gain was recognized in 
2002 and amounted to $17,000, net of income taxes. 

8. Capitalization 

Common Stock Split 

In July 2002, FPU affected a four-for-three stock split in the form of a stock dividend and, accordingly, transferred from 
paid-in capital to common stock, an amount equal to the aggregate par value of the additional shares. All per share data 
included herein have been retroactively restated to reflect the stock split. 

Common Shares Reserved 

FPU has reserved 91,049 common shares for issuance under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan and 8,750 common shares 
for issuance under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. 

Dividend Restriction . 
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The Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust and supplements thereto provide for restriction of the payment of cash 
dividends. At December 31,2003 approximately $4.3 d o n  of retained earnings were free of such restxiction, and 
therefore available for the payment of dividends. 

9. Debt 

WU issued its First Mortgage Bond, 6.85% Series due 2031 on September 27,2001 in the aggregate principal amount of 
$15.0 million as secdty for the 6.85% Secured Insured Quarterly Notes, due October I, 2031 (IQ Notes). Interest on the 
pledged bond accrues at the rate of 6.85% per annum payable quarterly in arrears on January 1, April I, July 3 and October 
1 of each year, payable initially on January 1,2002. The pledged bond constitutes the Fourteenth Series of FTU's First 
Mortgage Bonds. 

WU issued $14.0 d o n  of Palm Beach County munkipal bonds (Industrial Development Revenue Bonds). on November 
14,2001 to finance development 
proceeds were restricted and held in trust until construction expenditures were actually incurred by FTW. In 2002 the 
remaining $8 &on was drawn from the restricted funds held by the trustee. 

the area. The interest rate on the thtrcy-year callable bonds is 4.90%. The bond 

In 1992, FPU issued its First Mortgage Bond 9.08% Series in the amount of $8.0 million. The --year bond is due in 
June 2022. 

FTU issued two of its First Mortgage bond series on May 1,1988; the 9.57% Series due 2018 in the amount of $10.0 
d o n  and 10.03% Series due 2018 in the amount of $5.5.mdhn. The pledged bonds constitute the Twelfth Series of 
FPU's First Mortgage Bonds. These two issuances require sinking fund payments of $903,000 and $500,000 respectively, 
bepning  in 2008. 

On A p d  1,2003 !?PU changed banks and opened a $12.0 million, *-nine month line of credit, the current outstanding 
balance of which is $2,278,000. FPU reserves $1 million of the LOC to cover expenses for any major storm repairs in its 
Northwest Florida division. An additional $250,000 of the LOC is reserved for a letter of credit' insuring propane facilities. 

' 

IO. Segment Information 

F'PU is organized into two continuing regulated business segments: natural gas and electric and one non-regulated business 
segment, propane gas. Water, a regulated segment, has been classified as discontinued operations and has been eminated 
from segment information with the exception of Identifiable assets that are shown for 2002 and 2001. There are no 
material inter-segment sales or transfers. 

* .  
. ,  ' Identifiable assets are those assets used in F'PU's operations in each business segment. Common assets are principally cash 

and overnight investments, deferred tax assets and common plant. 

Business.'segment information for 2003,2002 and 2001 is summarized as follows: 
(in thousands) 

2003 2002 2001 
Revenues 

Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Consolidated 

Operating income from 
continuing operations excluding 
income tax 

Natural gas 

53,610 $ 40,140 $ 44,729 
39,519 40,930 39,050 

$ 102,723 $ 88,461 89,178 
9,594 7,391 5,399 

L 

5,190 $ 4,291 $ 3,295 
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Electric 
Propane gas 
Consolidated 

Identifiable assets 
Natural gas 
Electdc 
Propane gas 
Water operations - held for sale 
Common 
Consolidated 

2,249 2,980 
254 498 43 1 

t 7,693 !f 7,769 96 6,619 

80,924 $ 60,439 $ 55,300 
43,476 42,557 40,603 
14,348 10,288 10,728 

10,096 9,579 
24,242 27,240 29,195 

$ 162,390 $ 150,620 $ 145,411 

Prior periods have been restated to conform to SFAS No. 143 (for additional 
information see "Impact of Recent Accounting Standards" in the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Depreciation and amortization 
Natuxal gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

Construction expenditures 
Natural gas 
Electric 
Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

Continuing operations income tax 
expense 

.. . Electric 
Natural gas 

Propane gas 
Common 
Consolidated 

-.- 

2,893 

2,414 $ 2,272 $ 1,963 
2,333 2,116 2,070 

508 43 6 322 
237 202 170 

5,492 $ 5,026 $ 4,525 

4,331 $ 9,373 $ 7,508 
3,504 3,278 4,418 
1,333 1,298 1,147 

525 187 369 
9,693 $ 14,136 3 13,442 

856 $ 
180 

741 $ 
292 

547 
397 

21 151 84 
110 21 8 21 1 L-- 1,167 f 1,402 $ 1,239 - 

11. Income Taxes 

On March 27,2003, W U  sold substantially all of its assets of the water division to the 
City of Femandina Beach. The sale was made pursuant to a Yhreat of condemnation" 
during the fourth quarter of 2002. FPU has elected (for tax purposes) to defer the gain 
on the sale of the assets pursuant to Code Section 1033 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986 (IRC). Section 1033 allows nonrecognition of gain if property is disposed as a result 
of threat of condemnation and property that is similar or related in service or use is 
purchased to replace the property disposed. To qualify, the replacement property must be 
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purchased within the replacement period which begins on the earlier of date of 
disposition (March 27,2003) or date of threat of condemnation (December 31,2002) and 
ending two years after the close of the year of sale (December 31,2005). For real 
,property, the replacement period is extended to three years (December 31,2006). F'PU 
intends to purchase property that is similar or related in service or use within the 
replacement period. In the first, second and third quarter the related deferred tax liability 
was included in current taxes. As of year end, it is included in deferred taxes payable. 
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The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands): 

2003 2002 2001 

Current payable 
Federal 
State 

Deferred 
Federal 
State 

Investment tax credit 

$ (1,007) $ 1,609 $ 1,413 
(174) 274 240 

(1,181) 1,883 1,653 

2,070 (338) (275) 
(40) (3 2) 

2,445 (378) (307) 
375 

(9 7) (1 03) (1 0 7 )  

Income taxes - continuing operations 1,167 1,402 1,239 

Income taxes - discontinued operations 5,971 306 301 

Total $ 7,138 $ 1,708 $ 1,540 

'The difference between the effective income tax rate and the statutory federal income tax 
rate applied to pretax income is accounted for as follows (dollars in thousands): 

2003 2002 2001 

Federal income tax at statutory rate $ 1,254 $ 1,415 $ 1,256 

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 134 151 134 

Other (124) (54) (37) 
Investment tax credit (97) (110) (114) 

- L .  , Total provision for income taxes from continuing 
' Operations $ 1,167 $ 1,402 $ 1,239 

The tax effects of temporary differences producing deferred income taxes 
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are as follows (h thousands): 

2003 2002 

Deferred tax assets: 
Erivironmental 
Self insurance 
General Liabhy 
Storm reserve liability 
Vacation pay 
Other deferred credits - Gain 
AMT 

$ 1,988 
684 

100 
29 1 
146 
208 

(165) 

$ 2,112 

. (66) 
664 

0 
277 
197 

0 
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Other 
Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabillties: 
Utility plant related 
Under recovery of fuel costs 
Pension 
Rate case expense 
Other 
Total deferred tax liabilities 

Net deferred income taxes 

107 110 
3,359 3,294 

18,203 
327 

9,422 
174 

588 804 
128 7 
178 253 

. 19,424 10,660 

$ 16,065 $ 7,366 

12. Employee Benefit Plans 

Pension Plan 
FPU sponsors a qualified pension plan for its employees. The following tables provide a 
reconciliation of the changes in the plan's benefit obligations and fair value of assets over the 2-year period ending 
December 31, 2003 and a statement of the funded status as of December 31,2003 and 2002: 

Benefit Obligations and Funded Status 

Year Ending December 31, 
2003 2002 

(1) Change in Projected Benefit Obligation 

Projected Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Year 

Service Cost 

Interest Cost 

Actuarial (Gain) or Loss 

Benefits Paid 

Change in Plan Provisions 

Plan Pai-ticipant Contributions 

Acquisition 

Curtailment 

Settlement 

Special Termination Benefits 

(l) ,. , Projected Benefit Obligation at the End of the Year 

(m) 

.~ 
Accumulated Benefit Obligation at the End of the Year 

Change in Plan Assets 

(a) 

(b) 
(c) Benefits Paid 

(d) Employer Contributions 

(e) Plan Participant Contributions 

( f )  Acquisition 

(g) Settlement 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at  the Begnmng of the Year 

Actual Retum on Plan Assets 

$28,283,326 

1,012,149 

1,877,987 

1,653,212 

(1,285,732) 

$31 -540,942 

$26.81 0.146 

$26,953,318 

5,413,477 

(1,285,732) 

$26,164,049 

8 9 5,8 8 8 

1,818,27 6 

591,406 

(1,186,293) 

$28,283,3 26 

$23,443,150 . 

$32,007,418 

(3,867,807) 

(1,186,293) 
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(h) Fair Value of Assets at the End of the Year 

(3) Net Amount Recognized 

(a) 

@) Unrecognned Transition Obligation (Asset) 

(c) Unrecognized Prior Service Cost 

(d) Unrecognized Net (Gain) or Loss 

(e) Net Amount Recognized: (a) + @) -t (c} + (d) 

Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial Position 

(a) Prepaid Benefit Cost 

@) Accrued Benefit Cost 

(c) Intangible Asset 

(d) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 

(e) 

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit 

obligation in excess of plan assets 

(a) Projected Benefit Obligation 

@) Accumulated Benefit Obligation 

(c) Fair Value of Plan Assets 
Weighted Average Assumptions at the End of the Year 

(a) Discount Rate 

(b) Rate of Compensation Increase 

Funded Status: (2)@) - (1)Q) 

(4) 

Net Amount Recogruzed: (a) + (b) + (c) + (d) 

(5) 

(6) 
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$31,081,063 $26,953,318 

$(459,879) $(1,330,008) 

5,580,092 6,292,020 

(3,262,796) (2,531,878) 

$1,857,417 $2,430,134 

$1,857,417 $2,43 0,134 

$1,857,417 $2,430,134 

963 1,540,942 

26,810,146 

31,081,063 

$28,283,326 

23,443,150 

26,953,318 

6.25% 

3.50% 

6.75% 

4.00% 

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost for the plans for fiscal years 2003,2002 and 
2001: 

Net Periodic Pension Cost 

Year Ending December 31, 
2003 2002 2001 

1,012,149 $ 895,888 

1,877,987 1,818,276 

(2,668,854) (2,800,350) 

$ 901,220 

1,780,967 

(2,821,040) 

Service Cost 

Interest Cost 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 
Amortization of Transition 
Obligation/ (Ass et) 

Amortization of Prior Service Cost 

Amortization of Net (Gain) or Loss 

Total FAS 87 Net Periodic Pension Cost 

FAS 88 Charges / (Credits) 

(a) Settlement 

(b) Curtailment 

(c) Special Termination Benefits 

(d) Total 

Total Net Periodic Pension Cost 

- 

722,015 

(829,342) 

(246,180) 

711,928 7 14,3 53 
(360,493) (7 87,13 7) 

572,717 (158,970) 

(9) --. , (246,180) 
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(10) Additional Information 

(a) Included 
Increase in Minimum Liability 
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in Other Comprehensive Income 

(1 1) Weighted Average Assumptions 

(a) Discount Rate 

(b) 
(c) Rate of Compensation Increase 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 

6.75% 

8.50% 

4.00% 

7.25% 

8.50% 
4.50% 

Plan Assets 

Target Percentage of Pian 
Allocation Assets at December 31 
2004 2003 2002 

(1) Plan Assets 

5 7% 
Equity 

(a) Securities 60% 

(b) Debt Securities 35 37 

(c) Real Estate 0 0 

61% 

37 

0 

(d) Other 

(e) Total 

5 2 G 
100% 100% 100% 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 
The expected rate of return on plan assets is 8.5%. FFU expects 8.5% to fall within the 50 to 
60-percentile range of returns on investment portfolios with asset diversification similar to that 
of the Pension Plan's target asset allocation. 

Investment Policy and Strategy 
FPU has established and maintains an investment policy designed to achieve a long-term rate of 
return, including investment income and appreciation, sufficient to meet the actuarial 
requirements of the Pension Plan. FTU seeks to accomplish its return objectives by investing in 
a diversified portfolio of equity, fixed income and cash securities seekmg a balance of growth 
and stability as well as an adequate level of liquidity for pension distributions as they fall due. 

'T,. Plan assets are constrained such that no more than 10% of the portfolio will be invested in any 
one issue. 

. .  
Cash Flows 

(1) Expected Contributions for Fiscal Year Ending December 31,2004 

(a) Expected Employer Contributions 

(b) Expected Employee Contribdons 

Estimated Future Benefit Payments Reflecting Expected 

Future Service for the Years Ending December 31, 
(2) 

7.00% 

8.50% 

5.50% 

2004 

2005 

2006 ' 

1,400,265 

1,457,715 

1,543,183 
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2007 

2008 

2009 - 2013 
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1,642,854 

1,7 22,50 8 

10,148,549 

Other Accounting Items 

Year Ending December 3 1, 
2003 2002 200 1 

(3) 

Market-Related Value of Assets 
Amount of Future Annual Benefits of Plan 
Participants 

Covered by Insurance Contracts Issued by the Employer 

or Related Parties 
Alternative Amortization Methods Used to 
Amortize 
(a) Prior Service Cost 

(b) U m e c o p e d  Net (Gain) or Loss 
Employer Commitments to Make Future Plan 

Amendments (that Serve as the Basis for the 

Employer's Accounting for the Plan) 

Description of Special or Contractual Tenmination 

Benefits Recognized Dudng the Period 

Cost of Benefits Described in (5)  
Explanation of Any Significant Change in Benefit 
Obligation or Plan Assets not Otherwise Apparent 
in 

the Above Disclosures 

Measurement Date Used December 31, 

$31,222,154 

t 

$32,050,20 1 $33,547,064 

- 8  

Straight-line Straight-line Straight-line 

Straight-line Straight-line Straight-line 

None 

N/A 
2003 

None 

N/A 
2002 

None 

N/A 
2001 

The amount included within other comprehensive income arising from a change in the additional minimum pension 
liabaty was $0 for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2003. 

The prior service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of active 
participalits. Gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the market-related value of 
assets are amortized over the average remaining service period of active participants. 

Medical PIan 

FPU sponsors a postretirement medical program. The medical plan is contributory with participants' contributions 
adjusted annually. The following tables provide required financial disclosures over the 2-year period ending December 
31,2003: 

Benefit Obligations and Funded Status 

Year Ending December 31, 
2003 2002 
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(1) Change in Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation 
(a) 

(b) Service Cost 

(c) Interest Cost 

(d) A c t u h a l  (Gah) or Loss 

(e) Benefits Paid 
(9 Change in Plan Provisions 

(g> Plan Participant's Con~but ions  

(h) Acquisition 

(i) Curtailment 

(i) Settlement 

Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at the 
Beginning of the Year 

Florida Public Utdities 2003 10-K 

$1,7 25,639 
66,117 

108,849 

(23,328) 

(9 1,909) 
- 

22,631 

$1,410,368 . 

59,873 
111,207 

1 84,63 1 
(60,938) 

- 

20,498 

(a) Prepaid Benefit Cost 

@> Accrued Benefit Liabdity. 

(c) Intangible Asset 

(d) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 

(e) 

Weighted Average Assumptions at the End of the Year 

(a) Discount Rate 

(b) Rate of Compensation Increase 

Assumed Health Care Cost Trend Rates 

(a) 
@) Ultimate Rate 

Net Amount Recognized: (a) + (b) + (c) + (d) 

(5) 

-' 
Health Care Cost Trend Rate Assumed for Next Year 

Special Termination Benefits 
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation at the End of 
the Year $1,807,999 $1,725,639 

(2) Change in Plan Assets 

(a) 

(b) 
(c) Benefits Paid 

(d) Employer Contributions 

(e) Plan Participant's Contributions 

( f )  Acquisition 

(g) Settlement 

(h) 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Year 

Actual Return on Plan Assets 

Fair Value of Assets at the End of the Year 

(3) Net Amount Recognized 

(a) 
@) Unrecognized Transition Obligation (Asset) 

(c) Unrecognized Prior Service Cost 

(d) 

(e) 

Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial Position 

Funded Status: (Z)(h) - (1)(l) 

Unrecognized Net (Gah) or Loss 

Net Amount Recognized (a) + (b) 3- (c) + (d) 
_ L r  

(4) 

(91,909) (60,938) 

69,278 40,440 

22,631 20,498 

$(1,807,999) $(1,725,639) 

' 386,054 428,950 

(223 , 1 9 6)  (207,9 89) 

$ - $  
(1,645,141) (1,504,678) 

6.25% 

N/A 

5.25 '/o 

4.00% 

5.50% 

4.50% 
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(c) Year that the Ultimate Rate is Reached 
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2009 2007 

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost 
Year Ending December 31, 

2003 2002 2001 

Service Cost 

Interest Cost 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 
Amortization of Transition 
Obligation/ (Asset) 

Amortization of Prior Service Cost 

Amortization of Net (Gain> or Loss 

Total FAS 106 Net Periodic Benefit Cost 

Other Charges / (Credits) 

(a) Settlement 

ca> Curtailrnent 

(c) Special Termination Benefits 

(d) Total 

Total Net Periodic Benefit Cost 

Weighted Average Assumptions 

(a) Discount Rate 

@) 
(c) Rate of Compensation Increase 

Assumed Health Care Cost Trend Rates 
Health Care Cost Trend Rate 

(a) Assumed for 
Current Year 

(b) Ultimate Rate 

(c) Reached r 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 

Year that the Ultimate Rate is 

$ 66,117 

108,849 

42,896 

(8,121) 

209,741 

- 

$ 209,741 

6.75% 

N/A 
N/A 

5.50% 

4.50% 

2007 

$ 59,873 

11 1,207 

42,896 

(4,822) 

209.1 54 

$209,154 

6.25% 

5.00% 

2007 

$ 77,425 

103,649 

42,896 

(4,778) 

2'19,192 

$219.192 

7.0 0% 

5.50% 

2007 

..:, . (12) Impact of One-Percentage-Point Change in 
. Assumed Health Care Cost Trend Rates Increase Decrease 

,' Effect on Service Cost + Interest 

Effect on Postretirement Benefit 
,(a) . cost $ 23,608 $ (19,800) 

(b) Obligation 212,288 (I 80,693) 

Pian Assets 

Target Percentage of Plan 
Allocation Assets at December 31 
2004 2003 2002 

(1) Plan Assets 
Equity 

(a) Secuhties N/A N/A N/A 
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@) Debt Secudties N/A 
(c) RealEstate N/A 
(d) Other N/A 

(e) Total N/A 

Florida Public U.tilities 2003 IO-K 

Cash Flows 

Expected contributions for year ending December 31 , 2004 
(a) Expected employer contributions $93,258 
(b) Expected employee contributions $1 8,868 

Estimated future benefit payments reflecting expected 
future senrice for the years ending December 31 , 
(a) 2004 
(b) 2005 
(c) 2006 
(d) 2007 
(e) 2008 
(9 2009-2013 

$1 12,126 
$1 23,611 

, $144,339 
$107,390 
$1 22,923 
$739,086 

Other Accounting Items 

Year Ending December 31 
2003 2002 2001 

(5) 

Market-Related Value of Assets N/A N/A 
Amount of Future Annual Benefits of Plan 
Participants 

Covered by Insurance Contracts Issued by the Employer 

or Related Parties 
Alternative Amortization Methods Used to 
Amortize 

(a) Prior Service Cost 

(b) Unrecognized Net (Gain) or Loss 
Employer Commitments to Make Future Plan 

Amendments (that Serve as the Basis for the 

Employer's Accounting for the Plan) 

Description of Special or Contractual Termination 

Benefits Recognized During the Period 
Cost of Benefits Described in (5) 

Explanation of Any Significant Change in Benefit 
Obligation or Plan Assets not Otherwise Apparent 
in 

the Above Disclosures 

Measurement Date Used, December 31, 

Straight-he , Straight-line 

Straight-Line Straight-Line 

None 

N/A 
2003 

None 

N/A 
2002 

Straight-Line 

Straight-line 

None 

N/A 
200 1 
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FPU, as an entity that sponsors a postretirement health care plan that provides prescription drug benefits, has 
elected to defer recognition of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 
signed into law December 8,2003, in its consolidated financial statements, as provided by FASB Staff Position 
(FSP) No. FAS 106-1. In accordance with the FSP, any measures of the accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation or net periodic postretirement benefit cost in the consolidated financial statements or accompanying 
notes to the consolidated financial statements do not reflect the effects of the Act on the plan. Furthermore, 
specific authoritative guidance on the accounting for the federal subsidy is pending and that pdance ,  when 
issued, could require FPU to change previously reported information. 

For measurement purposes, the annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits during 2003 
was 5.5%. These rates were assumed to decrease gradually each year to a rate of 4.50% for 2007 and remain at that level 
thereafter. 

Health Plan 

In December 2003, R U  became fully insured for its employees and retiree medical insurance plan and therefore will no 
lunger incur the risks associated with self-insurance in 2004. An estimated reserve has been accrued for the remaining 
claims at December 31,2003 in the amount of $179,000. 

Net health care benefits paid by €TU for active employees were approximately $1,069,000, $732,000 and $629,000 and for 
2003,2002 and 2001 excluding administrative and stop-loss insurance. 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan 

mu's Employee Stock Purchase Plan offers common stock at a discount to qualified employees. During 2003,2002 and 
2001,18,974,17,589 and 15,699 shares were issued under the Plan for aggregate consideration of $229,000, $195,000 and 

i , $1 62,000. 

Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
During 2003,2002 and 2001,13,838, 13,413 and 16,404 shares were issued under FpU's Dividend Reinvestment Plan for 
aggregate consideration of $213,000, $1 85,000 and $196,000. 

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for investments held in escrow for environmental costs, notes payable, 
taxes accrued and other accrued liabilities approximate fair value. As the older bonds contain 'make whole' provisions it 
would negate any fluctuation in interest rates. The fair value of long-term debt is estimated by discounting the future cash 
flows of each issuance at rates currently offered to FPU for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities. The current 
year and the values in the prior year are shown below. 

'. ' 

2003 2002 
Carrying Approximate Carrying Approximate 
Amounts Fair Value Amounts Fair Value 

3 52,500,000 62,752,000 $52,500,000 $ 60,215,000 Long-term debt 

14, Contingencies 

Environmental 
FPU is subject to federal and state legislation With respect to soil, groundwater and employee health and safety matters and 
to environmental regulations issued by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency @PA) and other federal and state agencies. Except as discussed below, FPU does not 
expect to incur material future expenditures for compliance with existing environmental laws and regulations. 
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West Palm Beach Site. 
FPU is currently evaluating remedial options to respond to environmental impacts to soil and groundwater at and in-the 
immediate vicinity of a parcel of property owned by it in West Palm Beach, Flodda upon which FPU previously operated a 
gasification plant. FPU entered into a consent order with the Flodda Depament  of Environmental Protection (HFDEP") 
effective A p d  8,1991, that requires FPU to delineate the extent of soil and groundwater impacts associated with the prior 
operation of the gasification plant and to remediate such soil and groundwater impacts, if necessary. Numerous reports 
have been submitted by FPU to FDEP, describing the results of soil and groundwater sampling conducted at the site. A 
Supplemental Contamination Assessment Report Addendum ("SCARA") was submitted to FDEP in December 2001, 
summarizing the results of past investigations and providing the results of additional field work conducted in 2001, in 
response to comments received previously horn FDEP. On September 29,2003, FPU submitted to FDEP a 
Comprehensive Soil and Groundwater Assessment Report, that described the results of substantial additional field work 
undertaken in 2003 to respond to FDEP's comments to the SCARA. 

On January 30,2004, FPU's consultant, Jacques Whitford Company, submitted its Internal Feasibility Study, which 
identified likely remedial alternatives to address the impacts now characterized at the West Palm Beach site. The Internal 
Feasibility Study evaluated a wide range of remedial alternatives. Based on the likely acceptability of proven remedial 
technologies imp1emented.at s d a r  sites in other states, consulthg/remediation costs are now projected to range from $10 
million - $15 d o n .  This range of costs covers such remedies as in situ solidification, slurry wall and cap containment, air 
sparge/soil vapor extraction, or in situ chemical oxidation, or some combination of these remedies. 

Prior to FDEP's approval of a final remedy for the site, FTV is unable to determine the complete extent ox cost of 
remedial action which may be required. Based on findmgs from the recently completed Internal Feasibaty Study, 
remediation costs (including attorneys' fees and costs) for this site are currently project to range from $10.3 miilion to $15.3 
million. 

Sanford Site. 
owns a parcel of property located in Sanford, Florida, upon which a gasification plant was operated prior to F'PUfs 

acquisition of the property. Following discovery of soil and groundwater impacts on the property, W U  has participated 
with four former owners and operators of the gasification plant in the funding of numerous investigations of the extent of 
the impacts and the identification of an appropriate remedy. On or about March 25,1998, FPU executed an 
Administrative Order on Consent (IIAOC'I) with the four former owners and operators (collectively, the "Group") and the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency (I'EPA") that obligated the Group to implement a Remedial 
Investgation/Feasib~ty Study ("RI/FS") task and to pay EPA's past and hture oversight costs for the RI/FS. The Group 
also entered into a Participation Agreement and an Escrow Agreement on or about April 13,1998 ("RI/FS Participation 
Agreement"). These agreements governed the manner and means by which all parties were to satisfy their respective 
obligations under the AOC for the RI/FS task. FPU agreed to pay approximately 13.7% of the cost for the RI/FS. Field 
work for the RI/E was initiated in 1998. A final Rl: report was submitted to EPA in July 1999. The Group also submitted 
a Baseline Risk Assessment to EPA inJanuary 2000, including an Ecological Risk Assessment ("ERA"). FpU's share of 

. I r  . the cost of these tasks was previously paid in -full. The RI/l%Yardcipa&n Agreement was amended on September 18, 

cover EPA oversight costs for the RL/FS. FPU paid its share ($54,822) of the additional RI/K funding in November 
2003.' ' 

'. ' 2003, to authorize an additional $400,000 to be incurred by the Group to complete the ecological risk assessment and 

On July 5,2000, EPA issued a Record of Decision ("ROD") approving the final remedial action for contaminated soils at 
the site ("OUl Remedy"). The initial estimated cost fox the OU1 Remedy described in the ROD ranges from $5,593,000 to 
$5,760,000. On June 12,2001, EPA issued a ROD approving the final remedial action for contaminated groundwater at 
the site ('IOU2 Remedy"). The present worth cost estimate for the 0132 Remedy is $320,252. 

FPU is a party to the Second Participation Agreement entered into by members of the Group on August 1,2000, as 
amended through 
action task for OU1 and OU2. FTU's share of costs for implementation of the remedial designlremedial action task for 
OU1 and OU2, includmg the pre-remedial design fieldwork described below, is 10.5%, as long as the total cost of the 
remedial design/remedial action task, including the pre-remedial design fieldwork, does not exceed $6 million. 

19,2002. The Second Participation Agreement provides for funding the remedial design/remedial 
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Pre-remedial design field work was performed in 2002-03 to assist 
Based on the pre-remedial design field work, it is now anticipated that the final cost of &e remedy for OU1 and OUZ will 
sipficantly exceed the $6 d o n  combined estimate provided in the RODS for OU1 and OU2. In 2002, FPU paid 
$210,178 to the Escrow Agent pursuant to a first call for funds under the Second Partkipation Agreement. WU's 
remaining obligation under the Second Participation Agreement for the remedial design/remedial action task for OU1 and 
OU2 is $420,356. This assumes P U ' s  total allocated share remains no greater than 10.5089% of $6 d o n ,  as currently 
set forth in the Second Participation Agreement, as amended through June 19,2002. FPU has notified Group members 
that FPU will oppose any effort by the Group to increase FPU's share of total remedial costs above 10.5089% of the 
current $G million cap, since the increased remedial cost is due to the discovery of additional impacted soils on property 
not owned by FPU. 
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the design of the final remedy for OU1 and OTJZ. 

In addition, F'PU will be obligated to pay for a share of EPA's oversight costs for the remedial design/remedial action task 
for OU1 and OU2. It is anticipated that F'PU's share of these costs will be 10.5089% of EPA's total bill. It is not possible 
at this h e  to calculate, to a reasonable degree of certainty, EPA's oversight cost. 
Prior to EPA's approval of a final remedy for the site, and the completion of negotiations among members of the Group 
on €TU'S maximum allocated share, FPU is unable to determine the complete extent of remaining exposure at this site. 

Based on existing information, FPU believes that all future contamination assessment and remedial costs, legal fees 
and other related costs will not be in excess of the rate relief granted in favor of and insurance settlement proceeds 
received by FPU. 

Insurance Claims and Rate Relief 
On December 21,2003 the estimated remaining costs for consulting and remediation, legal expenses, and other related 
expenses for all sites is approximately $14 million. FPU currently has $14 d o n  reserved as an environmental liability. 
The Company has $5 million remaining from insurance and rate recovery and $9 million as a regulatory asset pending 
future rate recovery authorized by the FPSC. Based on existing information, management believes that all future 
contamination assessment and remedial costs, legal fees and other related costs will not be in excess of the rate relief 
granted by the FPSC and was granted the right to apply any over earnings in the gas division to the environmental 
reserve. 

- 0 ther 

Violet Skipper. PC Buvers. Inc. and Thomas Wade SkiDper v. Florida Public Utilities Companv, Case No. CL 00- 
10131-AF, Circuit Court of the FifteenthJudicial Circuit, Palm Beach County, Florida. On October 18,2000, 
Plaintiffs sued WU for damages allegedly resulting from a fire on Plaintiffs' property. Plaintiffs allege that P U  
failed to properly install and/or maintain electrical power lines, utility poles and related equipment Jocated on 
Plaintiffs' land and that FPU's negllgence caused a fire that spread to and destroyed a warehouse. €TU denied 
Plaintiffs' claims and defended same on the theory that the fire started within the warehouse/office faciJity and 
not from its electrical equipment. Plaintiffs alleged damages in excess of $1,000,000. The warehouse served as 
the office for PC Buyers, Inc. PC Buyers, Inc. was in the business of purchasing surplus vehicles and heavy 
equipment for resale. The warehouse contained property waiting to be resold. Much of this property was 
desiroyed in the &e. Trial in this matter occurred during the week of December 2,2003-December 5,2003. The 
jury returned a verdict in favor of FPU, &ding no liability on the part of FTU for the €ire. The Court recently 
entered a h a l  judgment on the jury's verdict onJanuary 21,2004. Plaintiffs had thray (30) days or until February 
20,2004 to file an appeal of the final judgment. Similarly, FFU had until February 20,2004 to hle a motion to tax 
costs. FPU proposed to Plaintiffs that it would waive its right to recover costs and potential attorney fees if 
Plaintiffs do not pursue an appeal of the final judgment. FPU received a letter from Plaintiffs' counsel advismg 
that Plaintiffs agreed to waive any right to appeal in exchange for FPU waiving its right to seek attorney's fees and 
costs against the Plaintiffs. On March 29,2004, Counsel for FPU was informed by the Court's Clerk that the 
Court has signed and entered the Dismissal Order. A copy is in the mail at the present time. Hence, this matter 
is closed, with no further appeals. 

Glen Simon v. Florida Public Utilities Commnv. Gapss. Inc. and Tames Celi, Case No. CA03-02209 AJ, Circuit 
Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, Palm Beach County, Florida. This case arises out of an explosion in the garage 
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of co-Defendant James Celi (HCeLj") that allegedly resulted horn the negligent installation of a water heater by co- 
Defendant Gapss, Inc. ("Gapss"). Prior to the explosion, FPU had contracted with Gapss to install a water heater 
and stand in co-Defendant Celi's garage. Plaintiff filed his Complaint on February 27,2003 against FPU, Gapss and 
Celi. Plaintiff has voluntarily dismissed €TU fiom this case without prejudice. FPU previously asserted a cross-claim 
against Celi for contribution and a cross-claim agamst Gapss for contribution, indemnification, and breach of 
contract. Celi also asserted a cross-claim agahst Fl?U for contribution. Both FPU and Celi have dismissed their 
respective cross-claims against each other without prejudice. FPU will be d i s m i s s i n g  its cross-claim against Gapss 
without prejudice. Upon the flling of WU's d i s m i s s a l  of its cross-claim against Gapss, Fi'PU will no longer be a party 
to this action. 

James F. Celi v. Gams. Inc. a/k/a Gas Appliance Piping: Sales & Service. Inc., Case No. 502003CA0091 lOXXONAJ, 
Circuit Court of the FifteenthJudicial Circuit, Palm Beach County? Florida. This case arises out of an explosion in 
Claimant 'James Celi's ("Cel?') garage that degedly resulted from the negligent installation of a water heater by Gapss, 
Inc. ("Gapss"). Prior to the explosion, FTU had contracted with Gapss to install a water heater and stand in Celi's 
garage. Although M i  Celi previously indicated he was considering filing a claim against FFU, Mr. Celi has filed a 
lawsuit against G p s s  only on August 25,2003. In the event a lawsuit is filed against FTU, FTW intends to vigorously 
defend against the claim. 

Pibeline Contract On July 21,2000, W U  entered into a Gas Transportation Agreement ("GTA") with Lake Worth 
Generation, LL,C (I'LWG"), that provided for: (i) the construction of a natural gas pipeline ("LWG Lateral") by F'PU to 
a power generation project being developed by LWG on behalf of the City of Lake Worth, Florida ("LWG Project"); 
(ii) FPU's agreement to transport natural gas to the LWG Project via the LWG Lateral; and (G) LWG's commitment to ' 
pay certain charges for the gas transportation services provided by FTU over a 30 year period. The charges for gas 
transportation services were set at an amount that would permit F'PU to recover a return of 11.17% on its 
undepreciated investment in the construction of the LWG Lateral, plus recover its operation and maintenance 
("O&M") expenses. LWG's obligation to pay for the gas transportation services was secured by an irrevocable letter of 
credit ("LC") issued on July 6,2001, and provided to €TU in the amount of the initial estimated cost of construction of 
$5,490,449. The GTA required monthly payments by LWG in the amount of $109,423 for the first year of the 
contract, adjusted annually thereafter to account for depreciation of the LWG Lateral. "he GTA also required LWG 
to increase the amount of the LC to cover the actual cost of construction of the LWG Lateral, plus $37,900. In the 
fourth quarter of 2002, LWG notified F'PU that, due to financial difficulties encountered by LWG and its contractors 
in connection with the LWG Project, LWG would not be able to increase the LC, as required by the GTA, or make 
monthly payments prospectively beginning in December for services performed in November 2002. FPU, LWG and 
the City of Lake Worth subsequently entered into a Forbearance Agreement, dated December 31,2002, and an 
Amended Forbearance Agreement, dated February 19,2003. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of these 
agreements, the City and F'PU negotiated a new gas transportation agreement to replace the GTA, that provides for 
FPU's agreement to provide gas transportation services to the City on the LWG Lateral, subject to payment by the City 
of transportation charges that is set initially to p e d t  FTU to recover a return of 8.77% on its undepreciated 
investment in the construcGon of the LWG Lateral, plus O&M expenses. FpU's rates are subject to adjustment in 
subsequent rate proceedings before the FPSC. F'PU and the City successfully executed a new gas transportation 
agreement by March 31,2003, therefore, FT'U received payment for the shortfalls in monthly payments under the GTA 
through March 31,2003, plus interest, plus a termhation fee of $1.5 d o n  dollars, plus other expenses. 

To ensure a reliable supply of power and natural gas at competitive prices, FTU has entered into long-term purchase and 
transportation contracts with various suppliers and producers, which expire at various dates through 2015. Purchase prices 
under these contracts are determined by formulas either based on market prices or at fixed prices. At December 31,2003, 
F'PU has firm purchase and transportation commitments adequate to supply its expected future sales requirements. FPU is 
committed to pay,demand or similar fixed charges of approximately $18.8 million during 2003 related to gas purchase 
agreements. Substantially all costs incurred under the electric and gas purchase agreements are recoverable from customers 
through he1 adjustment clause mechanisms. 

Contractual Obligations 
Payments due by period (dollars in thousands): 
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Less than 
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More than 

Long-Term Debt 
Operating Lease Obligations 
Gas Purchase Obligntions 
Electric Purchase Oblimtions 33 7 13 13 

Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years 
$52,500 $ - $ $ -  $ 52,500 

96 48 43 5 
12,119 55,527 18,7 89 14,77 9 9,840 

Other Purchase Obliguons 356 190 162 4 
$108,512 $ 19,034 $ 14,997 8 9,862 $ 64,619 Total 

16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

The quarterly fhancid data presented below reflects the influence of, among other things, seasonal weather conditions, the 
timing of rate increases and the migration of winter residents and tourists to Central and South Florida during the winter 
season. The water division has been classified as discontinued operations and is excluded from revenues, gross profit, and 
operating income excluding income tax. (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts): 

FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH 

2003 
Revenues 
Gross profit 
Operating income from continuing operations excluding income tax 
Income from continuing operations, net of income taxes 
Income from Qscontinued operations, net of income taxes 
Net Income 
Ea&gs per common share (basic and diluted): 

Continuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
Total 

QUARTER 

$ 31,149 
11,241 

4,135 
1,813 
9,882 

11,695 

2002 
Revenues 8 
Gross profit 
Operating income from continuing operations excluding income tax 
Income from continuing operations, net of income taxes 

-’; I Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 
Net Income 
Earnings per c o m o n  share (basic and,diluted): 

Con,tinuing operations 
Discontinued operations 
To tal 

0.46 
2.54 

3.00 

23,717 
9,632 
3,161 
1,466 

108 

1,574 

0.38 
0.03 

0.43 

QUARTER 

$ 24,409 
9,144 
1,651 

482 

(61) 
421 

0.13 
(0.02) 

0.1 1 

20,707 
8,292 

1,731 
489 
205 
694 

0.12 

0.05 
0.17 

QUARTER QUARTER 

(0.02) 

(0.02) 

3 20,283 
8,110 
1,336 

275 

195 
470 

0.07 
0.05 
0.12 

25,537 
9,242 
1,200 

309 

85 
394 

0.08 

0.02 
0.10 

$ 23,754 
8,895 
1,561 

53 1 
34 

625 

0.13 
0.02 

0.15 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Florida Public Uiihties 2003 10-K 

To the Directors and Shareholders of Florida Public Utilities Company: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and statement of capitalization of Florida Public 
Utilities Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaxy, Flo-Gas Corporation as of December 31,2003 and the related 
consolidated Statements of income, common shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 
2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these h a n c i d  statements based on OUT audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with audidng standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the hnancial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In OUT opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Florida Public Utilities Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation at December 31,2003 and the 
results of their operations and the& cash flows for the year ended December 31,2003 in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

BDO Seidman, U P  
Certified Public Accountants 
West Palm Beach, Florida 
February 13,2004 

I INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Directors and Shareholders of Florida Public Utilities Company: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and statement of capitalization of Horida Public 
Utilities Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, No-Gas Corporation, as of December 31,2002, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, cornmon shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the two years in the 
period ended December 31,2002. Our audits also included the 2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statement 
schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the 
responsibihty of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
and financial statement schedule based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall hancial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

.. . 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fajrly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Florida Public Utilities Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Flo-Gas Corporation at December 31,2002, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31,2002 in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such 
2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic 2002 and 2001 
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth 
therein. 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Florida Public Utdlties Company ("WUtt) annually considers the 
selection of Florida Public Utilities Company's independent public accountants. As such, FTLJ's Audit Committee, 
on April 15,2003, decided to d i s m i s s  Deloitte & Touche U P  ("Deloitte & Touche") as €!loAda Public Utilities 
Company's independent public accountants and to engage BDO Seidman, U P  ("BDO Seidman"), as of April 17, 
2003, to serve as FTU's independent public accountants for the year ended December 31,2003. The Audit 
Committee made the determination as part of its responsibility under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related 
regulations adopted and proposed by the SEC, which formally charge audit committees of public companies with 
the responsibility of evaluating, retaining and dischargmg a company's independent auditor. 

Deloitte & Touche's reports on Florida Public Utilities Company's consolidated financial statements as of and for 
the years ended December 31,2001 and 2002 did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor were 
they qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles. During years ended December 31, 
2001 and 2002, there were no disagreements with Deloitte & Touche on any matter of accounting principles 01: 
practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure which, if not resolved to Deloitte & 
Touche's satisfaction, would have caused them to make reference to the subject matter in connection with their 
report on FPU's consolidated financial statements for such years. 

Florida Public Utilities Company provided Deloitte & Touche with a copy of the foregoing disclosures. Deloitte & 
Touche's letter, dated April 18,2003, statkg its agreement with the above statements was fled as exhibit 16 to Form 

( ' 8-K filed on April 18,2003. 

During Florida Public Utilities Company's years ended December 31,2001 and 2002, FTU &d not consult with 
BDO Seidman in respect to the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or 
proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on WU's consolidated hancial statements. 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

€TU'S management carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of nu's  Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of J2U's disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defuled in Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e) under the Exchange Act). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 31,2003, FPU's dsclosure controls and 
procedures were (1) designed to ensure that material information relating to FPU is made known to R U ' s  Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer by others, particularly during the period in whch this report was being 
prepared, and (2) effective, 
in the reports that FPU files or submits under the Exchange Act are recorded, processed, summarized and reported 
within the t ime periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. 

L. ' 

that they provide reasonable assutance that infomation required to be disclosed by WU 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

No change in FPU's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f) under the 
Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31,2003 that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
likely to materially affect, FPU's internal control over financial reporting. 
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Horida Public Utiliries 2003 IO-K 

, . Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers ofthe Registrant 

Infomation concernkg directors and nominees of the Registrant is included under the caption ''Nominees and 
Continuing Directors" in the Registrant's Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is 
incorporated by reference herein. Information required by Items 405 and 406 of Regulation S-K will be included in 
the Regktrant's Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated by reference herein. 

The following table sets forth certah information about the executive officers of the Registrant as of February 24, 
2004. 

Name 

John T. English 

Charles L. Stein 

George M. Bachman 

Position 

60 Chief Executive Officer 
President 
Chief Operating Officer 

54 Senior Vice President 
Chief Operating Officer 

44 Corporate Secretary 
Chief Financial Officer 
Treasurer 

Date 

1998 - Present 
1997 - Present 
1997 - 2000 

1997 - Present 
2001 - Present 

2004 - Present 
2001 - Present 
2001 - Present 

Mr. English was Senior Vice President born 1993 preceding his appointment as President and Chief Operating Officer. 

Mi. Stein was Vice President from 1993 preceding his appointment as Senior Vice President. 

Mr. Bachman was Controller from 1996 preceding his appointment as Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer. 

There are no family relationships between the executive officers and directors. 

All executive officers are appointed for a one-year term. 

Executive Compensation Item 11. 

Information concerning executive compensation is included under the caption "Executive Compensation'' in the 
Registrant's Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated by reference herein. 

- 3 ,  

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Benefrcial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. 

Information concernkg the security ownership of certain of the Regstrant's beneficial owners and management is 
included under the captions "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners'' and "Nominees and Continuing 
Directors'' in the Registrant's Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated by 
reference herein. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
There were no relationships or related party transactions with respect to F'PU during the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2003 that would require disclosure pursuant to Item 404 of Regulation S-K. 

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 
, .  

The following table presents fees for professional services rendered by BDO Seidman I,LP for the fiscal year ended 
December 31,2003 and by Deloitte & Touche U P  for the fiscal year ended December 31,2002 and fees billed for other 
services rendered by BDO Seidman and Deloitte & Touche during their respective fiscal years. 
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Balance at Charges to Bad 
Beffnning of Period Deductions Debt Expense 

2001 $ 162,000 444,000 410,000 
2002 $ 128,000 224,000 400,000 
2003 $ 304,000 301,000 177,000 
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Balance at End of 
Period 

$ 128,000 
$ 304,000 
$ 180,000 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31: 2003 2002 
(BDO Seidman) (Deloitte & Touche) 

Audit Fees $1 10,000 $135,000 . 

Audit Related Fees 

All Other Fees 35.000 
Total $1 10.000 $I 79,000 

Tax Fees 9,000 

The Audit C o d t t e e  has concluded the provision of the non-audit services listed above is compatible with maintaining 
the independence of Deloitte. . 

PART IV 

! . '  

2. 

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K 

Financial Statements 
The following consolidated fulancial statements of Florida Public Utilities Company are included herein 
and in the Registrant's 2003 Annual Report to Shareholders. 

Consolidated Statements of Income 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization 
Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders' Equity 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Independent Auditors' Report 
Independent Auditors' Report 

Financial Statement Schedules 

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Exhibits 

See exhibit index following signatures. 

(b) Repovts on Form 8-IC 

A Form 8-K was fled November 14,2003 announcing a press release relating to 3rd  quarter 
earnings. 
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SI GNATUmS 

Pursuant to the xequkernents of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC UTIIJTIES COMPANY 

/s/ GeorEe M Bachman 
George M Bachman, Chief Financial Officer 
(Duly Authorized Officer) 

Date: March 30,2004 

Each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints and John T. English, Chief Execudve Officer 
and President, and George M. Bachman, Chief Financial Officer, and each of them, the true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and 
agents of the undersigned, with hll power undersigned, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K and to hIe the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, and hereby grants to such attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, fdl power and 
authority to do and perform each and ev.ery act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes 
as the undersigned might or could do in person, hereby ratifjmg and confirinkg all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any 
of them, or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof. 

/ s /  Tohn T. Enelish 
John T. English 
President, Chief Executive Officer, and 
Director (principal executive officer) 

Date: March 30.2004 

/ s /  Georpe M Bachman 
George M Bachman, Chief Financial Officer 
(principal financial officer and principal accounting officer) 

Date: March 30.2004 

/ s /  Ellen Term Benoit 
Ellen Terry Benoit 

Date: March 30. 2004 

_ ( -  Director 
*. * 

/ s /  Richard C. Hitchins 
Richard C. Hitchins 

Date: March 30.2004 

Director 

/ s /  Paul L. Maddock.-Tr. 
Paul L. Maddock, Jr. 
Director 

Date: March 30.2004 

/s/  Rudv E. Schupp 
Rudy E. Schupp 
Director 

Date: March 30.2004 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 
EXHIBIT INDEX 

Regulation S-K 
Item Number 

3 (9 

3(ii) 

. lO(e) 

Amended Articles of Incorporation (Incorporated her& by reference as Exhibit 3(i) to WU’s 
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period endedJune 30,2002. SEC File No. 1-10608) 

Amended By-Laws (Incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 3(ii) to F’PU’s quarterly report on 
Form 10-Q for the period endedjune 30,2002. SEC File No. 1-10608) 

Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust of FTU dated as of September 1,1942 (Incorporated by 
reference herein to Exhibit 7-A to Registration No. 2-6087). 

Fourteenth supplemental Indenture dated September 1,2001. (Incorporated by reference to 
exhibit 4@) on P U ’ s  annual report on form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2001) 

Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture dated Novembet 1,2001. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 
4(c) on FPU’s annual report on form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2001) 

Employment agreement between Florida Public Utilities Company and John T. English, effective 
through May 31,2006. Employment agreements between Ronda Public Utilities Company and 
Charles L. Stein, Florida Public Utilities Company, and George M. Bachman, effective though 
May 31,2006, are essentially identical to the agreement in this exhibit. (Incorporated by reference 
to exhibit lO(a) on FPU’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 
2003) 

Contract for the transportation of natural gas between Rorida Public Utilities Company and 
Florida Gas Transmission Company under Service Agreement for Firm Transportation Service 
dated June 1,1992 (Incorporated by reference to exhibit lo@) on WU’s Form S-2 for July 1992, 
File No. 0-1055) 

Contract for the transportation of natural gas between Ronda Public Utilities Company and Florida 
Gas Transmission Company under interruptible Transportation Service Agreement dated February 
23,1990 (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 1O(c) on WU’s Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0- 
1055). 

Contract for the transportation of natural gas between Florida Public Utilities Company and the City 
of Lake Worth dated March 25,1992 (Incorporated by reference to exhibit lO(f) on FpU’s Form S-2 
for July 1992, File No. 0-1055) 

Contract for the purchase of electric power between Florida Public Utilities Company and 
Jacksonville Electric Authority datedJanuary 29,1996. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit lo@) on 
mu’s annual report on form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2000) 

Contract for the purchase of electric power between Florida Public Utilities Company and Gulf 
Power Company effective November 21,1996. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 100  on FpU’s 
annual report on form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2000) 

Contract for t h e  purchase of as-available capacity and energy between Florida Public Utilities 
Company and Container Corporation of America dated September 19, I985 (Incorporated by 
reference to exhibit 1O(i) on WU’s Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055). 
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Contract for the sale of electric service between Norida Public Utilities Company and Container 
Corporation of America dated August 26,1982 (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 106) on I.”s 
Form S-2 forJuly 1992, File No. 0-1055). 

lO(i) 

16 

21. 

23.1 

23.2 

31.1 

31.2 
* ,  

32.1 

.32.2 

99.1 

% .  

99.2 

39.3 

Contract for the sale of electric service between Florida Public Utilities Company and 1” Rayoder 
Inc. Dated Apd 1, 1982 (Incorporated by reference to exhibit lo@) on FPU’s Form S-2 for July 

1,1992, File No. 0-1055). 

Form of Stock Purchase and Sale Agreement between Rorida Public Utilities Company and three 
persons who, upon t e h a d o n  of two trusts, will become the record and beneficial owners of an 
aggregate of 313,554 common shares of the Registrant (Incorporated by reference to exhibit lo@) on 
FPU’s Form S-2 for July 1992, File No. 0-1055). 

Contract for the sale of certain assets comprising WU’s water utility business to the City of 
Femandina Beach dated December 3,2002. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(0) on WU’s 
annual report on form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2002) 

Transportation agreement between Florida Public Utilities Company and the City of Lake Worth. 
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.2 on WU’s Form 8-K filed April 4,2003, File No. 001- 
10608) 

A Mutual Release agreement, as of March 31s t  2003, by and between Florida Public Utilities 
Company, Lake Worth. Generation, LLC, The City of Lake Worth, and Tfie AES Corporation. 
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.3 on FPU’s Form 8-K filed April 4, 2003, File No. 001- 
10608) 

Change in certifymg accountants (incorporated herein by reference as exhibit 16 to F ” s  current 
report on Form 8-K filed April 18,2003). 

Subsidiary of the registrant (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 21 on FPU’s annual report on 
form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2000) 

Independent Auditors’ Consent Deloitte & Touche U P  

Independent Auditors’ Consent BDO Seidman U P  

Cerdfication of Principal Executive Officer (302) 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer (302) 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer (906) 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer (906) 

Audit Committee Charter 

Nominating Committee Charter 

Ethics Policy 
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Exhibit 31(1) 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
FIORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 

(Section 302) 

I, John T. English, certify that 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Florida Public Utilities Company (the "registrant"); 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other cerbfying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-l5(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which. this report is being prepared; 

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controIs and procedures and presented in this report OUT 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by 
this report based on such evaluation; and 

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial 
reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other cerbfying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and'the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and 
report financial information; and 

_ I "  '. ' 

' 

. ' 
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a sigruficant role in 
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: March 30,2004 

By / s /  T o h T  English 
John T. English 
Chief Executive Officer 



Exhibit 31(2) 

I, George M. Bachman, c e M  that: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

i ,I ' ... , 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 

(Section 302) 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Florida Public Utilities Company (the "registrant"); 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, In light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information inchded in this report, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations.and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report; 

The registrant's other cerbfying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined 
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5(f) and 15d-l5(f)) for the registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controIs and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by 
this report based on such evaluation; and 

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materiaIly affect, the registrant's internal control over financial 
reporting; and 

The registrant's other cerfdying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) All sigruficant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of interna1 control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and 
report financial information; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a signhcant rale in 
* ' I the registrant's internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: March 30,2004 

By /s /  Georfie M. 3achman 
'George M. Bachman 
Chief Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32(1) 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

n connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Florida Public Utilities Company (the "Company") €or the 
edod ended December 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 
Form 10-K"), I, John T. English, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, to the best of my knowledge, 
lursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 

(1) The Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condrtion and results of operations of the Company. 

Is /  lohn T. Enptish 
John T. English 
Chief Executive Officer 
March 30,2004 



Exhibit 32(2) 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 W.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT 'ro 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

n connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Florida Public Utilities Company (the "Company") for the 
eriod ended December 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C o d s s i o n  on the date hereof (the 
Form IO-K"), I, George M. Bachrnan, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, c e r e ,  to the best of my knowledge, 
utrsuant to 18 U.S.C. tj 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that  

(1) . The FormlU-K M y  compfies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the  Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934; and 

The information contained in the Form 10-K fakly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition and results of operations of the Company. 

(2) 

/s/ Georpe M. Bachman 
George M. Bachman 
Chef Financial Officer 
March 30,2004 



Ex hi b it 23. I 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-63532 on Form S-3 and 
Registration Statement No. 333-63942 on Form S-8 of Florida Public Utilities Company, of our report 
dated February 19,2003, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Florida Public Utilities 
Company for the year ended December 3 1,2003. 

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 

West Palm Beach, Florida 
March 29,2004 



Florida Public Utilities Company 
West Palm Beach Florida 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 
(No.333- 63532) and on Form S-8 (No. 333-63942) of Florida Public Utilities Company of our report 
dated February 1 3,2004, relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial schedule, 
which appear in this Form IO-K. 

5DO Seidman, LLP 
West Palm Beach , Florida 

March 29,2004 



Ex hibit 99.1 

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER 

I. Purpose and Scope 

The primary fimctions of the Audit Committee (the “Committee”) of the Board of 
Directors (the “Board”) are to oversee (i) the audit of the financial statements of Florida Public 
Utilities Company (the “Company”) provided to the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 
“SEC”), the Company’s shareholders and to the general public, (ii) the Company’s internal 
financial and accounting processes and controls, (iii) the Company’s disclosure controls and 
procedures, (iv) the independent audit process of the Company, and (v) the compliance by the 
Company with legal and regulatory requirements. 

II. Composition 

The Committee shall consist of a minimum of three independent (outside) directors 
appointed by the Board, who shall meet the requirements under any rules or regulations of the 
AMEX and any other applicable laws, as may be in effect from time to time. 

All members of the Committee shall be able to read and understand fundamental 
financial statements, including a balance sheet, cash flow statement and income statement. At 
least one member of the Committee shall have either (i) past employment experience in finance 
or accounting, (ii) requisite professional certification in accounting, or (iii) any other comparable 
experience or background which results in the individual’s financial sophistication, including 
being or having been a chief financial officer or other senior officer with financial oversight 
responsibilities. 

The Committee members shall be elected by the Board and shall serve until their 
successors shall be duly elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal. Unless 
a Chairman is elected by the full Board, the members of the Committee may designate a 
Chairman by majority vote of the full Committee membership. 

M. Responsibilities and Duties 

The Committee’s role is one of oversight, and it is recognized that the company’s 
management is responsible for preparing the Company’s financial statements and that the 
,independent accounting firm is responsible for auditing those financial statements. To fidfill its 
responsibilities and duties the Committee shall: 

A. Document Review 

1. Review and assess the adequacy of this Charter as conditions dictate, but at least 
annually, and recommend any proposed changes to this Charter to the Board for approval. 

2. Review with representatives of management and representatives of the 
independent accounting finn the Company’s audited annual financial statements prior to their 
filing as part of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K. After such review and discussion, 
which shall include major issues regarding accounting and auditing principles and practices as 



i. I . .  ..* , 

well as the adequacy of internal controls that could significantly affect the Company’s financial 
statements, the Committee shall recommend to the Board whether such audited financial 
Statements should be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Committee 
shall also review with representatives of management and representatives of the independent 
accounting firm the Company’s interim financial statements prior to their inclusion in the 
Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. 

3. Review with management and the independent accounting firm significant 
financial reporting issues and judgments made in connection with the preparation of the 
Company’s financial statements, including: (i) any significant changes in the Company’s 
selection or application of accounting principles; (ii) any significant issues or changes regarding 
accounting and auditing principles or practices; (iii) any significant issues regarding the adequacy 
of the Company’s internal controls; (iv) the development, selection and disclosure of critical 
accounting estimates; and (v) analyses of the effect of alternative assumptions, estimates or 
generally accepted accounting principles (,‘GAAP”) methods on the Company’s financial 
statements. 

4. Discuss with management and the independent accounting firm the effect of 
regulatory and accounting initiatives as well as any off-balance sheet structures on the 
Company’s financial statements. 

5 .  Discuss with management the quarterly earnings press releases, including “pro 
forma” and other “adjusted” non-GAAP information, as well as any financial information and 
earnings guidance provided to analysts, rating agencies and others. 

6. Meet periodically to review with management and the independent accounting 
firm their views on the Company’s major financial risk exposures, including the Company’s risk 
assessment and risk management policies, and the steps management has taken to monitor and 
control such exposures. 

B . Independent Accounting Firm Oversight 

1. Have the sole authority to appoint or replace the independent accounting fm and 
approve in advance the fees, scope, planning, staffing and terms of any audit and non-audit 
engagements of the independent accounting firm. The independent accounting firm shall report 
directly to the Committee. 

2. Specifically identify and approve in advance all non-audit services performed by 
the independent accounting finn. Conduct a periodic review of any ongoing non-audit services to 

’ .  review and approve their continued provision and scope. A11 non-audit services performed by the 
independent accounting fm shall be disclosed in the applicable periodic or annual report filed 
with the SEC. 

3. Meet with the independent accounting firm prior to the audit to review the 
planning and staffing of the audit. 

4. Oversee and evaluate the work of the independent accounting firm, including 
resolution of any disagreement between management and the independent accounting firm 
regarding financial reporting. 
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5. Review the experience and qualifications of the senior members of the 
independent accounting firm engaged on the Company’s account. Also, review the number of 
years that the lead audit partner and the audit partner responsible for reviewing the audit have 
performed audit services for the Company in the previous five fiscal years in order to address 
compliance with the five-year mandatory audit partner rotation requirement, Consider whether, in 
order to assure continuing auditor independence, it is appropriate to adopt a policy of rotating the 
independent accounting firm on a regular basis. 

6. Receive from the independent accounting firm, on an annual basis, a formal 
written statement identifying all relationships between the independent accounting firm and the 
Company consistent with Independence Standards Board Standard 1, as it may be modified or 
supplemented. The Committee shall actively engage in a dialogue with the independent 
accounting firm as to any disclosed relationships or services that may impact the objectivity and 
independence of the independent accounting firm. 

7. Discuss with representatives of the independent accounting firm, on a quarterly 
basis, the matters required by the Statement on Auditing Standards 61, as it may be modified or 
supplemented, which ensures the independent accounting f m ’ s  independence and addresses 
disclosure of any possible fraudulent activities. 

8. Obtain from the independent accounting fm, on a quarterly basis, assurance that 
Section 10A ofthe Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 has not been implicated. 

9. Obtain and review reports &om the independent accounting firm at least annually 
regarding: (i) the independent accounting firm’s internal quality-control procedures; (ii) any 
material issues raised by most recent quality-control review, or peer review, of the fim, or by any 
inquiry or investigation by governmental or professional authorities within the preceding five 
years respecting one or more independent audits carried out by the firm; (iii) any steps taken to 
deal with any such issues; and (iv) all relationships between the independent accounting firm and 
the Company. 

10. Discuss with the national office of independent accounting firm issues on which 
it was consulted by the Company’s audit team and matters of audit quality and consistency. 

1 1. Evaluate the qualifications, performance and independence of the independent 
accounting finn, including whether the adequacy of the independent accounting firm’s quality 
controls and the provision of any permitted non-audit services is compatible with maintaining the 
independent accounting firm’s independence and taking into account the opinions of 
management. 

-.- 

12. Review reports from the independent accounting firm related to (i) all critical 
accounting policies and practices used; (ii) all alternative treatments of financial information 
within GAAP related to material items that have been discussed with management, ramifications 
of the use of such alternative disclosures and treatments, and the treatment prefen-ed by the 
independent accounting firm; and (iii) other material written communications between the 
independent accounting firm and management, such as any management letter or schedule of 
unadjusted differences. 

13. Discuss any independent-accounting-firm reports with the independent 
accounting firm, report to the Board and, if so determined by the Committee, recommend that the 



Board take additional action to satisfy itself of the qualifications, performance and independence 
of the independent accounting fim. 

14. Establish and maintain clear policies regarding the hiring of employees or former 
employees of the independent accounting firm who were engaged on the Company’s account. 

15. Review with the independent accounting fm any significant problems or 
difficulties the independent accounting firm may have encountered and any management letter 
provided by the independent accounting firm and the Company’s response to that letter, including 
any restrictions on the scope of activities or access to required information, significant changes to 
the audit plan and any disagreement with management, which if not satisfactorily resolved would 
have affected the independent accounting firm’s opinion. 

16. Review with management and the independent accounting firm any 
correspondence with regulators or governmental agencies and any employee complaints or 
published reports which raise material issues regarding the Company’s fmancial statements or 
accounting policies. 

C. Compliance and Repurting 

1. Engage independent counsel, accounting consultants or other advisors to advise, 
as necessary, the Committee in connection with any matter within its duties and responsibilities. 

2. Review periodic reports provided by the Company regarding compliance by the 
employees of the Company and its subsidiary with applicable legal requirements and the 
Company’s standards of business conduct policies. 

3. Review with the Company’s General Counsel legal matters that may materially 
affect the financial statements, the Company’s compliance policies and any material reports or 
inquiries received from regulators or governmental agencies. 

4. Review annually, in consultation with the independent accounting firm and 
management, the adequacy of the Company’s internal- financial and accounting processes and 
controls. 

- , I  
5.  Prepare and submit, in accordance with the rules of the SEC as modified or 

supplemented from time to time, a written report of the Committee to be included in the 
Company’s annual proxy statement for each annual meeting of the Company’s stockholders. 

, .  

D. Other 

1. Meet at least quarterly with the Company’s senior executive officers, internal 
auditors, and the independent accounting firm. Include meeting with each group independently. 

2. Review any other matter brought to its attention within the scope of its duties, 
including any issue of significant financial misconduct. 

3. Establish procedures for (i) the receipt, review, retention and treatment of 
complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters; and (ii) the 



confidential or anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns regarding 
questionable accounting or auditing matters, and the receipt and review thereof. 

4. The corporate governance committee, not the audit committee, shall approve and 
administer a code of ethics, as defined by rules of SEC, for senior officers and such employees 
and agents of the Company as it determines. 

5 .  Review with the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer, prior to their quarterly or annual report certification submission to the SEC, (i) all 
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls that could adversely affect 
the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data, and any material 
weaknesses in the Company’s internal controls that they have identified for the Company’s 
independent accounting firm; (ii) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or 
other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal controls; and (iii) whether 
or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could 
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of the Chief Executive Officer’s and 
the Chief Financial Officer’s evaluation thereof, including any corrective actions with regard to 
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

6 .  Make regular reports to the Board. 

IV. Responsibility Summary 

While the Committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this Charter, it is not 
the duty of the Committee to plan or conduct audits or to determine that the Company’s fmancial 
statements are complete and accurate and are in accordance with GAAP. Those duties are the 
responsibility of management and the independent accounting firm. 
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FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY 

NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
CHARTER 

ROLE 
The role of the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance 
responsibilities. 

COMPOSITION 
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall: 

Be appointed by the Board of Directors 

Be composed of two or more members of the Board of Directors each of whom are 
independent under the definition set forth by the American Stock Exchange (AMEX) and 
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) 

RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Committee shall have the responsibility for making recommendations to the Board with 
respect to the governance of the Company as follows: 

Generally advise the Board on corporate governance matters; 

Develop and recommend to the Board a set of corporate governance principles applicable to 
the Company, periodically review the adequacy of such guidelines, and recommend to the 
Board any changes deemed appropriate; 

Determine Board membership qualification standards; 

Select and review candidates for Board membership consistent with membership 
qualification standards; 

Recommend to the Board, in accordance with Board policy: 
assignment of members to committees 
appointment of committee chairs 
rotation of committee members and chairs 

, -  

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has the authority to obtain advice 
and seek assistance of independent, professional advisors. The Committee has the sole 
authority to retain and terminate any search firm to be used to identify director candidates, 
including sole authority to approve such search firm’s fees and other retention terms. 



. I  

U T I L I T I E S  

Code of Ethics 



I Code of Ethics Contents 
Letter from our President 
Introduction 
Ethical Practices 

Values: Statement of Principle 
Personal Values and Conduct 
A Shared Commitment 

! 

Putting the Values to Work Ethical Commitments 

Guidelines for Ethical Decisions 
Our Common Working Environment 
Commitments to Interested Parties 

Implementing the Commitments 

Employees 
Shareholders 
Customers 

Vendors 
Reporting Illegal. Conduct 
Protecting Assets 
Using Copyrighted Materials 
Conflicts of Interest 

Outside Activities 
Gifts and Entertainment 
Bribes and Kickbacks 
Insider Trading 

.., Family and Friends 

Customer Relationships 
Vendor Relationships 
Community 

Ethical Leadership in the Community 
Communities 
Health, Safety and the Environment 
Relationship to the Political Process 
Competition 
Accountability 

Summary 

2 
3 
3 

5 

8 
8 

9 
10 

13 
14 
15 

18 

Page revised 5/27/03 
i 



FLORIMPUBUC 
U T I L I T I E S  

Dear Fellow Employee: 

The importance of integrity cannot be overstated. It is essential for our 
success - it is the most important quality an individual or company can 
possess. The integrity of our Company is a reflection of the collective 
integrity of each one of us. It takes time and hard work to earn a 

@ reputation of integrity, and an instant to destroy it through a single, 
inappropriate act. 

On the pages that follow, we have described the various aspects and 
perspectives of how we are to conduct ourselves in the business world. 
Each situation we will encounter is unique which means that the 
principles that follow are to guide us to an appropriate course of action. 
If, in any situation you have even the slightest doubt, do not hesitate to 
consult with your manager, director, the Director of Human Resources or 
any officer. 

II 

n 

Jack English 
President & CEO 
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Code of Ethics 

Introduction 
At Florida Public Utilities [FPU] we recognize the importance of integrity, 
trust and commitment to our success. We are committed to upholding 
high ethical standards in our operations and with everyone we come in 
contact with, i.e. our shareholders, employees, customers, contractors, 
vendors, competitors and the communities we serve. We believe in the 
principles of honesty, fairness, respect and honor. 

This code cannot and is not intended to cover every situation that we may 
encounter or provide the appropriate solution to all questions that might 
arise; for that we rely on each person’s common sense of what is right, 
including an understanding of when it is advisable to seek guidance from 
others on an appropriate course of conduct. Our business depends upon 
the reputation of the company and its directors, officers and employees for 
integrity and conduct based upon high ethical standards. 

Ethical Practices 

Values: A Statement of Principle 

New ways of organizing people and work within the company are giving 
each of us greater responsibility for making decisions. Given the 
complexity and constantly changing nature of our business and our 
society, no list of hard-and-fast rules, however long and detailed, could 
adequately cover all the dilemmas we potentially face. Thus, every 
employee is asked to take responsibility for making ethical decisions. 

Personal Values and Conduct 

In most situations, our personal values and honesty will guide us to the 
right decision. But in our capacity as employees and representatives of 
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FPU, we must also always consider how our actions affect the reputation, . 

integrity and credibility of the company. Our business ethics must reflect 
the standard o€ conduct outlined in this code - a standard based upon the 
company’s values and encompassing our relationship with everyone with 
whom we come in contact, 

Our personal conduct must be above reproach while we are on duty, 
traveling, taking lunch or stopping-off on the way home. If we are in a 
branded company vehicle or wearing branded clothing, we must exercise 
good judgment. If you are uncertain if a certain behavior is inappropriate, 
ask yourself if a family member, another employee, a neighbor or the 
media observed you, would you behave differently? If so, you need to 
adjust your behavior appropriately. 

If you feel you are being pressured to be a part of something you consider 
inappropriate from a moral, ethical or legal perspective, you should 
formally report your concerns to the Director of Human Resources or any 
officer. 

A Shared Commitment 

We place a high value on being able to fulfill our conunitrnents and to do 
so with integrity. It 
means that each individual within our company is doing their best to 
conduct themselves by the standards of business conduct outlined m this 
code. 

Integrity means being of sound moral. principle. 

‘ :  
.1 . 

Acting with integrity also means that while w e  may not always be sure of 
every answer, we will not say one thing and then do another. We will not 
make promises that we have no intention of keeping or cannot be 
reasonably sure we will be able to keep. We will strive to the best of our 
ability to support each commitment we have made and to conduct business 
in an honest and ethical manner. 
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Putting the Values to Work: Ethical Commitments 

The following sections take a more in-depth look at what it means to put 
these values to work in our business. The section, Implementing the 
Comrnitrnents: Guidelines for Ethical Decisions outlines your role in 
enabling the company to meet its commitments to others and maintain its 
ethical standards. When individuals choose to disregard the code, we 
could suffer damage to the company’s reputation and the ensuing loss of 
customers, community and employee goodwill, and profitability. 
Violations may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination of employment. Actions that are against the law may be 
subject to criminal prosecution. 

Implementing the Commitments 

Guidelines for Ethical Decisions 

FPU Company’s ability to honor its conunitments and ethical standards is 
directly dependent on the day-to-day choices and actions of each 
employee, officer and member of the board o€ directors, collectively herein 
also referred to as “employees.” This section outlines the standard of 
ethical practice expected from everyone affiliated with FPU. 

Our Common Working Environment 

- ,  Each employee has responsibility for creating and sustaining a pleasant, 
secure, and productive working environment, an environment in which all 
employees, customers and vendors are treated fairly and with respect. 

We must all strive to communicate our ideas and concerns in an honest and 
clear manner. We must make sure that our criticisms are both direct and 
constructive and that we can accept candid feedback from others in the 
same spirit. Developing our ability to resolve problems and work 
effectively as team members is an important and constant challenge. 
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Respect for the differences in backgrounds, experiences, 
perspectives and talents that each individual employee brings to the team 
are a fundamental value. FPU does not tolerate discrimination, harassment 
or demeaning behavior against any individual or group. We recognize that 
there are differences among individuals and groups that go well beyond 
race and gender. We must learn to understand these individual differences 
and see how they contribute to the creation of more innovative ideas and of 
better solutions to problems. It is important that w e  make the effort to 
discover how our own skills and perspectives can support this process and 
to recognize our personal areas for development. 

Our responsibilities to other employees also include ensuring that we do 
our part in maintaining environmental, health and safety standards in our 
own workplace. One important component of health and safety standards 
concerns illegal drugs. In order to establish FPU as a Drug Free Workplace 
and thereby increase the safety and health of our employees and their 
families, FPU requires that our employees shall not use drugs illegally at 
any time, shall not use or be under the influence of alcohol while working 
and shall not use or be under the influence of medications that could affect 
their ability to work safely. 

Commitments to Interested Parties 

This section outlines some of the key commitments that FPU makes to 
those with the most direct interest in the organization: its employees, 
shareholders, customers and vendors. It contains a lot of statements 
beginning with "FPU commits.. ." or "the company will . . . . Remember 
that the ethical conduct of "the company" is really the collective conduct of 
its employees, officers, and members of its board of directors. 
Implementing the Cornmitrnents provides specific guidelines on your role 
in making these Statements more than just words. 

I' 

.- ' 
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Employees 

FPU’ employees provide the energy, skill and work ethic we need to be 
able to achieve our strategic goals. The company strives to provide work 
that is satisfying and an environment that is safe, pleasant and free from 
harassment and violence. FPU is committed to providing each employee 
with equal advancement opportunities. Wherever we operate, the 
company offers salaries and benefits that are competitive and fair. The 
company provides employees with opportunities for continuing 
professional development. 

We are committed to protecting and enhancing the health and safety of our 
employees. We want our employees to immediately report accidents, 
injuries and unsafe equipment, practices or conditions, 

FPU values the contributions of every employee and treats each individual 
with respect. This includes safeguarding the confidentiality of employee 
records and supporting as far as possible employees’ career aspirations. As 
a company, FPU is committed to informing employees quickly and fully on 
issues affecting them, and listening to their ideas and concerns. 

FPU is committed to a policy of equal employment opportunity without 
regard to any classification unrelated to job performance. FPU seeks to 
create a work force that is a reasonable reflection of the diverse populations 
of the communities that we serve. 

> ,  

‘. Shareholders 

Prdfits are essential to the longevity of the company 
of all who depend on it. The company seeks 

and to the well being 
to provide value to 

shareholders while maintaining financial prudence. FPU believes that 
shareholder value is delivered through satisfied and loyal customers and 
that customer satisfaction is directly dependent on satisfied and effective 
employees. The company endeavors to act in what it perceives to be the 
shareholders’ best interests and provides them with full, 
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fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in all reports and 
communications in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 

Customers 

The company maintains high ethical standards in its customer 
relationships. Customers deserve safe, reliable and competitively priced 
energy and value added services. The focus of the company’s daily 
activities is to deliver excellent and friendly service resulting in customer 
satisfaction, superior value and product excellence. 

Vendors 

FPU is fair in its choice of vendors and honest in business interactions with 
them. Purchasing decisions are made on the basis of competitive price, 
quality, quantity, delivery, service and reputation. The objective is to 
procure goods and services which will contribute to the quality of our 
service and the long-term benefit of the company. 

Reporting Illegal Conduct 

If you become aware of, or have suspicions of any illegal activity, such as 
theft, forgery, misappropriation, conversion or falsification of records, you 
should formally report your concerns to the Director of Human Resources 
and any division director or company officer. You may rest assured that 
the company will not allow retaliation for concerns reported in good faith. 

..- 

Protecting Assets 

Collectively, we have a responsibility to protect the company’s assets and 
ensure their efficient use. Theft, carelessness and unnecessary waste have a 
direct impact on the company’s profitability and ultimately, on our jobs. 
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Supplies and equipment purchased by the company are intended to be 
used for FPU’ business purposes only. Any other use, after hour’s 
charitable work, for example, must receive prior approval from your 
Director. Everyone involved in operating equipment has a responsibility 
for understanding its proper use and maintaining it in good condition. 

Information is an important company asset. Unintended release of 
business or technical information to third parties may help our 
competitors. If competitors gain even a very general sense of our business 
plans, it may give them a head start in reducing whatever advantages we 
may have. Inappropriate handling of sensitive information or original 
ideas provided by third parties can lead to a loss of trust and liability for 
damages. 

Employees who have access to proprietary and confidential information, 
e.g. engineering designs, employee records, data entrusted to us by a 
customer must take every precaution to keep it confidential. Be cautious in 
discussing company business in public - in restaurants, on airplanes or on 
telephones. Use extra care in transmitting confidential materials via fax. 
Remember that our obligation to protect FPU’s proprietary and 
confidential information continues after we leave the company. 

Protection of company information also means reporting information 
completely and accurately. Trying to hide bad news through misleading 
information undermines trust and may be illegal in some cases. 

The reputation of the company, its employees and its services is also an 
important asset that you have a responsibility to protect. 

Using Copyrighted Materials 

Many materials used by FPU’ employees in the course of their work are 
protected by copyright laws: computer software, books, 
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audio and videotapes, trade journals, magazines, newsletters, photographs, . 

manuals and articles are a few examples. Things like presentation slides, 
training materials, management models and problem solving frameworks, 
produced by outside consultants or organizations may also be copyrighted. 

Reproducing, distributing or altering copyrighted materials without the 
permission of the copyright owner or authorized agent is forbidden. 
Computer software licensed by FPU must not be illegally copied for 
personal, company or customer use, 

Conflicts of Interest 

Conflicts of interest occur when our personal interests interfere in any way, 
or even appear to interfere, with the interests of the company. A conflict of 
interest situation can arise when we engage in outside work or make a 
financial investment that makes it difficult for us to perform our FPU work 
efficiently, objectively and effectively. Conflicts of interest also arise when 
we, or members of our family, receive personal, unearned benefits as a 
result of our position in the company. 

Outside Activities 

FPU’ employees, officers and members of the board of directors, must not 
serve as directors or officers of any organization that night supply goods 
or services to the company, buy goods or services from the company, or 
compete with the company, without prior approval. Neither is it 
permissible for them to work as employees of, or consultants to, any of 
these organizations. 

There are cases, however, where FPU employees start their own 
businesses, or take on part-time work with organizations that are neither 
competitors, contractors, suppliers nor customers. This in itself does not 
constitute a conflict of interest. It is the employee’s responsibility to ensure 
that the second job does not conflict with the interests of FPU. For 
example, this means ensuring that the two activities are strictly separated: 
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That you do not do other work on FPU time. 
That customers and colleagues from your outside business do not contact you at 
FPU. 
That you do not use FPU’s equipment and supplies, or any FPU personnel for 
your outside business. 
That you do not promote products or services from your outside business to 
other FPU employees during working hours. 
That you do not attempt to sell products or services from your outside business 
to FPU. 

In order to avoid any uncertainty, you must notify the Director of Human 
Resources and your manager to approve the outside work prior to 
commencing it. 

Gifts and Entertainment 

The occasional exchange of business courtesies, such as modest gifts, meals 
and entertainment, is a common practice meant to provide a legitimate 

I opportunity to interact, create goodwill or establish trust and 
understanding in our business relationships. However, we cannot allow 
these practices to adversely affect our objectivity and decision-making, nor 
should we use these practices to place undue influence on our customers, 
vendors or business partners. FPU policy prohibits gifts to or from any 
private individual, firm, or entity as a means of improperly inducing 
business. The guidelines apply at all times and they do not change during 
traditional gift-giving seasons or during the planning of a company event. 

As these guidelines cannot cover every circumstance, the burden is on 
individual employees to use good judgment. ”Everyone else does it” is not 
sufficient justification. If you are having difficulty determining whether a 
specific gift or entertainment offer is within the bounds of acceptable 
business practice, consult with the Director of Human Resources and your 
manager or your division director. 

There are some cases where refusal of an inappropriate gift would cause 
embarrassment and hurt to the person offering it. In these cases, the best 
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practice is usually to accept the gift on behalf of the company, report it to 
your manager and deliver it to the Director of Human Resources. 

In some circumstances, FPU may offer a gift as part of a public occasion. 
Such gifts must be approved in advance, accurately and completely 
accounted for and reported on the books and records of the company. 

Bribes and Kickbacks 

Under no Circumstances is it acceptable to offer, give, solicit or receive any 
form of bribe, kickback, barter or other inducement, such as a loan of cash, 
cash equivalents or securities or obtaining a cosigner for a loan or the 
borrowing of equipment. Under some statutes (such as the U.S. Foreign 
Corrupt Practices Act), these are criminal actions that can lead to 
prosecution. 

I 
In order to ensure that agents and representatives acting on FPU’ behalf are 
not themselves offering or receiving bribes or kickbacks, all such 
arrangements must be covered by written contracts and documented in 
accordance with legal and accounting requirements and ethical business 
practices. The compe,nsation spelled out in the contract must be clearly 
comensurate with the activity undertaken. 

Insider Trading 

Insider trading means using confidential, material information about FPU, 
its customers or suppliers to achieve an unfair advantage in the buying or 
seliing of shares. ”Material information” is usually defined as 
”information, which, if publicly disclosed, would reasonably be expected 
to influence the decision of a reasonable investor to buy, hold or dispose of 
the company’s c o m o n  stock”. 

_ I ,  

Insider trading is both unethical and illegal. It is also illegal to pass on 
undisclosed material information to anyone, other than in the ordinary 
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course of business. Employees who involve themselves in insider trading 
(either by personally engaging in trading or by disclosing confidential 
material infQrmation to others) are subject to immediate termination and 
prosecution. 

Family and Friends 

While conflict of interest guidelines are not intended to unduly interfere 
with an employee’s family or personal life, there are situations where the 
actions of family members and close personal friends may constitute a 
codlict of interest for the employee. For example, any gifts or other 
benefits offered to family members by suppliers or potential suppliers are 
considered business gifts subject to the Gift and Entertainment Guidelines. 
If your spouse, relative or close personal friend is an employee of, or has a 
substantial interest in a business seeking to provide goods and services to 
FPU, you must ensure that you do not attempt to use your position at FPU 
to influence the bidding process or negotiation in any way. If you are 
directly involved in purchasing functions, you must disclose this conflict of 
interest to the Director of Human Resources and your manager 
irnmedia tely . 

If you have a relative or friend who works for a competitor, you must 
disclose this to the Director of Human Resources and your manager and 
discuss this situation with them. 

_I b. Customer Relationships 

Each of us has important responsibilities to our customers. Our credibility 
with our customers depends on our ability to fulfill our commitments. 
Every time an employee commits to an unrealistic timetable, some hard- 
earned customer trust is lost. We must not make promises unless w e  are 
reasonably confident that we will be able to keep them. All safes and 
promotional efforts must be free from deliberate misrepresentation. If 
unforeseen circumstances make it impossible to meet a commitment, we 
must inform the customer as soon as possible. 
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Many FPU . employees deal primarily with ”internal customers” - other 
FPU employees, functions or departments. These principles apply equally 
to these important relationships. 

Our commitment to fair competition and high ethical standards prohibits 
us from such inappropriate practices as refusing to provide service or 
maintain equipment because the customer is also a customer of one of our 
competitors. This commitment also prevents us from offering to customers 
any benefits or rewards that violate applicable laws or responsible and 
generally accepted business practices. In practical terms, this means that 
customer entertainment is limited to what is reasonable and necessary to 
facilitate business discussions. Any gifts made to customers must be 
modest promotional items. (For more details see Gifts and Entertainment.) 

FPU employees must respect and protect any confidential or proprietary 
information shared with us by a customer. We should not hesitate to let 
our customers know, in a respectful way, that we expect them to protect 
our confidential and proprietary idormation as well. 

Vendor Relationships 

Our conunitment to deal fairly and honestly with vendors means that 
employees responsible for buying materials and contracting for services on 
behalf of the Company must consciously and consistently guard their 
objectivity. Xn practice, this means that no employee will accept or solicit 
any benefit from a vendor or potential vendor that might influence, or even 
appear to influence, his or her decision. (For more details on what might 
be considered a benefit or for a discussion about gifts and entertainment in 
general, see Gifts and Entertainment.) Promotional items of modest value 
are acceptable, as is moderately scaled entertainment within the limits of 
responsible and generally accepted business practices. 

- :  

No FPU employee will require vendors to give up trade with our 
competitors, nor require vendors to buy our products or services 
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in order to maintain their relationship with us. To avoid even the 
appearance of putting pressure on vendors, FPU employees will not- solicit 
or accept gifts, merchandise or services from vendors for Company events 
or charitable activities. 

FPU employees must respect and protect any confidential or proprietary 
information shared with us by a vendor. We also should not hesitate to let 
our vendors know that we trust them to do likewise. 

Community 

Ethical Leadership in the Community 

Employees, shareholders, customers and vendors are not the only parties 
interested in FPU' activities. Corporations have social obligations that 
extend beyond the payment of taxes, employment of people and the 
providing of goods and services, An enterprise faces a special challenge: to 
uphold consistent standards of ethical business conduct while also 
respecting the culture and business customs of every community in which 
it operates. This section looks at the broader responsibilities of the 
corporation as a citizen. 

Cornmunitie s 

FPU directly and through its employees contributes to the general well 
being and improvement of the communities where it does business. As a 
corporate citizen of the communities we serve, we must always act 
responsibly. This means conducting our operations safely and being 
prepared for emergencies that may occur. When feasible, we also provide 
financial support to worthwhile programs. FPU encourages employees to 
participate in local public affairs, charitable organizations and other 
community activities of their choice. 
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The company encourages the recruitment of qualified local personnel and 
local purchasing of goods and services where practical and economical. 

Health, Safety and the Environment 

FPU is committed to achieving health, safety and environmental excellence. 
FPU will strive to provide a safe and healthy working environment for our 
employees and avoid adverse impact and injury to the natural 
environment in the communities in which we do business. Our programs 
and procedures, as implemented by our management and employees, 
combine high standards and the use of appropriate technology in order to 
provide for the health, safety and protection of our environment. 

Wherever FPU operates we comply with rules and regulations of federal, 
state and local governments and appropriate regulatory agencies. 

Relationship to the Political Process 

FPU does not abuse its power to influence public issues. We do, however, 
express our views on issues that affect our operations. The company 
respects and supports the right of all employees to participate in the 
political process. However, it does not reimburse employees for personal 
political contributions, nor does it permit employees to campaign on 
company time or property. 

.. Competition 

Competition is the foundation of capitalism. FPU competes vigorously in 
an ethical and legitimate manner. We grow our business by providing 
safe, reliable and competitively priced energy and value added services. 
We avoid all actions which are anti-competitive or otherwise contrary to 
laws that govern competitive practices in the marketplace. 

FPU and its employees refuse to associate with or participate in illegal 
practices, such as price-fixing schemes, bid-rigging arrangements or 
exclusive dealings. 
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FPU employees do not denigrate competitors or their products, but do, 
with care and prudence, make fair and factually based comparisons on 
attributes such as quality, price, service and performance. 

FPU employees will not use improper means of gathering information 
about competitors. Theft, illegal entry and electronic eavesdropping are 
obviously unacceptable means of searching for competitive intelligence. In 
addition, you must not misrepresent yourself or your situation in order to 
convince somebody to release information to you (by posing as a customer, 
for example) or engage a third party to do so. You must not offer a bribe or 
a gift in exchange for competitors’ information or solicit confidential 
information from a competitor’s ex-employee. This is not a comprehensive 
list of improper means - consult with the Director of Human Resources 
and your manager or your division director before reviewing or using any 
competitive information. 

Accountability 

All business transactions must be accurately and completely accounted for 
and reported on the books and records of the company. All travel and 
expense claims submitted by employees must be justified, accurate and 
appropriate. 

FPU strives to meet reasonable requests for information. The company 
publishes quarterly and annual reports on its performance and shares 
information about its ethics standards. It maintains close and honest 
relationships with the financial community and the media, regularly and 
willingly informing them about signi€icant developments, subject to 
applicable laws and company policy regarding disclosure 

-.’ 

FPU provides full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in 
all reports, documents and filings with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, any other appropriate governmental agency and in 
shareholder and public communications. 

This page last revised 05/ 27/ 03 

17 



i 

Certain information, however, must remain confidential in order to protect 
the company's competitive position and to comply with applicable 
agreements and laws. Proprietary information such as expansion plans 
and financial information prior to public disclosure often falls in the 
category of company property that must be protected. 

Summary 

As discussed in the preceding pages of our Code of Ethics, the company is 
committed to the highest standards of behavior and ethical practice in 
pursuit of our strategic goals. We expect our employees to actively 
participate in our philosophy and we require an equal commitment from 
our vendors and business parfulers. 

Revised 05-27-2003 
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Florida Public Utilities Company 
2005 Sources and Uses of Funds Forecast 

(In Thousands) 

Significant cash flow items (Note I) 

Total Operating Income 

Deductions 
Operating & Maintenance 
Taxes 
Interest 
Dividends Paid 
Other 

Total Deductions 

Balance 
Construction expenditures: 
Cash Refundl(Contributions) 
Contingency Requirements 

Balance 
Proceeds (repayment) of Short Term Borrowing 
Proceeds from Equity Issuance less costs 
Proceeds from Sale of Disc Ops & LWG 
Requested Remaining Financing 

Balance 
Beginning Cash 
Ending Cash 

2005 

1 11,709 

86,774 
12,186 
4,442 
2,715 

106,045 
(72) 

5,664 
I 1,840 

340 
45.000 

(51,516) 
(8,0271 
14,100 

37 1 
45,000 

295 
223 

Florida Public Utilities Company 
2005 Construction Budget for Gross Property Additions 

(In Thousands) 

Notes 

Projected amounts do not include any effect of potential changes in retail base or other 
regulated activities which could cause the projections to change. 

Excludes AFUDC. All of the estimated construction expenditures are subject to 
continuing review and adjustment. Actual construction expenditures may vary from 
these estimates due to factors such as; changes in customers, energy sales, 
business and economic conditions, construction and design requirements, fuel supply 
and costs, availability of labor, supplies and materials, regulatory treatment, 
environmental and conservation requirements, and existing and proposed legislation. 
FPUC is keeping its construction program as flexible as possible with the intention 
of accom,modating those factors that may develop or change. 
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Florida Public Utilities Company 
Statement of Capital Stock and Debt 

June 30,2004 

Preferred Stock without Sinking Fund Requirements: 

Other: 

Affiliated Corporations: 
Flo-Gas Shares 

1 Total 1 $1 1 ,125,680.00 

* Average shares outstanding have been restated to reflect the four-for-three stock split declared on June 14, 2002 and distributed on July 1, 2002. 
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Florida Public Utilities Company 
Statement of Capital Stock and Debt 

June 30,2004 

Series 

First Mortgage Bonds: 

Principal Proceeds / 
Issue date Maturity Outstanding (Expenses) 

I I I I I 1 

9.57% 
10.03% 
9.08% 

5/1 /I 988 5/1/2018 $10,000,000 
5/1/1988 511/2018 $ 5,500,000 
6/1/q992 6/1/2022 $ 8,000,000 

6.85% 9/27/2001 1011 12031 5 15,000.000 

Unsecured Short Term Debt: 

4.90% 11/1/2001 11/1/2031 $l4,000,000 

Total 

Pretax interest coverage: 

Net income before interest and income taxes 
Interest expense 

$52,500.000 $ 

Net Inc Interest Exp Income Tax I 

Current 
Interest Rate Balance 

MOS 
Remaining . .  . .  

' L  

Proceeds / 
(Expenses) 

0.0732 . 166' 
O.Oq39 ' . I66 
0.01 62' 215 

Amount Pledged by Applicant: 
Amount held in any Fund 

. 0.5134 . 328 
C.0186 -' ' 327 

I 0.0753 1202 

0 
0 

7.53% 
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